PUBLIC DISCLOSURE COPY

990 Return of Organization Exempt From Income Tax |_omB no. 1545-0047
Form
Under section 501(c), 527, ar 4947(a)(1} of the Internal Revenue Gode {except private foundations) 2 @23
Depariment of he Treasury Do not enter social security numbers on this form as it may be made public. Open to Public ‘
Internal Revenue Service Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information. - Inspection
A For the 2023 calendar vear, or tax year beginning 07/01 , 2023, and ending 06/30 ,20 24
B Checkif applicable: | ¢ Name of organization MERCY MEDICAL CENTER D Employer Identification number
[ Address change Doing buslness as 52-0591658
I:] MName changs Number and street {or P.O, box If mall s not delivered to street address) Rocm/stilta E Telephore number
[ initial return 301 ST, PAUL PLAGE {410) 332-9000
|:] Final return/terminated City or town, state or province, country, and ZIP or foreign postal code
] Amended return BALTIMORE, MD 21202 G Gross receipts § 635,116,281
[[] Application panding  {F Name and address of princlpal offiicer; PRAVID MAINE, MD H{a} Is this a group return for subordinates? [_] Yes Ne
SAME AS C ABOVE Hib) Are all subordinates Included? [] Yes [ ] Mo
| Tax-sxempt status: 501(c}3) [ s01te)¢ }(insert no) ["1 4947(a)(1) or [] 527 If “No,” attach a list. See instructions.
J  Webslte: WWW.MDMERCY.COM H{o} Group exemption number
K Form of organizatlon: [V] Gorporation [ ] Trust [ ] Assoclation [ | Other | L Year of formation: 1949 t M State of legal domicile:  MD
Summary
1 Briefly describe the organization's mission or most significant activities: LIKE THE SISTERS OF MERCY BEFORE US,
9 WE WITNESS GOD'S HEALING LOVE FOR ALL PEOPLE BY PROVIDING EXCELLENT CLINICAL SERVICES WITHIN A
_(CONTINUED ON SCHEDULE 0)
§ 2  Check this box [if the organlzatlon discontinued its operations or dlsposed of more than 25% of its net assets.
&| 3 Number of voting members of the governing body (Part VI, line 1a). . . e 3 7
ﬁ 4  Number of independent voting members of the governing body {Part VI, line 1b) e 4 0
2| 5 Total number of individuals employed in calendar ysar 2023 (Part V, line2a) . . . . . 5 4,301
:‘¢E'5 6 Total number of volunteers {estimate if necessary) . . . e e e e 6 239
< | 7a Total unrelated business revenue from Part VI, column (C) line 12 e e 7a 169,320
b Net unrelated business taxable income from Form 990-T, Part |, line 1% . . . . . . . 7b 0
Prior Year Current Year
o | 8 Contributions and grants (Part VIIl, linedhy . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,526,076 6,258,581
% 9 Program service revenue (Part Vlll, ine2g) . . . e e 569,606,863 583,462,044
2 | 10  Investment Income (Part VI, column (4), lines 3, 4, and ™. ... 0,033,465 20,964,885
= 11 Other revenue (Part VII[, column (A), lines 5, 6d, 8¢, 9¢, 10c, and 118} . . . 18,373,079 23,207,194
12 Total revenue—add lines 8 through 11 (must equal Part VIII, celumn {A), line 12} 569,540,383 633,802,704
13 Grants and similar amounts paid (Part IX, column (A}, lines1-3) . . . . . 292,867 283,250
14  Benefits paid to or for members (Part IX, column (A}, lined4) . . . . 0
o |16 Salaries, other compansation, employes benefits (Part IX, column {4}, lines 5—1 0) 276,347,052 286,078,389
2| 16a Professional fundraising fees (Part [X, column (A}, line 11} . . . . . . 0 0
g b Total fundraising expenses {Part IX, column (D), line 25) 0
il 17 Other expenses (Part IX, column (A), lines 11a-11d, 11f-24¢) . . . . 307,280,404 321,708,355
18 Total expenses. Add lines 13-17 {must equal Part IX, column {A), line 25) . 583,920,323 608,089,994
19  Revenue less expenses. Subtract line 18 fromline12 . . ., ., . ., . 15,620,060 25,822,710
5 ﬁ Beginning of Current Year End of Year
8520 Totalassets (PartX,line18) . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . 1,042,788,236 1,072,079,469
%% 21 Total liabilities (Part X, lilne 26) . . . . . . e e e e 486,377,525 466,097,607
%é Nst assets or fund balances. Subtract line 21 from ]|ne 20 C e e e e 556,410,711 606,981,862

Signature Block

Under penalties of perjury, | declars that | have examined this return, including accompanying schedules and statements, and to the best of my knowledge and belief, it is
true, correct, and compleis, Declaratiqn of prepargMother than officer) is based on all information of which preparer has any knowledge,

7/

Sign Date
Here JUSTIN DEIBEL, EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENT & CFO
Type of print name and title
Paid Print/Type preparer's name Preparer's signature Date Cheok [] i | PTIN
Preparer AMY BIBBY Ay TIEEY 03/27/2025 self-employed|  p00445891
Use Only Firm’s name FORVIS MAZARS, LLP Fltm's EIN 24-0160260
Firm's address 500 RIDGEFIELD COURT , ASHEVILLE, NC 28806 Phone no, (828} 254-2254
May the IRS discuss this return with the preparer shown above? Seeinstructions . . . . . . . . . . , Yes [ No
Far Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the separate instructions. Cat. No, 11282Y Form 990 (2023
Mercy Medical Center 2 4/8/2025 11:35:20 AM
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Form 990 (2023)

Page 2

Statement of Program Service Accomplishments
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part il . . . . . . . . . . . ., .

1

Briefly describe the organization’s mission:
LIKE THE SISTERS OF MERCY BEFORE US, WE WITNESS GOD'S HEALING LOVE FOR ALL PEOPLE BY PROVIDING

EXCELLENT CLINICAL SERVICES WITHIN A COMMUNITY OF COMPASSIONATE CARE, AS AN INDEPENDENT CATHOLIC

HOSPITAL, WE PLEDGE TO ENHAN_CE THE HEALTH OF OUR REGION AND SERVE ALL PEQPLE OF EVERY CREED,
COLOR, ECONOMIC, AND SOCIAL CONDITION.

Bid the organization undertake any significant pregram services during the year which were not listed on the
prior Form 990 or 990-EZ? .. .

If “Yes,” describe these new services on Schedule 0.

Did the organization cease conductmg, or make significant changes in how it conducts, any program
services? . . . . e .. . .

If “Yes,” describe these changes on Schedule 0.

Describe the organization's program service accomplishments for each of its thres largest program services, as measured by
expensos. Section 501(c)(3) and 501(c){4) crganizations are required to report the amount of grants and allocations to others,
the total expenses, and revenus, if any, for each program service reported.

CYes [FINo

Yes No

4a

{Code:

REVENUE. IN FISCAL YEAR 2024, MERCY SERVED 7,393 MEDICAL ADMiSS!ONS AND OBSERVATION CASES AND

{CONTINUED ON SCHEDULE )

db (Code: ) (Expenses $

) (Revenue $ )

4d  Other program services (Describe on Schedule O.)

{Expenses $ including grants of $ ) {Revenue $ }
4e Total program service expenses 488,498,202
Form 990 (2023
Mercy Medical Center 3 4/8/2025 11:35:20 AM
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Form §90 {2023) Page 3
|EIH Checklist of Required Schedules
¥Yes | No
1 Is the organization described in section 501(0)(3) or 4947(&)(1) {other than a private foundation)’? if "Yes,”
complete Schedule A . . A . . .o . 1 | v
2  Is the organization required to complete Sohedule B, Schedule of Contributors? See Instructions . . v
3 Did the organization engage in direct or indirect political campaign activities on behalf of or in opposition to
candidates for public office? If “Yes,” complete Schedule C, Part! . . 3 v
4 Section 501(c){3) organizations. Did the organization engage in lobbying activities, or have a seotion 501(h)
election in effect during the tax year? If “Yes,” complete Schedule C, Part i . 4 | v
§ Is the organization a section 501{c){4), 501(c)(5), or 501(c)(B} organization that recelves membership dues
assessments, or similar amounts as defined In Rev. Proc. 98-197 If “Yes,” complete Schedule C, Part Il 5 v
6 Did the organization maintain any donor advised funds or any similar funds or accounts for which donors
have the right to provide advice on the distribution or investment of amounts in such funds or accounts?
“Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part | e e e e e e, .. 8 v
7 Did the organization receive or hold a conservation easement, including easements to preserve open space,
the environment, historic land areas, or historic structures? If “Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part I 7 v
8  Did the organization maintain collections of werks of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets? if “Yes, "
complete Schedule D, Part ill .o 8 v
8 Did the organization report an amount in Part X ||ne 21 for B85Crow or custodiai account Iiabiiity, serve as a
custodian for amounts not listed in Part X; or provide credit counseling, debt management credit repair, or
debt negotiation services? If “Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part IV e e e .. 9 v
10 Did the organization, directly or through a related organization, hold assets in donor-restriotad endowments
ot in quasi-endowments? If “Yes,” complete Schadhile D, Part V.
11 If the crganization's answer to any of the following questions is “Yes,” then complete Schedule D Parts Vi
VI, VNI, IX, or X, as applicable.
a Did the organization report an amount for land, buildings, and equipment in Part X, fine 10? if “Yes,"
complete Schedule D, Part Vi . i1al v
b Did the organization report an amcunt for investments— other securities in Part X Iine 12 that is 5% or more
of its total assets reported in Part X, line 167 if “Yes,” complate Schadule D, Part VII . 11b v
¢ Did the organization report an amount for investments —program related in Part X, line 13, that is 5% of more
of its total assets reported in Part X, line 167 If “Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part VIl . 11¢ v
d Did the organization report an amount for other assets in Part X, line 15, that is 5% or more of Its total assets
reported in Part X, line 187 if “Yes,” complefe Schedufe D, Part iX . P . 11d v
e Did the organization report an amount for other liabilities in Part X, line 257 If “Yes,” complete Scheduie D Part X [11e| ¢
f  Did the organization’s separate or consolidated financial statements for the tax year include a footnote that addresses
the organization’s liability for uncertain tax positions under FIN 48 (ASG 740)? If “Yes,” complete Schadule D, Part X 11f| v
12a  Did the organizalion obtain separate, independent audited financial statements for the tax year? I “Yes,” oompiete
Schedule D, Parts Xi and Xi! 123 v
b Was the organization included in oonsolidated |ndependent audited finanoiai statements for the iax year'? IF
“Yes," and if the organization answered “No” to line 12a, then complsting Schedule D, Parts X! and Xl is optional |12p| v
13 Is the organization a scheol described in section 170(0}(1){A)iN? If “Yes,” complete Schedule E 13 v
14a Did the organization maintain an office, employees, or agents ouiside of the United States? 14a v
b Did the organization have aggregate revenuss or expenses of more than $10,000 from grantmaking,
fundraising, business, investment, and program service activities outside the United States, or aggregate
foreign investments valued at $100,00C or more? If “Yes,” complete Schedule F, Parts | and V. 14b| v
15  Did the organization report on Part IX, column {4}, line 3, more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to or
for any foreign organization? If “Yes,” complete Schedule F, Parts If and IV . 15 v
16 Did the organization report on Part [X, column {4), line 3, more than $5,000 of aggregate grants or other
assistance to or for foreign individuals? If “Yes,” complete Schedula F, Parts Iif and IV. . . 16 v
17  Did the organization report a total of more than $15,000 of expenses for professional fundraising services on
Part IX, column {A), lines 6 and 11e? If “Yes,” complete Schedtile G, Part I. See instructions 17 v
18  Did the organization report more than $15,000 total of fundraising event gross income and oontnbutions on
Part VIl Iines 1c and 8a? If “Yes,” complate Schedule G, Part il 18 v
18 Did the organization report more than $15,000 of gross income from gaming activities on Part VIiI Iine Qa?
If “Yes,"” complete Schedule G, Part ilf .. . .o . 19 v
20a Did the organization operate one or more hospital faotlitiee? If “Yes,” oompiete Schedule H . 20a| v
b If “Yes” to line 203, did the crganization attach a copy of its audited financial statements to this retumn? 20b| v
21 Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to any domestic organization or
domestic government on Part IX, column (A), line 17 If “Yes,” complete Schedule I, Parts | and li 21 | v
Form 990 (2023)
Mercy Medical Center 4 4/8/2025 11:35:20 AM
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Form 290 {2023) Page 4
Checklist of Required Schedules (continued)
Yes | No
22 Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to or for domestic individuals on
Part IX, column (A}, line 27 If “Yes,” complete Schedule I, Farts | and il 29 v
23 Did the organization answer “Yes" to Part VII, Section A, line 3, 4, or 5, about compensatlon of the
organization’s current and former officers, directors, trustees, key employees and highest compensated
employees? If "Yes,” complete Schedule J . . o o e o | v
24a Did the organization have a tax-exempt bond issue with an outstandmg prlncipal amount of morg than
$100,000 as of the last day of the year, that was Issued after December 31, 20027 If “Yes,” answer lines 24b
through 24d and compleie Schedule K. If “No,” go to line 25a . .. 2al v
b Did the organization Invest any proceeds of tax-exempt bonds beyond a temporary period exception? . 24h v
¢ Did the organization maintain an escrow account other than a refunding escrow at any time during the year
to defease any tax-exempt bonds? . e - 24¢ v
d Did the organization act as an “on bshalf of” issuer for bonds outetandmg at any time durlng the year? . 244d v
25a Section 501(c){(3), 501(c)(4), and 501(c}{29) organizations. Did the organization engage in an excess benefit
transaction with a disqualified person during the year? If “Yes,” complete Schedule L, Part | 253 v
b Is the organization aware that it engaged in an excess benefit transaction with a disqualified person in a pror
year, and that the transaction has not been reparted on any of the organlzatlon s prior Forms 9980 or 980-EZ?
If “Yes,” compigte Schedule L, Part! . o S e e e e . 95h v
26  Did the organization report any amount on Part X, line 5 or 22, for receivables from or payables to any current
or former officer, director, trustee, key employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor, or 35%
controlled entity or family member of any of these persons? If “Yes,” complete Schedule L, Part If 6 v
27  Did the organization provide a grant or other assistance to any current or farmer officer, director, trustes, key
employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor or employee thersof, a grant selsction committee
member, or to a 35% controlled entity (including an employee thereof) or family member of any of these
persons? If “Yes,” complete Schedule L, Part fi .o e e e e . .
28 Was the organization a party to a business transaction with one of the following partlee'? (See the Schedule
L, Part IV, instructions for applicable filing thresholds, conditions, and exceptions).
a A current or former officer, director, trustes, key employee creator or founder, or substantial contributor? If
“Yes,” complete Schedule L, Part v . . . . . 28a v
b A family member of any individual described in line 28a’? If “Yes,” ccmplete Schedu!e L, Pert v . 28h v
¢ A 35% controlled entity of one or more individuals and/or orgamzatlons described in line 28a or 28b7? If
“Yes,” complete Schedule L, Part IV . .o . . o8¢ v
29  Did the organization receive more than $25,000 in noncaeh contrlbuhons'? if “Yes,” compiete Schedule M 29 v
30 Did the organization receive contributions of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets, or quallﬂed
conservation contributions? /f “Yes,” complete Schedule M .o - 30 v
31 Did the organization liquidate, terminate, or dissolve and cease operations? !f “Yes,” complete Schedule N, Part! | 31 v
32 Did the organization sel, exchange, dispose of, or transfer more than 25% of is net assets? If “Yes,”
compiete Schedule N, Part I 32 v
33  Did the organization own 100% of an entity d|eregarded as separate from the orgamzaﬂon under Hegulatlons
sections 301.7701-2 and 301.7701-37 If “Yes,” complete Schedule R, Part | . 33 v
34  Was the organization ralated to any tax- exempt ot taxable entlty? If “Yes,” complete Scheo'u!e R Pan‘ I, m
or v, and Part V, line 1 . .o . - . 34| v
35a Did the organization have a controlled ent|ty w1th|n the meaning of section 512(b)(1 3)'? . 35a| v
b If “Yes” to line 35a, did the organization receive any payment from or engage in any transactlon W|th a
controlled entity within the meaning of section 512(b)(13)? If “Yes,” complete Schedule R, Part V, fine 2 . a5h| v
36  Section 501(c){3) organizations. Did the organization make any transfers to an exempt non-charitable
related organization? If “Yes,” complete Schedule R, Part V, line 2 . 36 v
37  Did the organization conduct mare than 5% of its activities through an entity that isnot a re!ated organlzatlon
and that is treated as a partnership for federal income tax purposes? If “Yes,” complete Schedule R, Part Vi 37 v
38  Did the organizaticn complele Schedute O and provide explanations on Schedule O for Part VI, lines 11b and
197 Note: All Form 990 filers are required to complete Schedtile O . . 38| v
Statements Regarding Other IRS Filings and Tax Compliance
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part V P
Yes | No

Enter the number reported in box 3 of Form 1096. Enter -0- if not applicable . . . . 1a 705 |

Enter the number of Forms W-2G included on line 1a. Enter -0- if not applicable . . . 1b

Did the organization comply with backup withholding rules for reportable payments to vendors and
reportable gaming (gambling) winnings to prize winners?

1c | v

Mercy Medical Genter 5 A/8/2025 11:35:20 AM
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Form 990 (2023}
Statements Regarding Other IRS Filings and Tax Compliance (continued)

2a
b
3a

b
4a

b

Ga

6a

Page &

Enter the number of employees reporied on Form W-3, Transmittal of Wage and Tax

Statements, filed for the calendar year ending with or within the year covered by this return | 2a 4,301 [ el

if at least one Is reported on line 2a, did the organization file all required federal employment tax returns? .
Did the organization have unrelated business gross inceme of $1,000 or more during the year?

If “Yes,” has it filed a Form 990-T for this year? f “No” to line 3b, provide an explanation on Schedule O

At any time during the calendar year, did the organization have an interest in, or a signature or other authority over,
a financial account in a foreign country {such as a bank account, securities account, ot ather financial account)?

If “Yes,” enter the name of the foreign country ¢J

See instructions for filing requirements for FINGEN Form 114, Report of Foreign Bank and Financial Accounts {FBAH)
Was the organization a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction at any time during the tax year? .

Did any taxable party notify the organization that it was or is a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction?

If “Yes” 1o line 5a or &b, did the organizaticn file Form 8886-T?

Does the organization have annual gross receipts that are normally greater than $1 00 000 and dld the
organization solicit any contributions that were not tax deductible as charitable contributions? .

If “Yes,” did the organization include with every solicitation an express statement that such contrlbutlons or
gifts were not tax deductible?

Organizations that may receive deductlble contnbutmns under section 170(c}

Yes | No _

7
a bid the organization receive a payment in excess of $75 mads partly as a contribution and partly for goods
and services provided to the payor? . - .. .. C e e e
b If “Yes,” did the organization notify the donor of the value of the goods or services prowded’? .
¢ Did the organization sell, exchange, or otherwise dispose of tangible personal property for which 1t was
required to file Form 82827 . . o e e e e e e,
d [T “Yes,” indicate the number of Forms 8282 filed durmg theyear . . . . . . . . | id |
e Did the organization receive any funds, directly or indirectly, to pay premiums on a personal benefit contract?
f Did the organization, during the year, pay premiums, directly or indirectly, on a personal benefit contract? .
g Ifthe organization received a contribution of qualified intellectual property, did the organization file Form 8899 as required?
h  If the organization received a contribution of cars, boats, airplanes, or ather vehicles, did the organization file a Form 1098-G2
8  Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds. Did a donor advised fund maintained by the
sponsoring organization have excess business holdings at any time during the year? .
9  Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds.
a Did the spensoring organization make any taxable distributions under section 49667 .
b Did the spensoring organization make a distribution to a donor, denor adviser, or related person?
10 Section 501(c)(7) organizations. Enter;
a Initiation fees and capital contributions included on Part VI, line 12 . . . . 10a
b Gross receipts, included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 12, for public use of club facmtles . 10b
11 Section 501{c){12) organizations. Enter:
a Gross income from members or shareholders . . . Tia
b Gross income from other sources. (Do not net amounts due or pald to other sources
against amounts due or received fromthem) . . . . . . 11b
12a Section 4947{a}{1} non-exempt charitable trusts. Is the orgamzatmn fillng Form 920 In I|eu of Form 10417
b If “Yes,” enter the amount of tax-exempt interest received or accrued during the year . | | 12b |
13 Section 501{c}{29) qualified nonprofit health insurance issuers.
a Is the organization licensed to Issue qualified health plans In more than one state?
Note: See the instructions for additional information the organization must report on Schedule 0
b Enter the amount of reserves the organization is required to maintain by the states in which
the organization is licensed to issue qualified healthplans . . . . . . . . . . 13b
¢ Enter the amount of reservesonhand . . . 13¢
14a Did the organization receive any payments for mdoor tanmng services durlng the tax year’? . . . 14a v
b If *Yes,” has it filed a Form 720 to report these payments? If “No,” provide an explanation on Schedule O . 14h
15  Is the organization subject to the section 4960 tax on payment(s} of more than $1,000,000 in remuneration or
excess parachute payment(s) during the year? e
If “Yes,” see the Instructions and file Form 4720, Schedule N.
16 Is the organization an educational institution subject to the section 4968 excise tax on net investment income?
If “Yes,” complete Form 4720, Schedule O,
17 Section 501(c)(21) organizations. Did the trust, or any disqualified or other person, engage in any activities
that would result in the imposition of an excise tax under section 4951, 4952, or 40537 17
If "Yes,” complete Form 6069,
Form 990 2023}
Mercy Medical Center 6 4/8/2025 11:35:20 AM
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Form $20 {2023) Pags 6
Governance, Management, and Disclosure. For each “Yes” response to lines 2 through 7b below, and for a "No”
response to line 8a, 8b, or 10b below, describe the circumstances, processes, or changes on Schedule O. See instructions.
Check if Schedule O contains a response ornoteto any lineinthisPartVl . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Section A. Governing Body and Management

Yes | No
1a Enter the number of voting members of the governing body at the end of the tax year. . 1a 7 : ;
If there are material differences in voting rights among members of the governing body, or
if the governing body delegated broad authority to an executive committes or similar
committee, explain on Schedule O.

b Enter the number of voting members included on line 1a, above, who are independant . 1b 0
2  Did any officer, director, trustes, or key employee have a family relationship or a business relationship with
any other offlcer, director, trustee, or key employee?

3 Did the organization delegate control over managernent duties customaniy performed by or under the dlrect

supervision of officers, directors, trustees, or key employees to a management company or other person? . 3 v
4  Did the organization make any significant changes to its governing documents since the prior Form 990 was filed? | 4 v
5 Did the organization become aware during the year of a significant diversion of the organization's assets? . 5 v
6 Did the organization have members or stockholders? 6 | v

7a Did tha organization have members, stockholders, or other perscns who had the power to elect or appomt
one or more members of the governing body? . . . . . . 7al v

b Are any governance decisions of the organization reserved to (or subject to approval by) members
stockholders, or persons other than the governing body? .

8 Did the organization contemporaneously document the mestings held or wntten actlons undertaken durmg
the year by the following:

a The governing body? . . . . .o e e e e e 8a| v
b Each committee with authority to act on behalf of the governlng body? o 8b | v
9 Is there any officer, director, trustee, or key employee listed in Part VII, Section A, who cannot be reached at
the organization's mailing address? If “Yes,” provide the names and addresses on Scheduls O . . . . 9 v
Section B. Policies (This Section B requests information about policies not required by the Internal Revenue Code.)
Yes | No
10a Did the crganization have local chapters, branches, or affiliates? . . . 10a v

b If "Yes,” did the organization have written policies and procedures govermng the aCtIVltIBS of such chapters
affiliates, and branches to ensure their operations are consistent with the arganization’s exempt purposes? 10k
11a  Has the organization provided a complete copy of this Form 990 io all members of its governing bady before filing the form?
b Describe on Schedule O the process, if any, used by the organization to review this Form 990. A
12a Did the organization have a written conflict of interest policy? if “No,” go to fine 13 . . . . 12a| v
b Were officers, directors, or trustees, and key employees required to disclose annually interests that could give rise to conflrcts? 12b| v
¢ Did the organization regularly and consistently monitor and enforce compliance with the policy? If “Yas,”
dascribe on Scheagule O how this was done. . . . o e e e e e e e 12¢
13  Did the organization have a written whistleblower pollcy? .
14  Did the organization have a written document retention and destructlon pol:cy? ..
18  Did the process for determining compensation of the following persons include a review and approvel by
independent persons, comparability data, and contemporanecus substantiation of the deliberation and decision?
a The organization’s CEO, Executive Director, or top management official . . . . . . . . . . . . 15a v
b Cther officers or key employees of the organization . . . e e e e e 15b v
If “Yes” to line 15a or 18b, describe the process on Schedule O See mstructlons '
16a Did the organization invest in, contribute assets to, or partlclpate in a joint veniure or similar arrangement
with a taxable entity during the year? .
b If "Yes,” did the organization follow a written pel:cy or procedure requlnng the organtzatlon to evaluate its
participation In joint venture arrangements under applicable federal tax law, and take steps to safeguard the
organization’s exempt status with respect to such arrangements?

Section C. Disclosure

17  List the states with which a copy of this Form 990 Is required to be filed MD

18 Section 6104 requires an organization to make its Forms 1023 (1024 or 1024-A, if applicable), 990, and 990-T {section 501(c)
{3)s only) available for public inspection. Indicate how you made these available. Check all that apply.
[] Ownwebsite [ Another's website  [7] Uponrequest [ Other (explain on Schedule O)

19 Describe on Schedule O whether (and if so, how} the organization made its governing documents, conflict of interest policy,
and financial statements availabla to the public during the tax year.

20  State the name, address, and telephone number of the person who possesses the organization’s bocks and records.
JUSTIN DEIBEL, 301 ST. PAUL PLACE, BALTIMORE, MD 21202, (410} 659-2¢05

Form 990 o023
Mercy Medical Center 7 4/8/2025 11:35:20 AM
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Form 950 (2023) Page 7
Compensation of Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, Highest Compensated Employees, and
Independent Contractors
Check if Schedule O contains a response or noteto any lineinthisPart VIl . . . . . . . . . . . . . [J
Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees
ta Complete this table for all persons required to be listed. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the
organization’s tax year.

* List all of the organization's current officers, directors, trustees (whether individuals or organizations), regardless of amount of
compensation, Enter -0- in columns (D}, (B}, and (F) if no compensation was paid.

* List all of the organization’s current key employees, if any. See the instructions for definition of "key employee.”

* List the organization’s five current highest compensated employees (other than an officer, director, trustee, or key employee)
who received reportable compensation (box 5 of Form W-2, box 6 of Form 1099-MISC, and/or box 1 of Form 1099-NEC) of more than
$100,000 from the organization and any related organizations.

* List all of the organization’s former officers, key employees, and highest compensated employees who recelved more than
$100,000 of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations.

e List all of the organizaticn’s former directors or trustees that received, in the capacity as a former director or trustee of the
organization, more than $10,000 of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations.

See the instructions for the order in which to list the persons above,
[l Check this box if neither the organization nor any related crganization compensated any current officer, director, or trustes.

©
® . ) {de not chg’:::'i?)?e than one © ® #
Name and title Average | poy ynless person Is both an Raportable Reportable Estimated amount
hours officer and a director/trustes) | CCmpensation compensation of other
per week [ 5] 5 g ipegny g 1rom the from related compensation
{fist any & g 21358 organlzaticn (W-2/ |organizations (W-2/ from the
hours for | & g-. g a !3,, y ﬁ' g 1099-MISC/ 1099-MISC/ organizatiop arjd
rel:c\ted g, 5 g AR 1098-NEC) 1098-NEC) related organizations
organizations| = o | & 2 g
below g 5 4 7
dotted IIne) 3 % §
° &
(1) DAVID N. MAINE, M.D. 1180
CHAIR, EX OFFICIO 270 v v 0 1,754,338 41,870
(2) JUSTIN C. DEIBEL — 15.0
VIGE CHAIR 27.0 v v G 1,010,210 43,787
(3) WILMAAS. ROWE, M.D. 388
SECRETARY ) 5.5 v v G 880,877 48,651
(4) SUSAN D. FINLAYSON 38.0
DIRECTOR ) 2.0 v 681,608 0 39,271
{6) CHRISTOPHER THOMASKUTTY 38.0
SVP CLIN PROG - CHIEF OF STAFF 2.0 v 592,202 0 42,655
{6) __PHIL BEATSON ] 40.0
"SVP STRATEGY & CORPORATE OPERATIONS 10 v 556,006 0 39,952
{7) JUDITH WEILAND 3840
"SVP STRATEGIC & CAPITAL PLANNING 20 v 525,350 0 44,482
{8) TAMMY L. JANUS 4040
'SENIOR VP HR ) ) 0.0 v 432,009 0 49,045
{9} RALPHJ. LEBRON ) 400
DIRECTOR B 0.0 v 426,901 0 41,055
(10) KAREN MATHURA ) 400
'CCO & VP OF CLAIMS 0.0 v 372,445 0 42,745
(11} STACEY (SEDALIA) BRULL ] 40.0 .
DIRECTCR 0.0 v 332,635 0 42,19
(12} ELINOR PETROGCELLI | 400
TREASURER 0.0 v v 279,050 0 26,759
(18) MICHAELC.MULLANE 1 . 400 |
DIRECTOR ) 0.0 v 149,960 0 32,324
{14) REV.THOMASR, MAL_I;_B\ ______ 40.0
DIRECTCOR 0.0 v 83,486 a 14,915
Form 990 (2023
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Form 990 (2023} Page 8
EZXTN Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees (continued)
(c}
] B} Position D) ) ®
{do not check more than one
Name and title Average | hox unless person s beth an Raeportable Repertable Estimated amount
hours offlcer and a director/trustes) |  cOMpensation compensation cf other
perweek T ol=le <o from the from related compensation
{list any o i i 3 |& |2& ]9 |organization (W-2/ | organizations {W-2/ from tha
hoursfor | & = g 81 %E ?D 1009-MISC/ 1098-MISC/ organization and
related q & g7 %‘ E - 1099-NEC) 1088-NEC) refatad organizations
organizations| 2 g g ) g
balow g 2 °
dotted line) é q 2
g &
&
_(J_?_)___IHOMAS R, MULLEN 0,0
FORMER CHAIR, EX QFFICIO 0.0 v 0 48,358 20,238
L1 R
(17) » N ]
08 e -
AL
() N S
@
(23) ) .
b e | .
@es
1b Subtotal 4,431,742 3,693,783 E79,010
¢ Total from contmuatlon sheets to Part VII Sectnon A [ 0 0
d Total (add lines 1k and 1¢} . 4,431,742 3,693,783 579,010
2  Total number of individuals (including but not I|m|ted to those hsted above) who recelved more than $100,000 of
reportable compensation from the organization
Yes | No
3 Did the organization list any former officer, director, trusiee, key employes, or highest compensated
employee on line 1a? If “Yes,"” complete Schedule J for such individual
4  Forany individual listed on line 1a, is the sum of reportable compensation and other compensatlon from the
organization and related organizations greater than $150,000? if “Yes,” complete Schedule J for such
individual .
5 Did any person listed on line 1a recelve or accrue compensation from any unrelated organization or individual
for services rendered to the organization? f “Yes,” complete Schedule J for such parson 5 v

Section B. Independent Contractors

1 Complete this table for your five highest compensated independent contractors that received more than $100,000 of
compensation from the organization. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the organization's tax year.

(A}

Name and business address

(8)
Description of servi

ices

{C)

Compensation

GILBANE BUILDING COMPANY, 7 JACKSON WALKWAY, PROVIDENCE, RI 02903 | GCONSTRUSTION- HUNT VALLEY MOB 5,308,982
UNIVERSITY OF MARYLAND , 620 W. LEXINGTON ST, BALTIMORE, MD 21201 MEDICAL SERVICES 4,805,001
UNIVERSITY OF M0 MEDICAL SYSTEM, 900 ELKRIDGE LANDING RD, LINTHICUM HEIGHTS, MD 21090 | MEDICAL SERVICES 4,398,730
EPIC SYSTEMS CORPORATION, 1979 MILKY WAY, VERONA, WI 53593 EFIC MAINTENANOE AND TECHKICAL SUPPORT 3,358,444
CONSOLIDATED MEDICAL SERVICES INC, 11027 MCCORMICK RD., HUNT VALLEY, MD 21031 [ CONSTRUCTION 3,358,300

2 Total number of independent contractors (including but not limited to those listed above) who

received more than $100,000 of compensation from the organization

116

Mercy Medical Center
52-0591658
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Form 990 {2023) Page 9
LIS Statement of Revenue
Check if Schedule O contains a respense or note to any line in this Part VIII . P

{A)
Total revenue

(B}
Related or exempt
function revenue

{C}
Unrelated
business revenue

0]
Revenue excluded
from tax under

0o O 6 oo

Contributions, Gifts, Grants,
and Other Similar Amounts

Federated campaigns 1a

Membership dues ih

Fundralsing events 1c

Related organizations 1d

5,677,306

Government grants (contnbutlons} 1e

All other contributions, glfts, grants,

and similar amounts not included above { 15

581,275

Noncash contributions included in
lines 1a-1f.

Total, Add linas 1a-1f .

6,258,581

gections 512-514

2a

Program Service
Revenue
© e oo

Business Code

PATIENT REVENUE

621400

582,552,044

582,552,044

"PEDIATRIC REVENUE

621110

910,000

910,0C0

All other program service revenue

0

Total. Add lines 2a—-2f .

583,462,044

6a

Q

Ta

8a

Other Revenue

Investment income (including dlwdends,
other similar amounts} .

mterest and

Income from investment of tax-exempt bond proceeds

Royalties

10,314,793

10,314,793

) { .F{ea,I

{1 Personal

Gross rents 6a 2,143,331

Less; rental expenses | 6b 1,223,557

Rental incoms or (foss) | 6c 919,774

Net rental income or (loss)

919,774

Gross amount from {i) Securities

{ii} Cther

sales of assets

cther than inventory 10,641,718

7a

8,374

Less: cost o other basls

and sales expenses 7b

Gain or {loss) . 7c 10,641,718

8,374

Net gain or {loss)

10,660,092

Gross income from fundralsmg
events fnot including$
of contiibutions reported on line

1c). See Part IV, line 18 8a

Less: direct expenses 8b

10,650,092

Net income or {loss) from fundralsmg events

Gross income from  gaming
activities. See Part IV, line 19 Oa

Less: direct expenses . 9h

Net income or (loss) from gammg activities

Gross sales of inventory, less

returns and allowances 10a

L.ess: cost of goods sold 10b

Net income or (loss) from sales of inventory .

11a
b

Miscellaneous
Revenue

[+
d
e

Business Gode

MANAGEMENT FEE

561000

13,408,991

13,498,991

OTHER INCOME

900089

4,467,116

4,467,116

CAFETERIA REVENUE

722514

3,026,515

3,026,515

All otherrevenue . . . . . .

812930

1,294,798

1,125,478

169,320

Total. Add lines 11a-11d .

22,287,420

12

Total revenue. See instructions

633,892,704

605,580,144

169,320

21,884,650

Mercy Medical Center

52-0591658
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Form 920 {2023) Page 10
Statement of Functional Expenses
Section 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations must compilete all columns. All other organizations must complete column {A).
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part IX .. ]
Do not inchide amounts reported on lines 6b, 7b, Total e(ﬁgsenses Progra!r?)servlce Manay é?n)ent and FuncSraEs
8h, 9b, and 10b of Part VIN. 8xXpenses genargi expenses expensg;g
1 Grants and other assistance to domestic organizations :
and domastic governments. See Part IV, line 21 283,250 283,250 [
2 Grants and other assistance to domestic
individuals. See Part IV, line 22 .
3 Grants and other assistance to foreign
organizations, foreign govemmesnts, and
forelgn individuals. See Part IV, lines 15 and 16
4  Bensfits paid to or for members
5 Compensation of current officers, directors
trustees, and key employses 1,853,640 1,586,379 368,261
6  Compensation not included above to dlsqual{fled
persons {as defined under section 4958(f)(1)) and
persons described in section 4958(c)(3)(B) .
7 Other salaries and wages . 238,671,611 193,682,012 44,989,559
8  Pension plan accruals and contrlbutlons {lnclude
section 401{k) and 403(b) employer caontributions) 5,133,332 4,165,699 967,633
9  Other employee benefits . 23,580,524 19,135,585 4,444,929
10 Payroll taxes . . 16,739,282 13,583,927 3,155,366
11 Fees for services (nonemployees)
a Management 5,552,811 5,552,811
b Legal 1,195,430 597,715 597,715
¢ Accounting 642,116 438,114 204,001
d Lobbying . 87,500 87,500
e Professional fundrassmg services, See Part IV IIne 17
f Investment management fees 845,601 845,601
g Other, {If line 11g amount exceeds 10% of line 25 ca\umn
(&), amount, list fine 11g axpenses on Schedule 0) 21,880,138 17,705,762 4,274,376 0
12  Advertising and promotion 3,318,994 170,121 3,148,873
13  Office expenses 28,166,656 20,356,042 7,810,614
14 Information technology 2,434,795 1,460,877 973,918
15  Royalties .
16  Occupancy 11,964,888 6,258,915 5,705,973
17  Travel . 859,932 577,272 282,860
18 Payments of travel or entertamment expenses
for any federal, state, or local public officials
19 Conferences, conventions, and mestings 572,000 481,070 91,020
20  Interest . 12,836,282 8,796,704 4,039,578
21 Payments to affiliates .
22  Depreciation, depletion, and amor’uza‘uon 36,707,075 25,250,797 11,458,278
23 Insurance P 29,111,735 26,941,696 2,170,039
24 Other expenses. lemize expenses not covered
above, (List miscellaneous expenses on line 24e, i
line 24e amount exceeds 10% of line 25, column
(A), amount, list line 246 expenses on Schedule 0.)
a _M:E_D AND PHARMACY SUPPLEI—;_S_ _____ 101,959,389 101,958,399
b OTHER 37,112,505 25,949,024 11,163,481
G REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE 19,073,938 13,008,424 6,065,512
d 3408 PHARMAQX_[EXPENSE 6,022,908 6,022,908
e Al other expenses . 1,263,565 0 1,263,565 0
26 Total functional expenses. Add lines 1 through 24e 608,069,994 488,498,202 119,571,792 0
26 Joint costs. Compleie this line only If the
organization reported in column (B} joint costs
from a combined educational campaign and
fundraising solicitation. Check here [] if
following SCP 98-2 (ASC 958-720) . .
Form 990 (2023
Mercy Madical Center 11 41812025 11:35:20 AM
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Farm 990 (2023) Page 11
m—Balance Sheet
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part X .o |
A} {B)
Beginning of year End of year
1 Cash—non-interest-bearing . 100,140,702 | 1 152,427,246
2  Savings and temporary cash investments 114,783,495 | 2 55,020,916
3  Pledges and grants receivable, net 3
4  Accounts receivable, net . 27,302,099 4 36,605,367
5 Loans and other receivables from any current or former officer dlrector
trustee, key employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor, or 35%
centrolled entity or family member of any of these persons
6 Loans and other receivables from other disqualifled persons (as deflned L
under section 4858(f)(1)), and persons described in section 4958(c)3)B) 8 0
2| 7 Notes and loans recelvable, net 7
ﬁ 8 Inventories for sale or use 11,753470| 8 10,564,451
< | 9 Prepaid expenses and deferred charges 2,720,689 9 1,474,604
10a Land, buildings, and equipment: cost or other 1
basis. Complete Part Vi of Schedule D . 10a 892,077,088 :
b Less: accumulated depreciation 10b 519,324,893 472,685,691 [ 10c 472,753,095
11 Investments—publicly traded securities 245,828,644 | 11 270,154,593
12 Investments —other securities. Ses Part IV, line 11 0| 12 0
13  Investments—program-related. See Part IV, line 11 . 49,615,532| 13 52,192 536
14  Intangible assets e e e e e e 14
15  Other assets. Ses Part IV, [lne 11 e .. 18,057,914 | 15 20,886,661
16  Total assets. Add lines 1 through 15 (must equal Ime 33) 1,042,788,236 | 16 1,072,079,469
17 Accounts payable and accrued expenses . 110,193,422 | 17 105,078,988
18  Grants payahle . 18
19  Deferred revenue 19
20 Tax-exempt bond Ilab|I|t|es . 351,902,904 | 20 339,367,476
21 Escrow or custodial account fability. Complete Part IV of Schedu[e D
Q 22 |oans and other payables to any current or former officer, director,
E trustee, key employes, creator or founder, substantial contributor, or 35%
E controlled entity or family member of any of these perscns
3|23 Secured mortgages and notes payable to unrelated third parties
24  Unsecured notes and loans payable to unrelated third parties
25  Other liabilities {including federal income tax, payables to related third
parties, and other liabilities not included on lines 17-24). Complete Part X
of Schedule D . e e e e e 24,281,198 | 25 21,661,143
26  Total liabilities. Add lines 17 through 25 486,377,525 26 466,097,607
i Organizations that follow FASB ASC 958, check here . !
e and complete lines 27, 28, 32, and 33.
% 27  Net assets without donor restrictions 512,043,580 | 27 559,104,810
3 28 Net assets with donor restrictions 44,367,131| 28 46,877,052
£ Organizations that do not follow FASB ASC 958 check here |:|
u‘: and complete lines 29 through 33,
g 29  Capital stock or trust principal, or current funds .
@ (30  Paid-in or capital surplus, or land, building, or equipment fund .
ﬁ 31  Retained earnings, endowment, accumulated income, or other funds . 31
% 132 Total net assets or fund balances . 556,410,711 | 32 605,981,862
Z | 33 Total liabilities and net assets/fund balances 1,042,788,236 | 33 1,072,079,469
Form 990 (2023
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Form 990 (2023} Page 12
Reconciliation of Net Assets
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line In this Part X| .
1 Total revenue (must equal Part Vill, column (&), line 12) , 1 633,892,704
2 Total expenses (must ecqual Part [X, column (A), line 25) 2 608,069,994
3 Revenue less expenses. Subtract line 2 from line 1 . 3 25,822,710
4  Net assets or fund balances at beginning of year (must equal Part X I|ne 32 column (A)) 4 556,410,711
5  Net unrealized gains {losses) on invesiments 5 14,429,824
6 Donated services and use of facilities 6
7 Investment expenses . 7
8  Prior period adjustments . 8
9  Other changes in not assets or fund balances (explam on Schedule O) 9 9,318,517
10 Net assets or fund balances at end of year. Combine lines 3 through 9 {must equal Part X I|ne
32 column (B)) . - 10 605,981,862
Financial Staterments and Reportmg
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part X1l .
Yes | No
1 Accounting method used to prepare the Form 990: [[] Cash Accrual [ Other
if the organization changed its method of accounting from a prior year or checked "Other,” explain on
Scheadule Q.
2a Woere the organization's financial statements cempiled or reviewed by an independent accountant? .
If “Yes," check a box below to indicate whether the financial statements for the year were compiled or |
reviewed on a separate basis, consolidated basis, or both.
[ Separate basis ] Consolidated basis  [[] Both consolidated and separate basis
b Were the organization's financial statements audited by an independent accountant? . .
If “Yes,” check a box below to indicate whether the financial statements for the year were audlted oh a
separate basis, consclidated basis, or both.
1 Separate basis Consolidated basis [] Both consolidated and separate basis
c If “Yes” to line 2a or 2b, does the organization have a committee that assumes responsibility for oversight of
the audit, review, or compilation of its financial statements and selection of an Independent accountant?
If the organization changed either its oversight process or selection process during the tax year, explain on
Schedule O.
8a As aresult of a federal award, was the organization required to undergo an audit or audits as set forth in the
Uniform Guidance, 2 C.F.R. Part 200, Subpart F? . 3a v
b If “Yes,” did the organization undergo the raquired audit or aud|ts’? If the orgamzatlon dld nct undergo the
required audit or audits, explain why on Schedule O and describe any steps taken to undergo such audits . 3b
Form 990 (2023)
Mercy Medical Center 13 4/8/2025 11:35:20 AM
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| OMB Mo, 1545-0047

2023

SCHEDULE A Public Charity Status and Public Support
{Form 990)

Complete if the organization is a section 501 [o}{3} organization or a section 4047{a){1) nonexampt charitable trust.

Departraent of the Treasury Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ. Open to P_ublic .
Internal Revenue Servize Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information. Inspection
Name of the organization Employer idenfification number

MERCY MEDICAL. CENTER 52-0591658

I Reason for Public Charity Status. (All organizations must complete this part.) See instructions.
The organization is not a private foundation because it is: (For lines 1 through 12, check only one box.)
1 []A church, convention of churches, or association of churches described in section 170(b) (1) (A)i).
2 [ A school described in section 170(b}{1}{A}ii}. {Attach Schedule E (Form 990).)
3 A hospital or a cooperative hospital service organization described in section 170{b){(1){AMNii).
4 []A medical research organization operated in conjunction with a hospital described in section 170(b}{1}{A}{iii). Enter the
hospital’s name, city, and state:
5 [ An organization operated for the benefit of a college or University owned or operated by a governmental unit deseribed in
section 170{(b)(1){A)(iv). (Complete Part I1.)

6 [ Afederal, state, or local government or governmental unit described in section 170{b){1}{A)Mv).
7 [ An organization that normally receives a substantial part of its support from a governmental unit or from the general public
described in section 170{b)(1}{A){(vi). (Complste Part I1.)

L1 A community trust described in section 170(b}{1}{A}){vi). (Complete Part I1.)

9 Oan agricultural research organization describad in section 170{b){1}{A){ix) aperated in conjunction with & land-grant college
or university or a non-land-grant college of agriculture (see instructions). Enter the name, city, and state of the college or
university:

10 [] An organization that normally receives (1) more than 3372% of its support from contributions, membership fees, and gross
receipts from activities relatad to its exempt functions, subject to certain exceptions; and (2) no more than 337a% of its
support from gross investment income and unrelated business taxable income (less section 511 tax) from businesses
acquired by the organization after June 30, 1975, See section 509{a){2), (Complete Part 1.}

11 [ An organization organized and operated exclusively to test for public safety. See section 509(a)(4).

12 [ An organization organized and operated exclusively for the benefit of, to perform the functions of, or te carry out the purposes of
one or more publicly supported organizations described in section 509{a}{1) or section 509(a)(2). See section 509(a)(3). Check
the box on lines 12a through 12d that describes the type of supporting organization and complete lines 12e, 12f, and 12g.

a L[] Typel.A supparting organization operated, supervised, or controlled by its supported organization{s), typically by giving
the supported organization(s) the power to regularly appoint or elect a majority of the directors or trustess of the
supporting organization. You must complete Part IV, Sections A and B.

b [ Type ll. A supporting organization supervised or controlled in connection with its supported organization(s), by having
control or management of the supporting organization vested in the same persons that control or manage the supported
organization(s). You must complete Part IV, Sections A and C. )

¢ [] Type lll functionally integrated. A supporting organization operated in connection with, and functionally integrated with,
its supported organization{s) (see instructions). You must complete Part IV, Sections A, D, and E.

d [ Type Il non-functionally integrated. A supporting organization operated in connection with its supported organization(s)
that is not functionally integrated. The organization generally must satisfy a distribution requirement and an attentiveness
requirement (see instructions). You must complete Part IV, Sections A and D, and Part V.

e [ Check this box if the organization recelved a written determination from the IRS that itis a Typel, Type I, Type Il
functionally integrated, or Type Ilf non-functionally integrated supporting organization.

[+~

-h

Enter the number of supported organizations . . . . . . . ., ,
g Provide the following infermation about the supported crganization(s).

(I} Name of suppetted organization {ii} EIN (ifl} Typs of crganization | {iv) Is the organization | {v} Amount of monatary {vl) Amount of
(described on lines 1-10 |listed in your governing support (see other support {see
above (see instructions)) document? instructions) Instructions)

Yes No

(A

(B)

()

(D)

{F)

Total

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 980-EZ, Cat. No. 11285F Schedule A (Form 990) 2023
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Schedule A (Form 980) 2023

Page 2

Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Sections 170(b)}(1 {ANiv) and 170{b){1){A}Hvi)
(Complete only if you checked the box on line 5, 7, or 8 of Part | or if the organization failed to qualify under
Part lil. If the organization fails to qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part i1}

Section A. Public Support

Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) {a) 2019 {b) 2020 (c) 2021 {d) 2022 (e} 2023 {f) Total

1 Gifts, grants, contributions, and
membership fees recsived. (Do not
include any “unusual grants.™ .

2 Tax revenues levied for the
arganization’s benefit and either paid
to or expended on its behalf

3 The valus of services cr facilities
furnished by a governmental unit to the
organization without charge .

4 Total. Add lines 1 through 3

§ The porticn of total contributions by
each person {other than a
governmental unit or publicty
supported organization) included on
line 1 that exceeds 2% of the amount
shown on line 11, column (f) .

6 Public support. Subtract line 5 from line 4

Section B. Total Support
Calendar year {or fiscal year beginning in) {a) 2019 {b) 2020 {c) 2021 {d) 2022 (e} 2023 {f) Total

7  Amounts from line 4

8 Gross income from interest, dIVIdendS
payments raceived on securities loans,
rents, royalties, and income from
similar sources . e

8  Net income from unrelated business
activities, whether or not the business
is regularly carried on

10 Other income. Do not include gain or
loss from the sale of capital assets
{Explain in Part V1.) . .
11 Total support. Add lines 7 through 10
12 Gross receipts from related activities, etc, (see instructions) 12 |
13

First 5 years. If the Form 990 is for the organization’s first, second, third, fourth or flﬁh tax year as a section 501(c)(3)
organization, check this box and stop here e

O

Section C. Computation of Public Support Percentage

14
15
16a

b

17a

18

Fublic support percentage for 2023 (line 6, column (f), divided by line 11, eolurmn (f) . 14

%

Public support percentage from 2022 Schedule A, Part |, line 14 15

%

33112% support test--2023. If the organization did not check the box on Ime 13 and Ilne 14 is 3313% or more, check this
box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization .
33'3% support test—2022. If the organization did not check a box on line 13 or 16a, and Ilne 15 is 331/3% or more, check
this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization .

10%-facts-and-circumstances test—2023, If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, or 18b, and line 14 is
10% or more, and if the organization meets the facts-and-circumstances test, check this box and stop here. Explain in
Part V1 how the organization meets the facts-and-circumstances test. The organization qualifies as a publicly supporied
organization . . o

10%-facts-and-circumstances test—2022, If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, 16b, or 17a, and line
15 is 10% or more, and if the organization meets the facts-and-circumstances test, check this box and stop here. Explain
in Part V| how the organization meets the facts-and-circumstances test. The organlzat|on quallfles as a publicly supported
organization .

Private foundation, If the orgamzatlon dld not check a box ch ||ne ‘13 16a 16b ‘iTa or 17b check thls box and see
instructions

O
1

|
Cl

Mercy Medical Center

52-0591658
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Schedule A {Form 990) 2023 Page 3

Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Section 509(a)(2)
(Complete only if you checked the box on line 10 of Part | or if the organization failed to qualify under Part II.
If the organization fails to gualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part I1.)
Section A, Public Support
Calendar year {(or fiscal year beginning in) {a) 2019 (b} 2020 {c) 2021 (d) 2022 {e} 2023 (f) Total
1 Gifts, grants, contributions, and membearship fees
racaived. (Do not include any “unusual grants,"}

2 Gross recelpts from admissions, merchandise
sold or services performed, or facilitles
furnished in any activity that s ralated to the
organization's tax-exempt purpose .

3  Gross receipts from activities that are not an
unrelated trade or business under section 513

4  Tax revenues levied for the
organization’s benefit and either paid
to or expended on its behalf

5  The value of services or facilities
furnished by a governmental unit to the
organization without charge ,

6 Total. Add lines 1 through 5 .

7a Amounts included onlines 1, 2, and 3
received from disqualified persons

b Amounts included on lines 2 and 3
received from other than disqualiiied
persons that exceed the greater of $5,000
or 1% of the amount on ling 13 for the year

¢ Addlines 7a and 7b

8  Public support. (Subtract line Tc from
line 8.) . . e
Section B. Total Support
Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) {a) 20192 {b) 2020 (c) 2021 {d) 2022 (e) 2023 {f) Total
9 Amounts from line 6 ..
10a Gross income from interest, dividends,
payments recelved on securities loans, rents,
royalties, and income from similar sources

b Unrelated business taxable income (less
section 511 taxes) from businesses
acquired after June 30, 1875 ,

¢ Add lines 10a and 10b

11 Netincome from unrelated business
activities not included on line 10b, whether
or not the business is regularly carried on

12 Other income, Do not include gain or
loss from the sale of capital assets
{Explain in Part VI.} . .

13 Total support, (Add lines 9, 10c, 1 1

and 12))
14  First 5 years. If the Form 990 is for the organization’s first, second, third, fourth, or fifth tax year as a section 501(c)3)
organization, check this box and stop here . . . R S T N T R W
Section C. Computation of Public Support Percentage
15 Public support percentage for 2023 (line 8, column (f}, divided by line 13, column{®)) . . . . . | 15 %
16 __ Public support percentage from 2022 Schedule A, Part Il fine15 . . . . . . . . . . . |18 %
Section D. Computation of Investment Income Percentage
17 Investment income percentage for 2023 {line 10c, column {f), divided by line 13, column {f)) . . . | 17 %
18  Investment income percentage from 2022 Schedule A, Part Il, ine17 . . . . 18 %
19a 33'%% support tests—-2023. If the organization did not check the hox on line 14, and Ilne 15 is more than 33'4%, and line
17 is not more than 33'5%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization . . O
b 33'5% support tests—2022. If the organization did not check a box on line 14 or line 9a, and line 16 is more than 3313%, and
line 18 Is not more than 33'13%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization . [
20 _ Private foundation. |f the organization did not check a box on line 14, 19a, or 19b, check this box and see instructions . O
Schedule A {Form 990} 2023
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Schedule A (Form 990} 2023 Page &4
Supporting Organizations
(Compilete only if you checked a box on line 12 of Part 1. If you checked box 12a, Part |, complete Sections A
and B. If you checked box 12b, Part |, complete Sections A and C. if you checked box 12¢, Part |, complete
Sections A, D, and E. If you checked box 12d, Part ), complete Sections A and D, and complete Part V.)
Section A. All Supporting Organizations

Yes No

1 Are all of the organization's supported organizations listed by name in the organization’s governing
documents? If “No,” describe In Part VI how the supported organizations are designated. If designated by
class or purposs, describe the designation. If historic and continuing relationship, explain,

2  Did the organization have any supported organization that does not have an IRS determination of status
under section 509(a}{1) or (2)7 If “Yes,"” explain in Part VI how the organization determined that the stipportad
organization was described in section 509(a)(1) or (2).

3a Did the organization have a supported crganization described in section 501(c)(4), (B}, or (8)? If “Yes,” answer
lines 3b and 3¢ below.

b Did the organization confirm that each supported organization gualified under section 501(c)(4), (5), or (6) and
satisfied the public support tests under section 508(a){2)? If “Yes,” describe in Part VI when and how the
organization made the determination.

¢ Did the organization ensure that all support to such organizations was used exclusively for section 170{c){2)(B)
purpeses? If “Yas,” explain in Part VI what controls the organization put in place to ensure such use.

4a Was any supported organization not organized in the United States (“foreign supported organization”)? /f ;
“Yes,” and if you checked box 12a or 12b in Part [, answer lines 4b and 4c below.

b Did the organization have ultimate control and discretion in deciding whether to make grants to the forelgn
supported organization? if “Yes,” describe in Part VI how the organization had such control and discretion
despite being controlled or supervised by or in connection with its supported organizations.

¢ Did the organization support any foreign supporied organization that does not have an IRS determination
under sections 501{c}(3) and 509(a)(1) or {2)? If “Yes,” explain in Part VI what controls the organization used
fo ensure that all support to the foreign supported organization was used exclusively for section 170(c)i2)(B)
pUrposas,

Ba Did the organization add, substitute, or remove any supported organizations during the tax year? If “Yes,”
answer lines 5b and 5c¢ below (if applicable). Also, provide detail in Part VI, including (i) the names and EIN
numbers of the supported organizations added, substituted, or removed; (i} the reasons for each such action;
(ifi} the authority under the organization’s organizing document authorizing such action; and (iv) how the action
was accomplished (such as by amendment to the organizing document).

b Type I or Type Il only. Was any added or substituted supported organization part of a class already |
designated in the organization’s organizing document?
¢ Substitutions only. Was the substitution the result of an event beyond the organization's control?

6 Did the organization provide support (whether in the form of grants or the provision of services or fagilities) to
anyone other than (i} its supported organizations, {ii) individuals that are part of the charitable class benefited
by one or more of its supported organizations, or {jii} other supporting organizations that also support or
benefit one or more of the filing organization’s supported organizations? If “Yes,” provide detail in Part VI,

7 Did the organization provide a grant, loan, compensation, or other similar payment to a substantial contributor
(as defined in section 4258(c)H3)(C}), a family member of a substantial contributor, or a 35% controlled entity
with regard to a substantial contributor? if “Yes,” complete Part I of Schedule L (Form 990).

8  Did the organization make a loan to a disqualified person (as defined in section 4958} not described on line
77 If “*Yas,” complete Part | of Schedule L (Form 990).

9a Was the organization controlied directly or indirectly at any time during the tax year by one or more
disqualified persons, as defined in section 4946 {other than foundation managers and organizations
described in section 509(a)(1) ot {2))? If “Yes,” provide detall in Part Vi,
b Did one or more disgualified persons {as defined on line 9a) hold a controlling interest in any entity in which
the supporting organization had an interest? If “Yes,” provide detail in Part V1.
¢ Did a disgualified person (as defined on Iine 8a) have an ownership interest in, or derive any personal benefit [
from, agsets in which the supporting organization alsc had an interest? if “Yes,” provide detail in Part V. ’
10a Was the arganization subject to the excess business holdings rules of section 4943 because of section
4943(f) (regarding certain Type fi supporting organizations, and all Type Il non-functionally integrated
supporting organizations)? If “Yes,” answaer line 10b below.

b Did the organization have any excess business holdings in the tax year? {Use Schadule C, Form 4720, to |
determine whether the organization had excess business holdings.) 10b |

Schedule A (Form 990} 2023
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Schedule A (Form 990) 2023

Page 5

[P0\ Supporting Organizations {continted)

11 Has the arganization accepted a gift ar contribution from any of the following persons?
a A person who directly or indirectly confrols, either alone or together with persons described on lines 11b and
11¢ below, the governing body of a supported organization?

b Afamily member of a person described on line 11a above?
¢ A 36% controlled entity of a persen described on line 11a or 11b above? If “Yes” to line 11a, 11b, or 11c,
provide detail in Part V1.

Section B. Type 1 Supporting Organizations

1 Did the governing body, members of the governing body, officers acting in their official capacity, or membership of one or
more supported organizations have the power to regularly appoint or elect at teast a majority of the organization's officers,
directors, or trustees at all times during the tax year? ff “No,” describe in Part VI how the supported organization(s)
effectively operated, supenvised, or controlled the organization’s activities. If the organization had more than one supperted
organization, describe how the powers to appoint andfor remove officers, directors, or trustees were allocated among the
supported organizations and what conciitions or resfrictions, if any, applied to such powers during the tax year.

2  Did the organization operate for the benefit of any supported organization other than the supported
organization(s} that operated, supervised, or controlled the supporting organization? if “Yes,” explain in Part
VI how providing such benefit carried out the purposes of the supported organization(s) that operated,
supervised, or controlled the supporting organization.

Yes

No

Section C. Type [l Supporting Organizations

1 Wers a majority of the organization's directors or trustees during the tax year also a majority of the directors
or trustees of each of the organization’s supported organization(s)? If “No,” describe in Part VI how control
or management of the supporiing organization was vested In the same persons that controfied or managed
the supported organization{s}.

Y_es_

No

Section D. All Type Ill Supporting Organizations

1 Did the organization provide to each of its supported organizations, by the last day of the fifth month of the
organization’s tax year, (i) a writien notice descriking the type and amount of support provided during the prior tax
year, (i) a copy of the Form 920 that was most recently filed as of the date of notification, and (i} copies of the
organization's governing documents in effact on the date of notification, to the extent not previously provided?

2  Were any of the organization’s officers, directors, or trustees either (i) appointed or elected by the supported
organization(s), or {ii} serving on the govering body of a supported organization? If “No,” explain in Part VI

how the organization maintained a close and continuous working relationship with the supported organization(s).

3  Byreason of the relationship described on Iine 2, above, did the organization’s supported organizations have
a significant voice in the organization’s investment policies and in directing the use of the organization’s
income or assets at afl times during the tax year? If “Yes,” describe in Part VI the role the organization’s
stpported organizations played in this regard.

Yes

No

3

Section E. Type Il Functionally Integrated Supporting Organizations

1 Check the box next to the method that the organization used to satisfy the Integral Part Test during the year (see instructions).

a [IThe organization satisfied the Activities Test. Complete line 2 below.
b [ The organization Is the parent of each of its supported organizations. Complete line 3 below.

¢ [ The organization supported a governmental entity. Describe in Part VI how you stipported a governmental sntity (see instriictions).

2  Activities Test. Answer fines 2a and 2b below.

a Did substantially alt of the organization’s activities during the tax year directly further the exempt purposes of
the supported organization{s) to which the organization was responsive? If “Yes,” then in Part VI identify
those supported organizations and explain how these activities directly furthered thelr exempt purposes,
how the organization was responsive to those stpported organizations, and how the organization determined
that these activities constituted substantially afl of its activities.

b Did the activities described on line 2a, above, constituie activities that, but for the organization’s
involvement, one or more of the organizaticn’s supported organization(s) would have been engaged in? if
“Yes,” explain in Part Vi the reasons for the organization’s posilion that its supported organization(s) would
have engaged in these activities but for the organization’s involvement.

3  Parent of Supported Organizations. Answer lines 3a and 3b below.
a Did the organization have the power to regularly appoint or elect a majority of the officers, directors, or
trustess of each of the supported organizations? If “Yes” or “No,"” provide details in Part VI,

b Did the organization exercise a substantlal degree of direciion over the policies, programs, and activities of each
of lis supported organizations? /f “Yes,” describe in Part Vi the role played by the organization in this regard.

Schedule A (Form 990) 2023
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Schedule A {Form 990) 2023 Pags 6
Type Il Non-Functionally Integrated 505{a){3) Supporting Organizations

1 [ Check here if the organization satisfied the Integral Part Test as a qualifying trust on Nov. 20, 1970 {explain in Part V). See
instructions. All ather Type lIl non-functionally integrated supporting organizations must complete Sections A through E.

Section A--Adjusted Net Income (A) Prior Year (B) Current Year
{optional)

Net short-term capital gain

Recoveries of prior-year distributions

Other gross income (see instructions)

Add lines 1 through 3.

Degpreciation and depletion

Portion of operating expenses paid or incurred for preduction or collection
of gross income or for management, conservation, or maintenance of
property held for production of income (seg instructions) 6
7 Other expenses {see instructions) 7
8  Adjusted Net Income (subtract lines 5, 6, and 7 from line 4) 8

G (D=

& {5 |0 Ny =

. R . (B) Current Year
Section B—Minimum Asset Amount {A) Prior Year (optional)

4

1 Aggregate fair market value of all non-exempt-use assets (see
instructions for short tax year or assets held for part of year):
Average monthly value of securities

Average monthly cash balances

Fair market value of other non-exempt-use assets

Total {add lines 1a, 1b, and 1¢)

Discount claimed for blockage of other factors

(explain in detail in Part Vi)

0 (o |T(w

2 Acquisition indebtedness applicable to non-exempti-use assets 2
3  Subtract line 2 from line 1d. 3
4 Cash deemed held for exempt use. Enter 0.015 of line 3 {for greater amount,

see instructions). 4
5 _ Net value of non-exempt-use assets {subtract line 4 from line 3) 5
€  Muliiply line 5 by 0.035. 6
7 BRecoveries of prior-year distributions 7
8  Minimum Asset Amount (add line 7 to line 6) 8

Section C—Distributable Amount Current Year

1 Adjusted net income for prior year (from Section A, line 8, column A) 1
2  Enter 0.85 of line 1. 2
3 Minimum asset amount for prior year (from Section B, line 8, column A} 3
4  Enter greater of line 2 or line 3. 4
5 Income tax imposed in pricr year 5
6 Distributable Amount, Subtract line 5 from line 4, unless subject to

emergency temporary reduction (see instructions). 6
7 [ Check here if the current year is the organization’s first as a non- functionally integrated Type [Hl supportmg organization

(see instructions).
8chedule A (Form 990} 2023
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Schedule A {Form 990} 2023 Page 7
EEEEE__ Tvpe I Non-Functionally Integrated 509(a}(3) Supporting Organizations (continued)

Section D—Distributions Current Year

1 __Amounts paid to supported organizations to accomplish exempt purposes
2 Amounts paid to perform activity that directly furthers exempt purposes of supported
organizations, in excess of income from activity

Administrative expenses paid to accomplish exempt purposes of supported organizations
Amounts paid to acguire exempt-use assets
Qualified set-aside armounts (prior IRS approval required —pravide details in Part Vi)
Cther distributions (describe in Part VI, See Instructions.
Total annual distributions. Add lines 1 through 6,
Distributions to attentive supported organizations to which the organization Is responsive
{provide detalls in Part Vi). See instructions.

9 Distributable amount for 2023 from Saction C, line 6 9
10 Line 8 amount divided by line 9 amount 10

_(i) _— Underdigtlz'ibutions Distri(llalgtable

Excess Distributions Pre-2023 Amount for 2023

-

~[S |||

O~ ||

2]

Section E~Distribution Allocations (see instructions)

1 Distributable amount for 2023 from Section C, lne 6

2 Underdistributions, if any, for years prior to 2023

{reasonable cause required —explain in Part V1), See

instructions.

Excess distributions carryover, if any, to 2023

From2018 . . . .

From2019 . . ., .,

From2020 . . ., ., .

From2021 . . , , .,

From2022 . . ., ,

Total of lines 3a through 3e

Applied to underdistributions of prior years

Applied to 2023 distributable amount

Carryover from 2018 not applied (see instructions)

Remainder. Subtract lines 3g, 3h, and 3i from line 3f,

Distributions for 2023 from

Section D, line 7: $

a__ Applied to underdisiributions of prior years

Applied to 2023 distributable amaount

¢ Remainder. Subtract lines 4a and 4b from lins 4.

5 Remalning underdistributions for years prior to 2023, if
any. Subtract lines 3g and 4a from fine 2. For result
greater than zero, explain in Part VI. Ses instructions.

6 Remalning underdistributions for 2023. Subtract lines 3h
and 4b from line 1. For result greater than zero, explain in
Part V1. See instructions.

7 Excess distributions carryover to 2024, Add lings 3j
and 4c,

8 Breakdown of line 7:

Excess from2019 . |, |

Excess from 2020 ., . .

Excess from 2021 ., . .

Excess from 2022 . . .

Excess from 2023 ., . .

[

—— TR e oo o]

E-%

[~ 3

O (|6 (o
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Schadula A (Form 980 2023 Page 8

Supplemental Information. Provide the explanations required by Part Il, line 10; Part Il, line 17a or 17b; Part
lll, line 12; Part [V, Section A, lines 1, 2, 8b, 3¢, 4b, 4¢, 53, 6, 9a, 9b, 9¢, 114, 11b and11c Part IV, Sect:on
B, lines 1 and 2; Part IV, Section C, I|ne1 Part IV, Sectlon D, I|nes2 and 3; Part IV, Section E, lines 1c¢, 2a, 2b,
Sa and 3b; Part V, line 1; Part V, Sectlon B, line 1e; Part V, Sectlon D, lines 5, B, and 8; and Part V, Section E,
lines 2, 5, and 6. Also complete this part for any additional information. (See instructions.)
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Schedule B Schedule of Contributors OMB Mo, 1545.0047
{Form 990)

5 ot th Attach to Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF. 2@ 2 3
ln?g;:?’;:‘, eonu eesg\e{;i”w Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for the latest information.

Name of the organization Employer identification number
MERCY MEDICAL CENTER 52-0591658

Organization type (chack ons);

Filers of: Section:

Form 990 or 990-EZ 501 3 ) {enter number) organization
[ 4947(a)(1} nonexempt charitable trust not treated as a private foundation
[0 527 political organization

Form 990-PF (7 501(c)(3} exempt private foundation
[ 4947(a){(1) nonexempt charitable trust treated as a private foundation

] 501(c)(3) taxable private foundation

Check if your organization is covered by the General Rule or a Special Rule,

Note: Only a section 501(c)(7), (8), or (10) organization can check boxes for both the General Rule and a Special Rule. See
instructions.

General Rule

For an organization filing Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF that recelved, during the year, contributions totaling $5,000
or more (in maoney or property} from any one contributor, Complete Parts | and 1. See instructions for determining a
contributor’s total contributions.

Special Rules

[0 For an organization described in section 501{c)(3) filing Form 290 or 990-EZ that met the 331/2% support test of the
regulations under sections 509(a)(1) and 170(b)(1)}{A)vi}, that checked Schedule A {Form 920), Part I, line 13, 16a, or
16b, and that received from any one contributor, during the year, total contributions of the greater of (1) $5,000; or
{2 2% of the amount on {j) Form 980, Part VI, line 1h; or (i} Form 990-EZ, line 1. Complete Parts | and I,

[] For an organization described in section 501(c)(7), (8}, or (10} filing Form 990 or 990-EZ that received from any one
contributor, during the year, total contributions of more than $1,000 exclusively for religious, charitable, scientific,
literary, or educational purposes, or for the prevention of cruelty to children or animals. Complete Parts | {entering
“N/A” in column (b) Instead of the contributor name and addrass), 11, and liI.

[T For an organization described in section 501(c)(7), (8), or (10} filing Form 990 or 990-EZ that received from any one
contributor, during the year, contributions exclusively for religious, charitable, ete., purposes, but no such
contributions totaled more than $1,000. If this box is checked, enter here the total contributions that were received
during the year for an exclusively religious, charitable, etc., purpose. Don't complete any of the parts unless the
General Rule applies to this organization becauss it received nonexclusively religious, charitable, etc., contributions
tofaling $5,000 or more during theyear . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . &%

Caution: An organization that isn't covered by the General Rule and/or the Special Rules doesn't file Scheduls B {Form 990), but it
must answer “No” on Part IV, line 2, of its Form 990; or check the box on line H of its Form 990-EZ or on its Form 980-PF, Part |, line
2, to certify that it doesn't meet the filing requirements of Schedule B (Form 990).

For Paperwork Reduction Act Motice, see the instructions for Form 990, 980-EZ, or 980-PF, Cat. No. 30813X Schedule B {Form 980) {2023)
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Schedule 8 {Form 990) (2023) Page 2
Name of organization Employer identification humber
MERCY MEDICAL CENTER 52-0591658
Contributors (see instructions). Use duplicate copies of Part | if additional space is needed.
{a) {b} {c) ()
No. Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Total contributions Type of contribution
R Person
Payrolt |
________ 5,677,306 Noncash ]
{Complete Part |l for
- ) noncash contributicns.)
(a) (b) (c) {d)
No. Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Total contributions Type of contribution
Person |
Payroll M
N Noncash |
{Complete Part Il for
noncash contributions.}
{a) (k) (c} (d)
No. Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Total contributions Type of contribution
B e Person |
Payroll O
B e Noncash |
) - ——{Complete Part Il for
e 7 noncash contributions.)
{a) {b) (c) {ch)
No. Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Total contributions Type of contribution
________ N i Person |
Payroll A
N Noncash O
{Complete Part Il for
___________ noncash contributicns,)
(a) (b) (c) ()
No. Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Total contributions Type of contribution
Person [
Payroll [
Noncash O
{Complete Part Il for
noncash contributions.)
{a) () {c) ()
No. Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Total cantributions Type of contribution
________ 3 i Person O
Payroll O
...... . Noncash O
(Complete Fart Il for
} noncash contributions.)

Mercy Medlcal Center
52-0591658

Schedule B {Form 990) (2023}
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Schedule B {Form 990) (2023)

Page 3

Name of organization
MERCY MEDRICAL CENTER

Employer identification number

52-05916E8

Noncash Property (see instructions). Use duplicate copies of Part Il if additional space is needed.

(i;l) No. (o) {c) {d)
rom . . FMV {or estimate) .
Part | Description of noncash property given (Seo instructions) Date received
rom N . FMV {(or estimate) :
Part | Description of noncash property given (See instructions.) Date received
{a} No. (b} {c} ()
from - : FMV {or estimate) .
Part | Description of noncash property given (See instructions.) Date received
(a) No. {c)
from Description of nonf:lish roperty given FMV {or estimate) Dat ::t): ived
Part | P prop 9 {See instructicns.) e elve
a) No.
{fzom Description of nonjzllsh roperty given FMV (or(z)stimate) Date :Sl ived
Parti p property g {See instructions.) elve
No.
(?I)'OITI (o) FMV (or(z)stimate) )
Part | Description of noncash property given Date received

{See Instructions.)

Mercy Medical Center

52-0591658

Schedule B {Form 990} [2023)
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Schadule B (Form 990) {2023)

Page 4
Name of organization Employer identification number
MERCY MEDICAL CENTER 52-0591658
Part 1l

Exclusively religious, charitable, etc., contributions to organizations described in section 501{(c)(7), (8), or

(10) that total more than $1,000 for the year from any one contributor. Compleste columns (a) through {e) and

the following line entry. For organizations completing Part Ill, enter the total of exclusively religious, charitable, etc.,
contributions of $1,000 or less for the year. (Enter this information once. Ses instructions.) $

Use duplicate copies of Part lll if additional space is needed,

a} No. . .
(]g}orﬂ {b) Purpose of gift {c} Use of gift (d) Description of how gift is held
a
(e) Transfer of gift
Transferee's name, address, and ZIP + 4 Relationship of transferor to transferee
{a) No. . . - .
|f>r°rrtn| (b} Purpose of gift {c) Use of gift {d) Description of how gift is held
al
{e) Transfer of gift
Transferee’s name, address, and ZIP + 4 Relationship of transferor to transferece
(a) No. . . - o
|!;rurl:ql {b) Purpose of gift {c) Use of gift {d} Description of how gift is held
i
{e) Transfer of gift
Transferee's name, address, and ZIP + 4 Relationship of transferor to transferee
(a) No. . . - .
lgrorr;l[ {h} Purpose of gift {c) Use of gift {d} Description of how gift is held
a
{e} Transfer of gift
Transferee's name, address, and ZIP + 4 Relationship of transferor to transferee

Mercy Medical Center
52-0591658

Schedule B {Form 990} (2023)
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SCHEDULE C Political Campaign and Lobbying Activities |_owe . 1545-0047

(Form 990) 2 @ 2 3

For Organizations Exempt From Income Tax Under Section 501(c) and Section 527
Department of the Treasury Gomplete if the organization is described below. Attach to Form 980 or Form 990-EZ. Open to Public -
Internal Revenue Service Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information. Inspection.

lf the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 3, or Form 990-EZ, Part V, line 46 {Political Campaign Activities), then:
* Section 501(c)(3) organizations: Complate Parts I-A and B. Do not complete Part |-C.
* Section 501{c} {other than section 501{c)(3)) organizations: Cemplete Parts [-A and C below, Do not complete Part |-B.
* Section 627 organizatiens: Complete Part I-A only.
If the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 4, or Form 990-EZ, Part V), line 47 {Lobbying Activities), then:
* Sectlon 501(c){8) organlzations that have filed Form 5768 (slection under section 501(h)): Complete Part II-A. Do not complete Part |I-B.
» Section 501{c)(3) organizations that have NOT filed Form 5768 (election under section 501{h)): Complete Part II-B. Do not complete Part Il-A.

If the organization answered “Yes” on Farm 980, Part IV, line 5 (Proxy Tax) (see separate instructions) or Form 990-EZ, Part V, line 35¢ (Proxy
Tax)} (see separate instructions), then:

* Section 501(c){4), {5), or {6) crganizations: Complete Part Il
Name of organization Employer identification number
MERCY MEDICAL CENTER 52-0591658
\ Complete if the organization is exempt under section 501{c) or is a section 527 organization.
1 Provide a description of the organization’s direct and indirect political campaign activities In Part IV, See instructions for
definition of “political campaign activities,”
2  Political campaign activity expenditures. See instructions . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $
3 Volunteer hours for political campaign activities. See instructions . . . . . .
Complete if the organization is exempt under section 501(c)(3).

1 Enter the amount of any excise tax incurred by the organization under section 4955 ., , . . . $
2 Enter the amount of any excise tax incurred by organization managers under section 4955 . $
3  Ifthe organization incurred a section 4955 tax, did it file Form 4720 forthisyear? . . . . . . . . . [ |Yes [_]No
4a Wasacorectionmade? . . . . . . . . . . . . ... ... .. ... .....[]Yes []No

b If “Yes,” describe in Part V.
onamel  Complete if the organization is exempt under section 501(c}, except section 501(c)(3).
1 Enter the amount directly expended by the filing organization for section 527 exempt function
activities
2 Enter the amount of the filing erganization’s funds contributed to other organizations for section
527 exempt functionactivities . . . . . . . . . . . . . ... L. L L.
3 Total exempt function expenditures. Add lines 1 and 2. Enter here and on Form 1120-POL,
ine7b . . . . . .. L oo s
4  Didthe filing organization file Form 1120-POL for thisyear? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . [ []Yes [ ]No
5  Enter the names, addresses, and employer identification number (EIN} of all section 527 pelitical organlzations to which the filing
organization made payments. For each organization listed, enter the amount paid from the filing organization’s funds. Also enter
the amount of political conttibutions received that were promptly and directly delivered to a separate political organization, such
as a separate segregated fund or a political action committee (PAC). If additional space is heeded, provide Information in Part IV.

{a) Name {b) Address {c} EIN (¢l) Amount paid from {e) Amount of political
filing organization’s contributions recelved and
funds. If none, enter -0-. promptly and directly
delivered to a separate
political organization.
If none, enter -0-,
) ]
@
5]
Y e SR —
(5}
(6}
For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ. Cat. No. 500848 Schadule C (Form 890) 2023
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Schedule G {Form 990) 2023

Page 2

section 501(h}).

Complete if the organization is exempt under section 501{c)(3) and filed Form 5768 (election under

A Check [ if the filing organization belongs to an affillated group (and list in Part IV each affiliated group member's name, address,
EIN, expenses, and share of excess lobbying expenditures).

B_Check [T if the filing organization checked box A and “limited control” provisions apply.

Limits on Lobbying Expenditures
{The term “expenditures” means amounts paid or incurred.)

(a) Fillng
organization's totals

{b)Affliiated
group totals

Other exempt purpose expenditures .

"o Qo0 Do

columns.

Total lobbying expenditures to influence public opinion {grassroots lobbying)
Total lobbying expenditures to influence a legislative body {dirsct lobbying)
Total lobbying expenditures (add lines 1a and 1b)

Total exempt purpose expenditures (add lines 1 ¢ and 1d) .o
Lobbying nontaxable amount. Enter the amaunt from the following table in both

If the amount on line 1e, column {a} or (b} is:

The lobbying nontaxable amount is:

not over $500,000,

20% of the amount on line 1e.

over $500,000 but rot over $1,000,000,

$100,000 plus 15% cf the excess over $500,000.

over $1,000,000 but not over $1,500,000,

$175,000 plus 10% of the excess over $1,000,000.

over $1,500,000 but not over $17,000,000,

$225,000 plus 5% of the excess over $1,500,000.

over $17,000,000,

$1,000,000,

_—- e

reporting section 4911 tax for this year? .

Grassroots nontaxable amount {enter 25% of line 1)
Subtract line 1g from line 1a. If zero or less, enter -0-
Subtract line 1f from line 1¢, If zere or less, enter -0- .
If there is an amount other than zero on either line 1h or Ilne 1| d|d the organizatlon file Form 4720

|:|No

Yes

4-Year Averaglng Period Under Section 501 (h)
{Some organizations that made a section 501{h) election do not have to complete all of the five columns below.

See the separate instructions for lines 2a through 2f.)

Lobbying Expenditures During 4-Year Averaging Period

Calendar year (or fiscal year
beginning in}

{a) 2020 () 2021

{c) 2022

{d) 2023

{e} Total

2a lLobbying nontaxable amount

b Lobbying ceiling amount
(150% of line 2a, column (&)}

¢ Total lobbying expenditures

d Grassroots nontaxable amount

e Grassroots ceiling amount
{150% of line 2d, column {e)

f Grassroots lobbying expenditures

Mercy Medical Center
52-0591658

27

Schedule C (Form 990} 2023

4/8/2025 11:35:20 AM



Schedule C (Form 990) 2023 Page 3

L]  Complete if the organization is exempt under section 501(c)(3) and has NOT filed Form 5768
{election under section 501(h}).

For each “Yes” response on lines 1a through 1i below, provide in Part IV a detaifed € )
description of the lobbying activity. Yos | No Amount

1 During the year, did the filing organizatior: attempt to influsnce forelgn, natlonal, state, or local

legislation, including any attempt to influence public opinion on a legislative matter or

referendum, through the use of:

Volunteers?

Paid staff or management (rnolucle oompensatu)n in expenses reported on lrnes 1c through 11)?

Media advertisements? .

Mailings tc members, legislators, or the publtc?

Publications, or publishad or broadcast statements? e e e e

Grants to other organizations for lobbying purposes? . . . . .. v 87,500

Direct contact with legislators, their staffs, government officials, or a Ieglslatlve body’?

Rallies, demonstrations, seminars, conventions, speeches, lectures, or any similar means? .

Other activities?

Total. Add lines 1c through 1i

Did the activities in line 1 cause the orgamzaﬂon to not be descnbed in sectlon 501{0)(3}'?

If “Yes,” enter the amount of any tax incurred under section 4912

c If *Yes,” enter the amount of any tax incurred by organization managers under sectlon 4912
If the filing organization incurred a section 4912 tax, did it file Form 4720 for this year?

ASAN

6,765
94,265

i

_——Te et o0 oW

[
o

o

Complete if the organization is exempt under section 501(c)(4), section 501{c}{5), or section
501{c}{6}).
Yes | No
1 Were substantially all (30% or more) dues received nondeductible by members? . . . . . . . . . 1
2 Did the organization make only in-hcuse lobbying expenditures of $2,000 or less? . . . 2
3 Did the organizaticn agree to carry over lobbying and political campaign activity expenditures from the prror year? 3

scullls  Complete if the organization is exempt under section 501(c)(4), section 501(c)(5), or section 501(c)(6}
and if either {a) BOTH Part lll-A, lines 1 and 2, are answered “No” OR (b) Part llI-A, line 3, is answered
“Yes n
1 Dues, assessments and similar amounts from members . .
2 Section 162(g} nondeductible lobbying and political expendlturee {do not mclude amounts of
political expenses for which the section 527(f) tax was paid).
a Currentyear . .
b Carryover from last year .
¢ Total .
3 Aggregate amount reported in sectron 6033(e)(1)(A) notrcee of nondeduotlb!e sectlon 162(e) duee
4 If notices were sent and the amount on line 2c exceeds the amount on line 3, what portion of the
excess does the organization agree to carryover tc the reasonable estimate of nondeductible lobbying
and political expenditures next year? . .
5 Taxable amount of lobbying and political expenchtures See |nstruot|ons .
Supplemental Information
Provide the descriptions required for Part I-A, line 1; Part [-B, line 4; Part I-C, line 5; Part |I-A (affiliated group list); Part II-A, lines 1 and
2 (see instructions); and Part II-B, line 1. Also, complete this part for any additional information.
SEE NEXT PAGE

Schedule C (Form 990} 2023
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s e LPartiv Supplemental Information. Provide the descriptions requirad for Part I-A, line 1; Part I-B, line 4; Part
y — I-C, line 5; Part II-A (afflliated group list); Part 11-4, lines 1 and 2 (see Instructions); and Part II-B, line 1,
Also, complete this part for any additional information.

Refurn Referance - Identifier Explanation

SCHEDULE C, PART II-B,  |IN THE TAX YEAR 2023 MERCY MEDICAL CENTER CONTRIBUTED $84,000 TO PERRY, WHITE, ROSS, &

LINE 1 - DETAILED JACOBSON, LL.C AND $3,500 DLP PIPER LLC TO LOBBY AGAINST LEGISLATION DETERMINED TO BE ADVERSE
DESCRIPTION OF THE TO MERCY MEDICAL CENTER INC. AND LOBBY IN FAVOR OF MATTERS OF INTEREST AND CONCERN TC
LOBBYING ACTIVITY MERCY MEDICAL CENTER INC,

MERCY MEDICAL CENTER IS A MEMEER OF THE MARYLAND HOSPITAL ASSOCIATION AND THE GREATER

BALTIMORE COMMITTEE. A PORTION OF DUES PAID IS ALLOCATED TO LOBBYING EFFORTS ON BEHALF OF

THE MEMBERSHIP BODY. THE APPROXIMATE PORTION OF DUES PAID FOR THE YEAR THAT CONSTITUTEDR

E%IRABJJNG WAS 86,365 TO THE MARYLAND HOSPITAL ASSOCIATION AND $400 TC THE GREATER BALTIMORE
ITTEE.

Mercy Medical Center 29 4/8/2025 11;35:20 AM
52-0591658



SCHEDULE D Supplemental Financial Statements |08 No. 15450047

(Form 990) Complete if the arganization answered “Yes” on Form 990, 2 @23
PartIV, line 6,7, 8, 9, 10, 11a, 11b, 11¢, 11d, 11e, 111, 123, or 12b. ! : ] :

Depertment of the Treasury Attach to Form 990. ¢ ‘Open to Public

Internal Revenue Service Go to www.irs.gov/Form880 for instructions and the latest information. . Inspection

Mame of tha arganization _Employer identifleation number

MERCY MEDICAL CENTER 52-0591658

AR Grganizations Maintaining Donor Advised Funds or Other Similar Funds or Accounts
Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 6.

{a) Donor advised funds (b} Funds and other accounts

1 Total number at end of year .
2 Aggregate value of contributions to (durlng year}
3  Aggregate value of grants from (during year)
4  Aggregate value at end of year .
5 Did the crganization inform all donors and donor advisors in writing that the assets held in donor advised

funds are the organization’s property, subject to the organization's exclusive legal control? . . . . . . O Yes [ Mo
6 Did the organization inform all grantees, donors, and donor advisors in writing that grant funds can be used

only for charitable purposes and not for the benefit of the donor or donor advisor, or for any other purpose
conferring impermissible private berefit? . . . . . . . . . . . . .. oL L L L. [ Yes [ No

Conservation Easements
Complete If the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 7.
1 Purpose(s} of conservation easements held by the organization {check all that apply).
[ Preservation of land for public use {for examgls, recraation or education)  [] Preservation of a historlcally important land area
] Protection of natural habitat [] Preservation of a certified historic structure
L] Preservation of open space
2  Gomplete lines 2a through 2d if the organization held a qualifled conservation contribution in the form of a conservation

easement on the last day of the tax year. T Held at the End of the Tax Year

a Total number of conservation easements o e e 2a

b Total acreage restricted by conservation easements . . . . 2b

¢ Number of conservation easements on a certified historic structure mcluded on Ilne 2a - . |2

d Number of conservation easements inciuded on line 2¢ acquired after July 25, 2008, and not
on a historic structure listed in the National Register . . . . . . . . . . . . . |ag

8 Number of conservation sasements modified, transferred, released, extinguished, or terminated by the organization during the

tax year

violations, and enforcement of the conservation easementsitholds? . . . . . . . . . . . . . [ Yes [] No
6  Staff and volunteer hours devoted to monitoring, inspecting, handling of violations, and enforcing conservation easements during the vear

8  Does each conservation easement reported on line 2d above satisfy the requirements of section 170{h}(4)(B)'
and section 170(NA@B)IH? . . . . . .+ - [OYes [JNo
9 In Part XIll, describe how the organization reports coneervatlon easements in its revenue and expense statement and balance
sheet, and include, if applicable, the text of the foctnote to the organization’s financial statements that describes the
organization's accounting for conservation easements.

Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets
Completa If the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 8.
1a If the organization elected, as permitted under FASB ASC 958, not to report in its revenua statement and balance sheet works
of an, historical treasures, ot other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of public
setvice, provide in Part Xl the text of the footnote to its financial statements that describes these itemns.

b If the organization elected, as permitted under FASB ASC 958, to report in its revenue statement and balance sheet works of
art, historical treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, ar research in furtherance of public service,
pravide the following amounts relating to these items.

{i) Revenueincluded on Form 990, Part Vil linet . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . &
(if} Assets included in Form 99¢, Part X . . . . $

2 If the organization received or held works of art, hrstorlcal treasures or other S|m||ar assets for flnanmai gain, provide the
following amounts required to be reported under FASB ASC 958 relating to these items.

a Revenus included on Form 890, Part Vil lined . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . &
b Asseis hcludedin Form 990, PartX . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ., ..., ... %
For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Cat. No. 52283D Schedule D (Form 990} 2023
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Schedule D {Form 990) 2023 Page 2
Part I Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets (continued)

a
b

¢
4

5

Using the organization’s acquisition, accession, and other records, check any of the following that make significant use of its
collection items (check all that apply).

[ Public exhibition d [ Lean or exchange program

[T scholarly research e [] Other

[ Preservation for future generations

Provide a description of the organization’s coliections and explain how they further the organization's exempt purpose In Part
Xl

During the year, did the organization solicit or recelve donations of art, historical freasures, or other similar

assets to be sold to raise funds rather than to be maintained as part of the organization's collection? . .  [] ves [ No

M:-4VE Escrow and Custodial Arrangements

Complete If the organization answered “Yes” on Form 920, Part IV, line 9, or reported an amount on Form
990, Part X, line 21.

1a Is the organization an agent, trustee, custodian, or other intermediary for eontributions or other assets not

included on Form €80, PartX? . . . . . e e -+« .+« . - . [1Yes [1No
b If "Yes,” explain the arrangement in Part Xlll and complete the fcllowmg table

Amount
¢ Beginningbalance . . . . . . . . . . . . . . L L L. ic
d Additionsduringtheyear . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . L. 1d
e Distributions duringtheyear . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. 1e
f Ending balance . . . 1
2a Did the organization |nclude an amount on Form 990 PartX I|ne 21 for B3CIOW Of cus’rodlal account liability? [ Yes [1 No
b _If "*Yes,” explain the arrangement in Part XIIl. Check here if the explanation has been provided in Part XIll . . . L]
i Endowment Funds
Complete if the organization answered “Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 10,
(a) Current year {b) Prior year {c) Two years back | [d} Three years back | (e} Four years hack

1a Beginning of year balance . . 1,123,000 1,123,000 1,123,000 1,123,000 1,123,000
b Contributions .
¢ Net investment earnings, galns and

losses . .o
d Grants or scholarships
e Other expenditures for facilities and

programs . -
f Administrative expenses .
g Endofyearbalance . . . 1,123,000 1,123,000 1,123,000 1,123,000 1,123,000
2  Provide the estimated percentage of the current year end balance {ling 1g, column (&)} held as:
a Board designated or guasi-endowment | 0.60 %
b Permanent endowment 100.00 %
¢ Termendowment _ 0.00 %

b

The percentages on lines 2a, 2b and 2¢ should equal 100%.
Are there endowment funds not in the possession of the crganization that are held and administered for the

organization by: Yes| No
() Unrelated organizations? . . . . . . . . L L. L. L L L 0 e e, 3ali} v
(ii} Related crganizations? . . . e < 1T
If “Yes” on line 3a{ii}, are the related organlzahons hsted as reqwred oh Schedule H’P e e e e 3b | v

Describe in Part Xl the intended uses of the organization's endowment funds.

Land, Buildings, and Equipment

Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 11a. See Form 990, Part X, line 10.

Description of property (a} Costorother basis | {b) Cost or other basis (o} Accumulated {d} Book vaiue
(invastment) {cthar) depreciation
ifa Land . . . . . . . . . . .. 16,269,668 |* 18,269,668
b Buildings . . . e e e . 502,428,458 276,194,766 226,233,692
¢ leasehold |mprovements o . 102,678,147 24,302,507 78,375,640
d Equipment . . . . . . . . . . 267,816,982 218,827,620 48,829,362
e Other . . . 102,884,733 102,884,733
Total, Add lines 1a through 1e (Co!umn (d) must equal Form 990, Part X, line 10¢c, column (B) . . . . . 472,753,095
Schedule D (Form 980) 2023
Mercy Medical Center H 4/8/2025 11:35:20 AM
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Schedule D {Form 990) 2023

Page 3

[Z1eBUll  Investments— Other Securities
Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on For

m 980, Part IV, line 11b. See Form 990, Part X, line 12.

{a) Description of security or category
{including name of sacurity)

(b} Book value {c} Mathod of valuaticn:

Cost or end-of-year market value

(1) Financlal derivatives .
{2} Closely held equity interests .
(3) Other

w o

{B)

<

D)

Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990 Part X, line 12, col. (B))

EEERYN  [nvestments—Program Related
Complete if the organization answerad “Yes” on For

m 990, Part IV, line 11c. See Form 990, Part X, line 13,

(a) Description of Investment

[es} Book value {c} Method of valuation:

Cost or end-of-year market value

{1

{2)

{3}

4

{5}

(6}

{7

@

L)

Total. (Column (b} must equal Form 990, Part X, line 13, col. (B))

[TTIL® Other Assets
Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on For

m 990, Part IV, line 11d. See Form 990, Part X, line 15.

{a) Description

{b) Book value

U]

{2

{8

{4

{5)

{6

@

8

@)

Total. (Co!umn (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, line 15, col. (B)) .

Other Liabilities

Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 11e or 11f, Ses Form 990, Part X

line 25,

1. (a} Descripticn of liabllity {h) Book value
(1) Federal income taxes
2y POST RETIREMENT OBLIGATION 5,634,453
(3) MERRILL LYNGH SWAP 4,286,056
(4 RETIREMENT ANNUITY PLAN OBLIGATION 1,004,700
(5) ESTIMATED TAIL LIAB GIC 6,642,000
8y OTHER 4,183,034
(7}
8)
e

Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, line 25, col. (B) . 21,651,143

2. Liability for uncertain tax positions. In Part XlIf, provide the text of the footnote to the orgamzatlon s f|nanc:|al statements that reports the
organization’s liability for uncertain tax positions under FASB ASC 740. Check here if the text of the footnote has been provided in Bart XIII |

Mercy Medical Center
52-0591658
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Schedule B (Form $90} 2023

EZRE Reconciliation of Revenue per Audited Financial Statements With Revenue per Return
Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 12a.

Page 4

1  Total revenue, gains, and other suppert per audited financial statements | 1
2 Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 980, Part VI, line 12:
a Net unrealized gains (losses) on investments 2a
b Donated services and use of facilities 2b
¢ Recoverles of prior year grants . 2c
d Other {Describe in Part XIIL.} . 2d
e Add lines 2athrough 2d .
3  Subtract line 2e from line 1 . .
4  Amounts included on Form 990, Part VIII llne 12 but not on Ilne 1
a Investment expenses not included on Form 990, Part VIH, line 7b 4a
b Giher (Describe in Part XII1.) . 4b :
¢ Addlines 4a and 4b . . 4c
5  Total revenue. Add lines 3 and 4e. (T h.'s must equa! Form 990 Paru !me 12 ) 5
Reconciliation of Expenses per Audited Financial Statements With Expenses per Return
Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 980, Part IV, line 12a.
1 Total expenses and [osses per audited financlal statemants
2 Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 990, Part IX, line 25;
a Donated services and use of facilities 2a
b Prior year adjustments 2b
¢ Other losses . 2¢
d Other {Describe in F’art XIII ) 2d
e Add lines 2a through 2d .
3  Subtract line 2e from line 1 . .
4  Amounts included on Form 990, Part IX, Ilne 25 but not on Ilne 1:
a [nvestment expenses not included on Form 890, Part VI, line 7b da
b Gther (Describe In Part XIIL) . 4b
¢ Add lines 4a and 4b 4c
5  Total expenses. Add lines 3 and 4c (T h.'s must equaf Form 990 Part l, !me 18 ) 5

X Supplemental Information

Provide the descriptions required for Part Il, lines 3, 5, and 9; Part lil, lines 1a and 4; Part IV, lines 1b and 2b; Part V, line 4; Part X, line
2; Part X, lines 2d and 4b; and Part XlI, lines 2d and 4b, Also complete this part to provids any additional information.

SEE STATEMENT

Mercy Medical Center
520591658
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o Part XN

- B Supplemental Informatlon, Provide the descriptions required for Part Il, lines 3, 5, and 9: Part Ill,
j lines 1a and 4; Part IV, lines 1b and 2b; Part V, line 4; Part X, line 2; Part XI, linas 2d and 4b; and Part
X, lines 2d and 4b. Alsc complete this part to provide any additional information,

Return Reference - dentifier

Explanation

SCHEDULE D, PART v,
LINE 4 - INTENDED USES
OF ENDOWMENT FUNDS

$1,123,000 OF THE ENDOWMENT FUND BALANCE STEMS FROM A PERMANENT ENDOWMENT ADMINSTERED
AND HELD BY MERCY HEALTH FOUNDATION, A RELATED ENTITY OF MERCY MEDICAL CENTER. THE
PURPOSE OF THE ENDOWMENT IS TO S8UPPORT THE HEALTHCARE MINISTRY OF THE SISTERS OF MERCY
AT MERCY MEDICAL CENTER.

SCHEDULE D, PART X,
LINE 2 - FIN 48 (ASC 740)
FOOTNOTE

MHS, MMC, SMI, MFG, SPPS, MHF, AND MSS ARE NOT-FOR-PROFIT ORGANIZATIONS EXEMPT FROM
FEDERAL INCOME TAXES UNDER SECTION 501{CE)(_5|§) OF THE INTERNAL REVENUE CODE, AND ARE
THEREFORE NOT SUBJECT TO FEDERAL INCOME TAX UNDER CURRENT INCOME TAX REGULATIONS. MHS
SUBSIDIARIES OTHERWISE EXEMPT FROM FEDERAL AND STATE TAXATION ARE NONETHELESS SUBJECT
TO TAXATIONC%TMCORF’ORATE TAX RATES AT BOTH THE FEDERAL AND STATE LEVEL ON THEIR UNRELATED
BUSINESS IN E.

CURRENT ACCOUNTING STANDARDS DEFINE THE THRESHOLD FOR RECOGNIZING UNCERTAIN INCOME TAX
RETURN FOSITIONS IN THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS "MORE LIKELY THAN NOT" THAT THE POSITION IS
SUSTAINABLE, BASED ON ITS TECHNICAL MERITS, AND ALSO PROVIDE GUIDANCE ON THE MEASUREMENT,
CLASSIFICATION AND DISCLOSURE OF TAX RETURN POSITIONS IN THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.
MANAGEMENT BELIEVES THERE IS NO IMPACT ON MHS' ACCOMPANYING CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS RELATED TO UNCERTAIN INCOME TAX POSITIONS.

Mercy Medical Center
520591658
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SCHEDULE F

iviti i H OMB No. 1545-0047
(Form 990) Statement of Activities Outside the United States |

2023

. Open 1o Public
" Inspection -
Name of the organization Employer identification number
MERCY MEDICAL CENTER 52-0591658

m General Information on Activities Outside the United States. Complets if the organization answered “Yes” on
Form 990, Part IV, line 14b.

1 For grantmakers. Does the organization maintain records to substantiate the amount of its grants and
other assistance, the grantees’ eligibility for the grants or assistance, and the selection criterla used to
award the granis orassistance? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. ... ... .[0OYes [ONo

Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 14b, 15, or 16.
Attach to Form 990,
Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information.

Department of the Treasury
Internal Revanue Service

2  For grantmakers, Describe in Part V the organization’s procedures for monitoring the use of its grants and other assistance
outside the United States,

3 Activities per Region. (The following Part |, line 3 table can be duplicated if additional space is nesded.)

{a) Reglon (b) Number | {c) Numberof | (i Activities conducted In the (e} i activity I'sted in (d} s (A Total

of offices in empltoyeeso} regicn (by type) (such as, a program service, oxpenditures for
the reglon iﬁ%e" esﬁggnt fundralsing, program services, describe specific type of and Investments
c oﬁltara clors investments, grants to reciplents sarvice{s) in the reglen in the ragion

in the region located in the region)
CENTRAL AMERICA AND THE INVESTMENTS

(1) CARIBBEAN o 9

4,791,317

()

{3)

4

(5}

(6)

0

{8)

9)

(10)

(11)

(12)

(13)

{14)

(15)

(16}

{17}
3a Subtotal

b Total from continuation
sheets to Part | . .
¢ Totals (add lines 3a and 3b) 0 0 4,791,317

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990, Cat. No. 50082W Schedule F (Form 290) 2023

4,791,317
0

Mercy Medical Center 35 4812025 11:35:20 AM
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Schedule F (Form 990) 2023 Page 4
A Foreign Forms

1 Was the organization a U.S. transferor of property to a foreign corporation during the tax vear? if “Yes,”
the organization may be required to file Form 926, Return by a U.S. Transferor of Property to & Foreign
Corporation (see Instructions for Form 826) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. Yes [ No

2 Did the organization have an interest in a foreign trust during the tax year? If “Yes,” the organization may
be required to separately file Form 3520, Annual Return To Report Transactions With Foreign Trusts and
Receipt of Certain Fareign Gifts, and/or Form 3520-A, Annual Information Return of Foreign Trust With a
U.S. Owner (see Instructions for Forms 3520 and 3520-A: don't file with Form990) . . . . . . . [O Yes No

3 Did the organization have an ownership interest in a foreign corporation during the tax year? If “Yes,”
the organization may be required to file Form 5471, Information Return of U.S. Persons With Respect to
Certain Foreign Corporations (see Instructions for Form 5474) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Yes [] No

4  Was the organization a direct or indirect shareholder of a passive foreign investment company or a
quaiified electing fund during the tax year? If “Yes,” the organization may be required to file Form 8621,
Information Return by a Shareholder of a Passive Forelgn investment Company or Qualified Electing
Fund (see Instructions for Form 8621) . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. Yes [ No

5 Did the organization have an ownership interest in a foreign partnership during the tax year? i “Yes,”
the organization may be required to file Form 8865, Return of U.S. Persons With Respact to Certain
Foreign Partnerships (see Instructions for Form 8865) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . [OVYes No

6  Did the organization have any operations in or related to any boycotting countries during the tax year? if
"Yes,” the organization may be required to separately file Form 5713, International Boycoit Report (see
Instructions for Form 5713; don't flewith Form 880). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . [Yes No

Schedule F (Form 990} 2023
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Supplemental Informatlon. Provide the information required by Part |, line 2 (monitoring of funds);
Part|, line 3, column {f) (accounting method;amounts of investmenits vs. expenditures per region); Part
Ii, line 1 {accounting method); Part 111 (accounting methed); andPart I, column #c) {estimated number
of recipientsi), as applicable. Also complete this part to provide any additional information {(see
instructions).

Return Reference - Identifier Explanation

SCHEDULE F, PART [, LINE | CENTRAL AMERICA AND THE CARIBBEAN -ACCRUAL
3 -METHOD USED TO
AGCCOUNT FOR
EXPENDITURES ON OR(G'S
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Mercy Medical Center 39 A18/2025 11:35:20 AM
52-0591658



SCHEDULE H

(Form

Department of the Treasury
Internal Revenue Service

990)

Attach to Form 990,
Go to www.irs.gov/Form980 for instructions and the latest information.

Name of the organization

= OMEB No, 1845-0047
Hospitals | o
Complete if the arganization answered “Yes” an Form 990, Part IV, question 20a, 2 @23

", 0pen.to. Public

“ Inspection
Employer Identification number
MERCY MEDICAL CENTER 52 | 05916568

EZTARW  Financial Assistance and Certain Other Community Benefits at Gost

1a

Did the organization have a financial assistance policy during the tax year? If “No,” skip to question Ba.

b If “Yes,” was it a written policy? .
2  If the organization had multiple hospital fac|||t|es Indrcate WhICh of the followmg best descrtbes apphcatlon of
the financial assistance policy to its various hospital facilities during the tax year:
O Applied uniformly to all hospital facilities [ Applied uniformly to most hospital facilities
] Generally tallored to individual hospital facilities
3 Answer the following based on the financial assistance eligibility criteria that applied to the largest number of
the organization’s patients during the tax year.
a Did the organization use Federal Poverty Guidelines {FPG) as a factor In determining eligibility for providing
free care? If “Yes,” indicate which of the following was the FPG family income limit for eligibility for free care:
1 100% [ 150% 200% [ Other %
b Did the erganization use FPG as a factor in determining eligibility for providing discounted care? If “Yes,”
indicate which of the following was the family income limit for eligibility for discounted care:
[1200% 1250% [J300% [O350% [ 400% Other 500 %
¢ K the organization used factors other than FPG in determining eligibility, describe in Part VI the criteria used
for determining eliglbility for free or discounted care. Include in the description whether the organization used
an assef test or other threshold, regardless of income, as a factor in determining eligibility for free or
discounted care.
4  Did the organization’s financial assistance policy that applied to the largest number of its patients during the
tax year provide for free or discounted care to the “medically indigent”?
5a Did the organization budget anounts for free or discounted care provided under its financial asswstance pcllcy durmg the tax year?
b If “Yes,” did the organization’s financial assistance expenses exceed the budgeted amount?
¢ If “Yes” to line b, as a result of budgst considerations, was the organization unable to provide free or
discounted care to a patient who was sligible for free or discounted care? .
6a Did the organization prepare a community benefit report during the tax year?
b If “Yes,” did the organization make it available to the public?
Compleie the following table using the worksheets provided in the Schedule H mstructlons Do not submlt
these worksheets with the Schedule H.
7 Financial Assistance and Certain Other Community Benefits at Cost
Financial Assistance and {a) Number of {b) Perscns {c} Total community | {d} Direct offsetting | (e} Net community (f) Percent
activities or served penefit expanse revenue benefit expense of total
Means-Tested Government Programs [programs foptional toptional) axpenss
a  Financial Assistance at cost (from
Workshest1) . . . . . 28,645,709 (585,714) 29,231,423 4.81
b Medicaid {from Worksheet 3, column a) g 0.00
G Costs of other means-tested
Hoorkahoot 8- ot o 0 0.00
d Total. Financial Assistance and
Means-Tested Government Programs 0 1] 28,645,709 (685,714) 29,231,423 4.81
Other Benefits
& Community health improvement
332333%"%33?@3@ ebr-?tnt%m } 10,674,795 265,371 10,409,424 1.71
f Health professions edusation
{from Worksheet5y . . . . 13,840,399 625,881 13,214,518 217
g Subsidized health services (from
Worksheete} . . . . . . 17,712,521 754,447 16,958,074 279
h Research (from Worksheet 7) . 569,297 669,297 0.09
i Cash and in-kind contributions
for community benefit {from
Worksheet 8) . . .o 271,385 274,385 0.04
i Total. Other Benefits . . . . 0 0 43,068,397 1,645,659 41,422,698 6.81
k Total Addlines7dand7j . . 0 0 71,714,106 1,059,985 70,654,121 11.62
For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Cat. No. 60192T Schedule H {Form 990) 2023
Mercy Medical Center 40 4/8/2025 11:35:20 AM
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Schedula H (Form 990) 2023

m Community Building Activities. Complete this table If the organization conducted any community building
activities during the tax year, and describe in Part V| how its community building activities promoted the

Page 2

health of the communities it serves,

{a} Number of | {b) Persons | (¢} Total community | {d) Direct offsetting | (e} Net community {f) Percent of
activities or served bullding expense revenue bullding expense total expanse
programs (optional)
{optionaf)
1 Physical improvements and housing 2,365,776 2,355,778 0.39
2 Economic development 0 0.00
3 Community support 2,824,518 2,824 518 0.46
4 Environmental improvements 0 0.00
&  Leadership development and training
for community members 680,208 680,208 0.11
6 Coalition building 0 0.00
7 Community health improvement advocacy 0 0,00
8  Workforce development 556,025 556,025 0.09
9  Other 0 0.00
10 Total 0 0 6,416,527 0 6,416,527 1.06
Bad Debt, Medicare, & Collection Practices
Section A. Bad Debt Expense Yes| No

1
2

3

4

5

]
7
8

Did the erganization report bad debt expense In accordance with Healthcare Financial Management Association Statsment No. 157

Enter the amount of the organization’s bad debt expense. Explain in Part VI the
methodolegy used by the organization to estimate this amount

Enter the estimated amount of the organization's bad debt expense attrlbutable to
patients eligible under the erganization’s financial assistance policy. Explain in Part VI the
methodology used by the organization to estimate this amount and the rationale, if any,

for Including this portion of bad debts as community benefit . e e e e
Provide in Part VI the text of the footnote to the organization’s financlal statemenis that describes bad debt
expense or the page numbar on which this footnote is contained in the attached financial statements.
Section B. Medicare
Enter total revenue received from Medicare {including DSH and IME)
Enter Medicare allowable costs of care relating to payments online 5 .
Subtract line & from ling 5. This is the surplus (or shortfall) | ..
Describe in Part V| the extent to which any shortfall reported on line 7 shou[d be treated as community
benefit. Also describe In Part VI the costing methodclogy or source used to determine the amount reperted
on line 6. Check the box that describes the methed used:

8 Cost accounting system

Section C. Collection Practices
9a Did the organization have a written debt collection policy during the tax year?

b If "Yes,” did the organization's collection policy that appfied to the largest number of its pationts during the tax year contam provmlons
on the collection practicas to be followed for patients who are known to qualify for financial assistance? Describe in Part VI

1 Costto charge ratio

Other

il muj]

2 5,289,958 |

3

5 210,153,239 |;

3] 102,990,069 |:

7 107,163,17

9b

Ll

Management Companies and Joint Ventures {owned 10% or more by offlcers, direciors, rustees, kay empleyees, and physiclans —see Insiructions)

{a) Name of entlty {b) Description of primary (c) Organization’s | (d} Officers, directors, {e} Physlcians’
activity of entity profit % or stock trustees, or kE_’Yu profit % or stock

ownership % o??ggﬁ%eﬁng?ﬁitp& ownership %
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13

Schedule H (Form 990) 2023
Mercy Medical Center 4 4/8/2025 11:35:20 AM
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Scheduls H {Form 990) 2023 Page 3
Facility Information

Section A. Hospital Facilities - o) O ~ o vl m m
) g1 & = | 3 21 2 H1 P
(list in order of slze, from largest to smalisst—see instructions) 2 ] [+ o g § N &
B @ =0 g 5
How many hospital facilities did the organization operate during § 3 - & 2 5 é’ &
the tax year? 1 g g% |8 E g a
T, % B, =
Name, address, primary website address, and state license number | E % g < Faclllty
{and if & group return, the name and EIN of the subordinate hospital - reparting
organization that operates the hospital facility): Other (describe) group
1MERCY MEDICAL CENTER, INC
301 ST PAUL PLACE, BALTIMCRE, MD 21202 MDMERCY.COM
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
Schedule H (Form 990) 2023
Mercy Medical Center 42 A{8/2025 11:35:20 AM
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Schedule H (Form 990} 2023

Facility Information {continued)

Section B. Facility Policies and Practices
{complete a separate Section B for each of the hospital facilities or facility reporting groups listed in Part V, Section A)

Name of hospital facility or letter of facility reporting group: MERCY MEDICAL CENTER, INC

Line number of hospital facility, or line numbers of hospital
facilities in a facility reporting group {from Part V, Section A} 1

Yes _

Comm

unity Health Needs Assessment

1 Was the hospital facility first licensed, registered, or similarly recognized by a state as a hospital facility in the
current tax year or the immediately preceding tax ysar? . . 1
2 Was the hospital facility acquired or placed into service as a tax- exempt hospltal In the current tax year or
the immediately preceding tax year? if “Yes,” provide details of the acquisition in Section G 2
3  During the tax year or eilther of the two immediately preceding tax years, did the hospital facility conduct a
community health needs assessment (CHNA)? If “No,” skip to line 12 . .
If “Yes,"” Indicate what the CHNA report describes (check all that appiy):
a A definition of the community served by the hospital facility
b Demagraphics of the community
c Existing health care facllities and resources within the community that are available to respond to the
heaith needs of the community
d How data was obtained
e The significant health needs of the community
f Primary and chronic dissase neads and other health issues of uninsured persons, low-income parsons,
and minority groups
g The process for identifying and prioritizing community health needs and services to mest the
community health needs
h The process for consulting with persons representing the community’s interests
i The impact of any actions taken to address the significant health needs identified in the hospital
facility’s prior CHNA(g}
i [ Other (describe in Section G)
4 Indicate the tax year the hospital facility last conducted a CHNA: 20 23
5  Inconducting its most recent CHNA, did the hospital facllity take into account input from persons who represent
the broad interests of the community served by the hospital facility, including those with spacial knowledge of or
expertise In public health? If “Yes,” describe in Section G how the hospital facility took into account input from
persons who represent the community, and identify the persons the hospital facility consulted
6a Was the hospital facility’s CHNA conducied with one or more other hospltal facilities? If “Yes,” list the other
hospital facilities in Section C .o
b Was the hospital facility's CHNA conducted W|th onhe or more crganlzatlons other than hospltal facilltles"’ If “Yes "
list the other organizations in Section G .
7 Did the hospital facility make its GHNA report widely available to the publlc‘? .
If “Yes,” indicate how the CHNA report was made widely available {check all that apply):
a Hospital facility’s website (list url): (SEE STATEMENT)
b [ Other website {list url):
c Made a paper copy available for public inspection without charge at the hospital facility
d [ Other{describe in Section C)
8 Did the hospital facility adopt an implementation strategy to meet the significant community health needs
identifled through its most recently conducted CHNA? If “No,” skip to line 11
9 Indicate the tax year the hospital facility last adopted an implementation strategy: 20 23
10 Is the hospital facility’s most recently adopted implementation strategy posted on a website? .
a If “Yes,” {list url): (SEE STATEMENT)
b If “No,” is the hospital facility’'s most recently adopted implementation strategy attached to this return? .

11 Describe in Section C how the hospital facility is addressing the significant needs identified in its most
recently conducted CHNA and any such needs that are not being addressed together with the reasans why
such needs are not being addressed.

12a Did the organization incur an excise tax under section 4959 for the hospital facility’s failure to conduct a
CHNA as required by section 501{n(3)? . . . 12a

b If *Yes” to line 12a, did the organization file Form 4720 to report the sectlon 4959 exclse tax'? .
o If “Yes” to line 12b, what is the total amount of section 4959 excise tax the organization reported on Form
4720 for afl of its hospital facilities? $ :
Schedule H (Form 990} 2023
Mercy Meadical Center 43 4/8/2025 11:35:20 AM
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Schedule M {Form 990) 2023 Page 5
Paki Facility Information (continued)
Financial Assistance Policy (FAP)
Name of hospital facility or letter of facility reporting group: MERCY MEDICAL CENTER, INC
Yes| No

Did the hospital facility have in place during the tax year a written financial assistance policy that:

13  Explained eligivility criterla for financial assistance, and whether such assistance included free or discounted cars?
If *Yes,” indicate the eligibility criteria explained in the FAP:

Federal poverty guidelines (FPG), with FPG family income limit for eligibility for free care of 2 0 0%

and FPG family income limit for eligibility for discounted care of 4 0 0%

Income level other than FPG {describe in Section )

Asset level

Medical indigency

Insurance status

Undetinsurance status

Residency

Other (describe in Section G}

14 Explained the basis for calculating amounts charged to patients?

16  Explained the method for applying for financial assistance? .
If “Yes,” indicate how the hospital facility's FAP or FAP application fcrm (mclucilng accompanying |nstruct|ons)
explained the method for applying for financial assistance {check all that apply):

a Described the information the hospital facility may require an individual to provide as part of his or her
application

o
[

Se +o oo
O0O0OBIEIE

b Described the suppotting documentation the hospital facility may require an individual to submit as part
of his or her application

c Provided the contact information of hospital facility staff who can provide an individual with information
about the FAP and FAP application process

d [ Provided the contact information of nonprofit organizations or government agencies that may be
sources of assistance with FAP applications

e [ Other (describe in Section C)

16 Was widely publicized within the community served by the hospital facility? .
If “Yes," indicate how the hospital facility publicized the policy {check all that apply):

a The FAP was widely available on a website (list url): (SEE STATEMENT)

b The FAP application form was widsly available on a website (list ur): (SEE STATEMENT)

c A plain language summary of the FAP was widely available on a website (list url): (SEE STATEMENT)

d The FAP was available upon request and without charge {in public locations in the hospital facility and
by mall)

e The FAP application form was available upon request and without charge {in public locations in the
hospital facility and by mall)

f A plain fanguage summary of the FAP was available upon request and without charge (in public
locations in the hospital facility and by mail)

g Individuals were notified about the FAP by being offered a paper copy of the plain language summary of
the FAP, by receiving a conspicuous written notice about the FAP on thair billing statements, and via
conspicuous public displays or other measures reasonably calculated to attract patients’ attention

h Notified members of the community who are most likely to require financial assistance about availability
of the FAP

i The FAP, FAP application form, and plain language summary of the FAP were translated Into the
primary language(s} spoken by Limited English Proficiency (LEP) populations

j I1 Other(describe in Section C)

Schedule H (Form 990) 2023
Mercy Medical Center 44 4/8/2025 11:35:20 AM
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Schedule H (Form 990} 2023

Page 6
Facility Information (continued)
Billing and Collections
Name of hospital facility or letter of facility reporting group: MERCY MEDICAL CENTER, INC
Yes| No
17 Did the hospital facility have in place during the tax year a separate biliing and collections policy, or & written
financial assistance policy (FAP) that explained all of the actions the hospital facility or other authorized party
may take upon nonpayment? e e e e e e e e e e e
18 Check all of the following actions against an individual that were permitted under the hospital facility's
pelicies during the tax year before making reasonable efforts to determine the individual's eligibility under the
facility's FAP:
a [ PReporting to credit agency(ies)
b [0 Selling an individual's debt to another party
¢ [0 Deferring, denylng, or requiring a payment before providing medically necessary care due to nohpayment
oi a previous bill for care covered under the hospital facility's FAP
d [ Actions that require a legal or judicial process
e [] Othersimilar actions (describe in Section C)
f None of these actions or other similar actions were permitted
12 Did the hospital facility or other authorized party perform any of the following actions during the tax year
before making reasonable efforts to determine the individual's eligibility under the facility’s FAP? .
If “Yes,” check all actions in which the hospital facility or a third party engaged:
a [ Reporting to credit agency(ies)
b [ Selling an individual’s debt to another party
¢c O Deferring, denying, or requiting a paymant before providing medically necessary care due to
nonpayment of a previous bill for care covered under the hospital facility’s FAP
d [ Actions that require a legal or judicial process
e [0 Other similar actions (describe in Section C)
20 Indicate which efforts the hospital facility or other authorized party made before initiating any of the actions listed (whether or
not checked) in line 19 (check all that apply):
a [ Provided a written notice about upcoming ECAs (Extraordinary Collection Acticn) and a plain language summary of the
FAP at least 30 days before initiating those EGAs (if not, describe in Section C)
b Made a reasonable effort to orally notify individuals about the FAP and FAP application process (if not, describe in Section C)
c Processed incomplete and complete FAR applications (if not, describe in Section C)
d Made presumptive eligibility determinations (if not, desctibe in Secticn )
e [1 Other(describe in Section C)
f [0 None of these efforts were made
Policy Relating to Emergency Medical Care
21 Did the hospital facility have in place during the tax year a written policy relating to emetgency medical care
that required the hospital facility to provide, without discrimination, care for emergency medical conditions to
Individuals regardiess of their eligibility under the hospital facility's financial assistance policy? 21 | V
If “No,” indicate why:
a [ The hospital facility did not provide care for any emergency medical conditions
b [ The hospital facility’s policy was not in writing
¢ [ The hospital facility limited who was eligible to recelve care for emergency medical conditions {describe
in Section C)
d [ Other (describe in Section C) .
Schedule H {Form 990} 2023
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Schedule H {Form 990) 2023

Page 7
Facility Information (continued)
Charges to Individuals Eligible for Assistance Under the FAP {FAP-Eligibie Individuals)
Name of hospital facility or letter of facility reporting group: MERCY MEDICAL CENTER, INC

Yes| No

22 Indicate how the hospital facility determined, during the tax year, the maximum amounts that can be charged
to FAP-eligible individuals for emergency or other madically necessary care:

a [] The hospital facility used a look-back method based on claims allowed by Medicare fee-for-service
during a prior 12-month period

b L[] The hospital facility used a look-back method based on ctaims aliowed by Medicare fee-for-service and
all private health insurers that pay claims lo the hospital facility during a prior 12-month period

c The hospital facility used a look-back method based on claims aliowed by Medicaid, either alone or in
combination with Medicare fee-fot-service and all private health insurers that pay claims to the hospital
facility during a prior 12-moenth period

d [ The hospital facility used a prospective Medicare or Medicaid method

23 During the tax year, did the hospital facility charge any FAP-eligible individual to whom the hospital facility

provided emergency or other medically necessary services more than the amounts generally billed to
individuals who had insurance covering such cara? .
If “Yes,” explain In Section C,

24  During the tax year, did the hospital facility charge any FAP-eligible individual an amount equal to the gross
charge for any service provided io that Individual? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 24

If "Yes,” explain in Sectlon C.

Schedule H (Form 990) 2023
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U RartV, Section G

Supplemental Information. Section C. Supplemental Informaticn for Part V, Section B. Provide
desctiptions required for Part V, Saction B, lines 2, 3], 5, 6a, Bb, 7d, 11, 13b, 13h, 15e, 18], 18e, 19,
208, 20b, 20¢, 204, 20e, 21¢, 21d, 23, and 24, If applicable, provide separate descriptions for each
hospital facility in a facllity reporting group, designated by facility reporting group letter and hospital
;aci;ity line number from Part V, Section A ("A, 1,"“A, 4,"“B, 2," "B, 3," etc.) and name of hospital
acitity.

Return Reference - Identifier

Explanation

SCHEDULE H, PART V,
SECTION B, LINE 5 - INFUT
FROM PERSONS WHO
REPRESENT BROAD
INTERESTS OF
COMMUNITY SERVED

FACILITY NAME:
MERCY MEDICAL CENTER, INC

DESCRIPTION:

QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DATA WAS GATHERED BY MERCY IN ORDER TO UNDERTAKE THE 2024
CHNA. AS PART OF THE QUANTITATIVE DATA GATHERING PROCESS FOR THE 2018, 2021 AND 2024 CHNA,
MERCY'S COMMUNITY BENEFIT COMMITTEE MEMBERS WORKED COLLABORATIVELY WITH THE BALTIMORE
CITY HEALTH DEPARTMENT AND A CONSORTIUM OF BALTIMORE CITY HOSPITALS TO CBTAIN UNIFORM
QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DATA INCLUDING DEMOGRAPHIC AND HEALTH DATA AND TQ DEVELOP
AND DISTRIBUTE A COMMUNITY HEALTH NEEDS ASSESSMENT SURVEY TO OBTAIN COMMUNITY FEEDBACK
AND INPUT FROM THOUSANDS OF THE BALTIMORE CITY RESIDENTS REGARDING COMMUNITY HEALTH AND
SOCIAL CONCERNS. MERCY ALSO WORKED WITH THE BALTIMORE NEIGHEORHOOD INDICATORS ALLIANCE-
JACOB FRANGCE INSTITUTE AT THE UNIVERSITY OF BALTIMORE (BNIA-JFI) TO REACH OUT TO KEY
STAKEHCOLDERS FROM WITHIN THE CHNA SERVICE AREA TO SOLICIT INPUT INCLUDING NEIGHBORHOOD
ASSQCIATION LEADERS AND REPRESENTATIVES OF ORGANIZATIONS THAT PROVIDE IMPORTANT
SERVICES TO RESIDENTS IN THE CHNA AREA, FURTHER, AS PART OF THE CHNA PROCESS FOR 2013, 2016
2018, 2021, AND 2024 MERCY REPRESENTATIVES SOUGHT INPUT REGARDING ITS PROPOSED CHNA
SERVICE AREA FROM COMMUNITY LEADERS, PUBLIC HEALTH EXPERTS, AND REPRESENTATIVES OF
MINORITY, LOW INCOME, AND MEDICALLY UNDERSERVED POPULATIONS. THE CONSENSUS FEEDBACK
FROM THESE DISCUSSIONS VALIDATES MERCY'S CHNA SERVICE AREA DEFINITION. IN ACCORDANGE WITH
IRS REGULATIONS GOVERNING CHNAS, MERCY'S DEFINED CHNA COMMUNITY INCLUDES "MEDICALLY
UNDERSERVED, LOW INCOME OR MINORITY POPULATIONS"

SCHEDULE H, PART V,
SECTIONEB, LINE 7 -
HOSPITAL FACILITY'S
WEBSITE (LIST URL}

HTTPS./MDMERCY.COMIABOUT-MERCY/POLICIES-AND-DOCUMENTS/COMMUNITY-HEALTH-NEEDS-
ASSESSMENT

SCHEDULE H, PART V,
SECTION B, LINE 10 - 1F
"YES", (LIST URL)

HTTPS.//MDMERCY .COMABOUT-MERCY/POLICIES-AND-DOCUMENTS/ICOMMUNITY-HEALTH-NEEDS-
ASBESSMENT

Mercy Medical Center
52-0591658
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Return Reference - Identifier Explanaticn

SCHEDULE H, PART V, FACILITY NAME:

SECTION B, LINE 11 - HOW |MERCY MEDICAL CENTER
HOSPITAL FACILITY IS
ADDRESSING NEEDS DESCRIPTION:

IDENTIFIED IN CHNA THE HEALTH AND SOCIAL NEEDS OF MERCY'S COMMUNITY WERE IDENTIFIED IN THE COMMUNITY HEALTH
NEEDS ASSESSMENT (CHNA) WHICH WAS COMPLETED AND PUBLISHED BEFORE JUNE 30, 2018, [N
ADDITION, MERCY HAS COMPLETED AN UPDATED COMMUNITY HEALTH NEEDS ASSESSMENT AND
IMPLEMENTATION STRATEGY N JUNE 2018, JUNE 2021, AS WELL AS JUNE 2024. THIS UPDATED VERSION IS
AVAILABLE ON THE MERCY HEALTH SERVICES WEBSITE.

QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DATA WAS GATHERED BY MERCY IN ORDER TO UNDERTAKE THE 2024
CHNA. AS PART OF THE QUANTITATIVE DATA GATHERING PROCESS FOR THE 2018, 2021 AND 2024 CHNA,
MERCY'S COMMUNITY BENEFIT COMMITTEE MEMBERS WORKED COLLABORATIVELY WITH THE BALTIMORE
CITY HEALTH DEPARTMENT AND A CONSCRTIUM OF BALTIMORE CITY HOSPITALS TO OBTAIN UNIFORM
QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DATA INCLUDING DEMOGRAPHIC AND HEALTH DATA AND TO DEVELOP
AND DISTRIBUTE A COMMUNITY HEALTH NEEDS ASSESSMENT SURVEY TO OBTAIN COMMUNITY FEEDBACK
AND INPUT FROM THOUSANDS OF THE BALTIMORE CITY RESIDENTS REGARDING COMMUNITY HEALTH AND
SOCIAL CONCERNS, MERCY ALSO WORKED WITH THE BALTIMORE NEIGHBORHOOD INDICATORS ALLIANCE-
JACOB FRANCE INSTITUTE AT THE UNIVERSITY OF BALTIMORE (BNIA-JFI} TO REACH QUT TO KEY
STAKEHOLDERS FROM WITHIN THE CHNA SERVICE AREA TO SOLICIT INPUT INCLUDING NEIGHBORHQOD
ASSOCIATION LEADERS AND REPRESENTATIVES OF CRGANIZATIONS THAT PROVIDE IMPORTANT
SERVICES TO RESIDENTS [N THE CHNA AREA. FURTHER, AS PART OF THE CHNA PROCESS FOR 2013, 20186,
2018, 2621, AND 2024 MERCY REPRESENTATIVES SOUGHT INPUT REGARDING TS PROPOSED CHNA
SERVICE AREA FROM COMMUNITY LEADERS, PUBLIC HEALTH EXPERTS, AND REPRESENTATIVES OF
MINORITY, LOW INCOME, AND MEDICALLY UNDERSERVED POPULATIONS, THE CONSENSUS FEEDBACK
FROM THESE DISCUSSIONS VALIDATES MERCY'S CHNA SERVICE AREA DEFINITION, [N ACCORDANCE WITH
IRS REGULATIONS GOVERNING CHNAS, MERCY'S DEFINED CHNA COMMUNITY INCLUDES "MEDICALLY
UNDERSERVED, LOW INCOME OR MINORITY POPULATIONS"

ADDITIONALLY, SINCE THE IMPLEMENTATION OF THE NEW MARYLAND ALL-PAYER MODEL WHICH
FOLLOWED THE COMPLETION OF MERCY'S 2013 CHNA, MERCY IS INCREASINGLY FOCGUSED ON HIGH-
UTILIZER PATIENTS, INCLUDING THOSE WITHIN QUR PREVIOUSLY-DEFINED CHNA COMMUNITY BENEFIT
SERVICE AREA. AS EXPECTED, THERE IS SIGNIFICANT GEOQGRAPHIC QVERLAP OF HIGH UTILIZER PATIENT
ORIGIN AND OUR PREVIOUSLY-DEFINED CBSA, ESPECIALLY IN THE IMMEDIATE AREAS WHERE THE MOST
VULNERABLE POPULATIONS RESIDE. THE SIMILARITY OF GEOGRAPHY PRESENTS AN ONGOING
OPPORTUNITY TO INCREASE ALIGNMENT BETWEEN MERCY'S COMMUNITY BENEEFIT ACTIVITIES AND
MERCY'S FOCUSED POPULATION HEALTH INTERVENTIONS TO REDUCE POTENTIALLY AVOIDABLE
UTILIZATION AS IDENTIFIED IN MERCY'S HSCRC STRATEGIC HOSPITAL TRANSFORMATION PLAN, MERCY
BELIEVES OUR POPULATION HEALTH STRATEGIES ARE INTEGRAL TO QUR CHNA FOCUS AREAS:

-IMPROVING ACCESS TO CARE AND THE FREQUENCY OF CARE FOR OUR HOMELESS NEIGHBORS.
-IDENTIFYING TACTICS AND STRATEGIES TO IMPROVE BIRTH OUTGOMES AND PRE-NATAL CARE FCR
EXPECTANT MOTHERS.

-EXPANDING ACCESS TO PREVENTATIVE COMMUNITY HEALTH SERVICES SUCH AS PRIMARY CARE TO
IMPROVE QUTCOMES

-PROVIDING SUPPORT TO VICTIMS OF VIOLENCE AND ADDICTION

-PROVIDE TARGETED HEALTH EDUCATION OPPORTUNITIES TO THE PUBLIC AND SUPPORT THE ERQUCATION
OF FUTURE PHYSICIANS,

-ADVAIFJ(IL\‘IIFTi\:’,RACTICE PROVIDERS, NURSES, AND OTHER HEALTHCARE WORKERS WHQ IN-TURN SERVE THE
COMM .

SCHEDULE H, PART V, HTTPS/MDMERCY.COM/PATIENTS-AND-VISITORS/BILLING-AND-INSURANCE/FINANCIAL-ASSISTANCE
SECTION B, LINE 18A -
FAP AVAILABLE WEBSITE

SCHEDULE H, PART VY, HTTPS/IMOMERCY . COM/PATIENTS-AND-VISITORS/BILLING-AND-INSURANCE/F INANCIAL-ASSISTANCE
SECTION B, LINE 168 -
FAP APPLICATION FORM
WEBSITE

SCHEDULE H, PART V, HTTPS./IMDMERCY.COM/PATIENTS-AND-VISITORS/BILLING-AND-INSURANCE/FINANCIAL-ASSISTANCE
SECTION B, LINE 16C -
PLAIN LANGUAGE FAP

SUMMARY WEBSITE
SCHEDULE H, PART V, FACILITY NAME:
SECTICN B, LINE 20A - MERCY MEDICAL CENTER

EFFORTS MADE BEFORE
INITIATING COLLECTICN  |DESCRIPTION:

ACTIONS THE HOSPITAL FACILITY OR AN AUTHORIZED THIRD PARTY DID NOT UNDERTAKE ANY OF THE COLLECTION
ACTIONS NOTED IN PART V, SECTION B, LINE 19 BEFORE MAKING REASONABLE EFFORTS TO DETERMINE
ANY PATIENT'S ELIGIBILITY UNDER THE HOSPITAL'S FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE POLICY. IN ORDER TO HELP
DETERMINE PATIENTS' ELIGIBILITY UNDER THE HOSPITAL'S FINANGIAL ASSISTANCE POLICY, THE HOSPITAL
UNDERTAKES A NUMBER OF ACTIONS, INCLUDING NOTIFYING PATIENTS OF THE FINANGIAL ASSISTANCE
POLICY ON ADMISSION, NOTIFYING PATIENTS OF THE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE POLICY PRIOR TO
DISCHARGE, NOTIFYING PATIENTS OF THE FINANGIAL ASSISTANGE POLICY IN COMMUNICATIONS WITH THE
PATIENTS' BILLS, AND DOCUNMENTING ITS DETERMINATION OF WHETHER PATIENTS WERE ELIGIBLE FOR
FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE UNDER THE HOSPITAL'S FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE POLICY.
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Facility Information {continuied)

Section D. Other Health Care Facilities That Are Not Licensed, Registered, or Similarly Recognized as a Hospital Facility
(list in order of size, from largest to smaliest)

How many non-hospltal health care facilities did the organization operate during the tax year? 0

Name and address Type of facility (describe)
1

10

Schedule H (Form 990} 2023
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Supplemental Information.

Provide the following information.,

1 Required descriptions. Provide the descriptions required for Part |, lines 3¢, 6a, and 7; Part [[; Part Ill, lines 2, 3, 4, 8 and 9h.

2 Neads assessment. Describe how the organization assesses the heaith care needs of the communities it serves, in addition to any neads
assessmenis reported in Part V, Section B,

Patient education of eligibility for assistance. Describe how the organization informs and educates patients and persons who may be

3 billed for patlent care about their eligivility for assistance under federal, state, or local government programs or under the crganization's
finanelal assistance policy.
4 Community Information. Describe the community the organization serves, taking Into account the geographic area and demographic

constituents it setves.
Promotlon of community health. Provide any other information Important to describing how the organization’s hospital facilities or other

5 health care failities further Its exempt purpose by promoting the health of the community (2.g., open medical staff, community board, use of
surplus funds, etc.}.

6 Affiliated health care system, If the organization is part of an affillated health care system, describe the respactive roles of the
organization and its affiliates in promoting the health of the communities served.

7 State filing of community benefit report. If applicabla, identify all states with which the organization, or a related crganization, files a

community benefit report.

Return Reference - Identifier

Explanation

SCHEDULE H, PART |,
LINE 3C -

MERCY MEDICAL CENTER PROVIDES EMERGENCY AND OTHER MEDICALLY NECESSARY CARE TO PATIENTS

THAT QUALIFY FOR FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE AT NO CHARGE OR AT REDUCED-COST BASED ON A SLIDING

SCALE FOR INCOME (UP TQ APPROXIMATELY 500% OF THE FEDERAL POVERTY GUIDELINES) AND TAKING

INTO ACCOUNT OTHER CONSIDERATICNS, AS DESCRIBED BELOW. IN ORDER TQ QUALIFY FOR FINANGIAL

ASSISTANCE UNDER MERCY MEDICAL CENTER'S FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE POLICY, A PATIENT MUST BE A

g.S. C:TIIZEN OR PERMANENT LEGAL RESIBENT WHQ QUALIFIES UNDER AT LEAST ONE OF THE FOLLOWING
ONDITIONS:

1. A PATIENT WITH FAMILY INGOME AT OR BELOW 200% OF THE FEDERAL POVERTY LEVEL, WITH LESS
THAN $10,000 IN HOUSEHOLD MONETARY ASSETS QUALIFIES FOR FULL FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE IN THE
FORM OF FREE MEDICALLY NECESSARY CARE.

2, A PATIENT NOT OTHERWISE ELIGIBLE FOR MEDICAID OR CHIP WHQ IS A BENEFICIARY/RECIPIENT OF A
MEANS-TESTED SOCIAL SERVICES PROGRAM, INCLUDING BUT NOT NECESSARILY LIMITED TO THE
FOLLOWING PROGRAMS, 1S DEEMED ELIGIBLE FOR FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE iN THE FORM OF FREE
MEDICALLY NECESSARY CARE, PROVIDED THAT THE PATIENT SUBMITS PROOF OF ENROLLMENT WITHIN 20
DAYS UNLESS THE PATIENT OR THE PATIENT'S REPRESENTATIVE REQUESTS AN ADDITIONAL 30 DAYS: A)
HOUSEHOLDS WITH CHILDREN IN THE FREE OR REDUCED LUNCH PROGRAM B} SUPPLEMENTAL
NUTRITIONAL ASSISTANCE PROGRAM {SNAP) C) LOW-INCOME-HOUSEHOLD ENERGY ASSISTANCE
PROGRAM D) PRIMARY ADRULT CARE PROGRAM {PAC), UNTIL SUCH TIME AS INPATIENT BENEFITS ARE
ADDED TC THE PAC BENEFIT PACKAGE E) WOMEN, INFANTS, AND CHILDREN (WIG).

3. APATIENT WITH FAMILY INCOME AT OR BELOW 500% OF FEDERAL POVERTY LEVEL, WITH LESS THAN
$10,000 IN HOUSEHOLD MONETARY ASSETS QUALIFIES FOR PARTIAL FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE IN THE FORM
OF REDUCED-COST MEDICALLY NECESSARY CARE, THE AMOUNT OF FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE IN THIS CASE
IS BASED ON A SLIDING SCALE OF INCOME AND SHOWN iN THE ATTACHED TABLE AND OTHER FACTORS.

4. A PATIENT WITH: {1} FAMILY INCOME AT OR BELOW 500% OF FEDERAL POVERTY LEVEL; (1l) WITH MEDICAL
DEBT INGURRED WITHIN THE 12 MCNTH PERICD PRIOR TO APPLICATION THAT EXCEEDS 25% OF FAMILY
INCOME FOR THE SAME PERIOD; AND ({il} WITH LESS THAN $10,000 IN HOUSEHOLD MONETARY ASSETS
WILL QUALIFY FOR PARTIAL FINANCIAL ASSISTANGCE IN THE FORM OF REDUGED-COST MEDICALLY
NECESSARY CARE. THE AMOUNT OF FINANGIAL ASSISTANCE IN THIS CASE IS BASED ON A SLIDING SCALE
OF INCOME, AMOUNT OF MEDICAL DEBT, AND OTHER FACTORS, A) AN ELIGIBLE PATIENT OR ANY
IMMEDIATE FAMILY MEMBER OF THE PATIENT LIVING IN THE SAME HOUSEHOLD SHALL REMAIN ELIGIBLE
FOR REDUCED-COST MEDICALLY NECESSARY CARE WHEN SEEKING SUBSEQUENT CARE AT MERCY
MEDICAL CENTER DURING THE 12-MONTH PERIOD BEGINNING ON THE DATE ON WHICH THE REDUCED-
COST MEDICALLY NECESSARY CARE WAS INITIALLY RECEIVED. B) TO AVOID AN UNNECESSARY
DUPLICATION OF MERCY MEDICAL CENTER'S DETERMINATIONS OF ELIGIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL
ASSISTANCE, A PATIENT ELIGIBLE FOR CARE UNDER PARAGRAPH 4.A SHALL INFORM THE HOSPTIAL OF HIS
CR HER ELIGIBILITY FOR THE REDUCED-COST MEDICALLY NECESSARY CARE.

5. AN UNINSURED PATIENT WITH FAMILY INCOME BETWEEN 200% AND 500% QOF FEDERAL POVERTY LEVEL
WHO REQUESTS ASSISTANCE QUALIFIES FOR A PAYMENT PLAN,

6. A HOMELESS PATIENT QUALIFIES FOR FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE.

7. A DECEASED PATIENT, WITH NO PERSON DESIGNATED AS DIRECTOR OF FINANCIAL AFFAIRS, OR NO
ESTATE NUMBER ON FILE AT THE APPLICABLE REGISTRARS OF WILLS DEPARTMENT, QUALIFIES FOR
FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE.

8. A MEDICAID PATIENT WHO HAS A REMAINING BALANCE AFTER RECEIVING MEDICAL ASSISTANGE
QUALIFIES FOR FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE.

9. MERCY MEDICAL CENTER MAY ELECT TO GRANT PRESUMPTIVE CHARITY CARE TO PATIENTS BASED ON
INFORMATION GATHERED DURING A DEBT COLLECTION PROCESS, FACTORS INCLUDE PROPENSITY TO PAY
SNC%RIQE, Ecl)_IGIBILITY AND PARTICIPATION IN OTHER FEDERAL PROGRAMS, AND OTHER RELEVENT
INFORMATION.

10. A PATIENT WHO DOES NOT QUALIFY UNDER THE PRECEDING CATEGORIES MAY STILL APPLY FOR
FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE, AND MERCY MEDICAL CENTER WILL REVIEW THE APPLICATION AND MAKE A
DETERMINATION ON A CASE-BY-CASE BASIS AS TO ELIGIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE. FACTORS
THAT WILL BE CONSIDERED INCLUDE: A} FIXED INCOME SUCH AS SOCIAL SECURITY, RETIREMENT OR
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Return Reference - Identifier Explanation

DISABILITY WITH NO ADDITIONAL INCOME SOURCES AVAILABLE B) MEDICAL EXPENSES AND/OR C)
EXPENSES RELATED TO NECESSITIES OF LIFE COMPARED TO INCOME. FOR ALL PURPOSES OF THE
FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE POLICY, "HOUSEHOLD MONETARY ASSETS" MEANS ASSETS THAT ARE
CONVERTIBLE TO CASH, IN DETERMINING A PATIENT'S MONETARY ASSETS FOR PURPOSES OF MAKING AN
ELIGIBILITY DETERMINATION UNDER THIS FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE POLICY, THE FOLLOWING ASSETS ARE
EXCLUDED; (1) THE FIRST $10,000 OF MONETARY ASSETS; {2) EQUITY OF $150,000 IN A PRIMARY
RESIDENCE; AND g) RETIREMENT ASSETS TO WHICH THE IRS HAS GRANTED PREFERENTIAL TAX

TREATMENT AS A RETIREMENT ACCOUNT, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO, QUALIFIED AND NONQUALIFIED
DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLANS,

SCHEDULE H, PART I, COMMUNITY BENEFIT REPORT IS MADE AVAILABLE ON ANOTHER'S WEBSITE, SPECIFICALLY THE WEBSITE

LINE 6A - FOR THE MARYLAND HSCRC. MERCY MEDICAL CENTER PREPARES ITS COMMUNITY BENEFIT REFORT
ANNUALLY AND ITS MADE AVAILABLE TO THE PUBLIC.

SCHEDULE H, PART |, THERE ARE NO COSTS REPORTED THAT ARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO A PHYSICIAN CLINIC,

LINE 7 - DESCRIBE
SUBSIDIZED HEALTH
SERVICE COSTS FROM
PHYSICIAN CLINIC ON
LINE 7G

SCHEDULE H, PART |, THE COSTING METHODOLOGY USED TO CALCULATE AMOUNTS REPORTED IN LINE 7 WAS A COST-TO-
LINE 7 - EXPLANATION OF |CHARGE RATIO DERIED FROM WORKSHEET 2, RATIO OF PATIENT CARE COST-TO-CHARGES,
COSTING METHODOLOGY
USED FOR CALCULATING
LINE 7 TABLE

SCHEDULE H, PART |, 7A. CHARITY CARE AT COST AND 7F. HEALTH PROFESSIONS EDUCATION ARE EXPLAINED IN THE
LINE 7 - PART {, LINES 7A, |FOLLOWING:

78 AND 7F - MARYLAND
HOSPITAL ASSOCIATION  (MARYLAND'S REGULATORY SYSTEM CREATES A UNIQUE PROCESS FOR HOSPITAL PAYMENT THAT DIFFERS
UNIFIED RESPONSE FROM THE REST OF THE NATION, THE HEALTH SERVICES COST REVIEW COMMISSION, (HSCRC)
DETERMINES PAYMENT THROUGH A RATE SETTING PROCESS AlL PAYORS, INCLUDING GOVERNMENTAL
PAYORS, PAY THE SAME AMOUNT FOR THE SAME SERVICES DELIVERED AT THE SAME HOSPITAL.
MARYLAND'S UNIQUE ALL PAYOR SYSTEM INCLUDES A METHOD FOR REFERENCING UNCOMPENSATED
CARE IN EACH PAYORS' RATES, WHICH DOES NOT ENABLE MARYLAND HOSPITALS TO BREAKOUT ANY
QFFSETTING REVEMUE RELATED TO UNCOMPENSATED CARE.

78. UNREIMBURSED MEDICAID 1S EXPLAINED IN THE FOLLOWING:

MARYLAND'S REGULATORY SYSTEM CREATES A UNIQUE PROCESS FOR HOSPITAL PAYMENT THAT DIFFERS
FROM THE REST OF THE NATION. THE HEALTH SERVICES COST REVIEW COMMISSION, {HSCRC)
DETERMINES PAYMENT THROUGH A RATE SETTING PROCESS ALL PAYORS, INGLUDING GOVERNMENTAL
FAYORS, PAY THE SAME AMOUNT FOR THE SAME SERVICES DELIVERED AT THE SAME HOSPITAL.
MARYLAND'S UNIQUE ALL PAYOR SYSTEM INCLUDES A METHOD FOR REFERENCING UNCOMPENSATED
CARE IN EACH PAYORS' RATES, WHICH DOES NOT ENABLE MARYLAND HOSPITALS TO BREAKCUT ANY
DIRECTED OFFSETTING REVENUE RELATED TO UNCOMPENSATED CARE, COMMUNITY BENEF|T EXPENSES
ARE EQUAL TO MEDICAID REVENUES IN MARYLAND, AS SUCH, THE NET EFFEGT IS ZERQ. THE EXCEPTION
TO THIS IS THE IMPACT ON THE HOSPITAL OF ITS SHARE OF THE MEDICAID ASSESSMENT. IN RECENT
YEARS, THE STATE OF MARYLAND HAS CLOSED FISCAL GAPS N THE STATE MEDICAID BUDGET BY
ASSESSING HOSFITALS THROUGH THE RATE SETTING SYSTEM, FOR FY 2024 MERCY MEDICAL CENTER'S
SHARE OF THE MEDICAID ASSESSMENT WAS $212,810.
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Explanaticn

SCHEDULE H, PART I,
LINE 4 - FOOTNOTE IN
ORGANIZATION'S
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DESCRIBING BAD DEBT

THE AMOUNT REPORTED AS BAD DEBT EXPENSE ON PART IIl, LINE 2 WAS DETERMINED USING ACTUAL BAD
DEBT WRITE-OFFS LESS RECOVERIES RECEIVED DURING THE YEAR AND AN ADJUSTMENT TO THE
BALANCE SHEET RESERVE. WRITE OFFS WERE AT CHARGE LEVEL.

THE ORGANIZATION HAS NOT ESTIMATED ANY AMOUNT OF BAD DEBT EXPENSE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
PATIENTS ELIGIBLE UNDER THE ORGANIZATION'S FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE PCLICY.

THE FOLLOWING IS A SUMMARY OF THE TEXT OF THE FOOTNOTE TO THE ORGANIZATION'S FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS THAT DESCRIBE THE DRGANIZATION'S BAD DEBT EXPENSE. THE ACTUAL TEXT OF THE
FOCTNGCTE HAS NOT BEEN USED BECAUSE THE ORGANIZATION IS A MEMBER OF A GROUP WITH
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS;

NET PATIENT SERVICE REVENUES AND ALLOWANCES

NET PATIENT SERVICE REVENUES ARE REPORTED AT THE ESTIMATED NET REALIZABLE AMOUNTS FROM
PATIENTS, THIRD-PARTY PAYERS, AND OTHERS FOR SERVICES RENDERED, THE ORGANIZATION'S
CHARGES ARE BASED ON RATES ESTABLISHED BY THE STATE OF MARYLAND HEALTH SERVICES COST
REVIEW COMMISSION; ACCORDINGLY, REVENUE REFLECTS ACTUAL CHARGES TO PATIENTS BASED ON
RATES IN EFFECT DURING THE PERICD IN WHICH THE SERVICES ARE RENDERED,

CONTRACTUAL ADJUSTMENTS REPRESENT THE DIFFERENCE BETWEEN AMOUNTS BILLED AS PATIENT
SERVICE REVENUE AND AMOUNTS ALLOWED BY THIRD-PARTY PAYERS, AND ARE ACCRUED IN THE PERIOD
IN WHICH THE RELATED SERVICES ARE RENDERED.

THE PROVISION FOR BAD DEBTS IS BASED UPON MANAGEMENT'S ASSESSMENT OF HISTORICAL AND
EXPECTED NET COLLECTIONS, THIS ESTIMATE GONSIDERS BUSINESS AND GENERAL ECONOMIC
CONDITIONS, TRENDS N HEAL.THCARE COVERAGE AND OTHER COLLEGTION INDICATORS. THROUGHOUT
THE YEAR, MANAGEMENT ASSESSES THE ADEQUACY OF THE ALLOWANGE FOR UNCOLLECTIBLE
ACCOUNTS BASED UPCN ITS REVIEW OF ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND COLLECTIONS TO DATE. OTHER
FACTORS, SUCH AS PAYER MIX, ACCOUNT AGING, APPROVED DISCOUNTS, DENIAL RATES, AND PAYMENT
CYCLES ARE CONSIDERED WHEN ESTIMATING THE ALLOWANCES, THE RESULTS OF THESE ASSESSMENTS
ARE USED TO DETERMINE THE PROVISION FOR BAD DEBTS AND TO ESTIMATE AN APPROPRIATE
ALLOWANCE FOR UNCOLLECTIBLE ACCOUNTS, THE ORGANIZATION FOLLOWS XESTABLISHED GUIDELINES
FOR PLACING |TS SELF-PAY PATIENT ACCOUNTS WITH AN OUTSIDE COLLECTION AGENCY. AFTER
COLLECTION EFFORTS ARE EXHAUSTED, THE UNCOLLECTED BALANCES ARE RETURNED TO BE WRITTEN
OFF TO BAD DEBTS, THE ORGANIZATION DOES NOT MAINTAIN A MATERIAL ALLOWANCE FOR
UNCOLLECTIBLE ACCOUNTS FROM THIRD-PARTY PAYERS, NOR DID IT HAVE SIGNIFICANT WRITE OFFS
FROM THIRD-PARTY PAYERS.

SCHEDULE H, PART IH,
LINE 8 - DESCRIBE

THE COSTING SOURCE IS THE MEDICARE COST REFORT AND THE METHCDOLOGY [S MEDICARE
ALLOWABLE COST TO MEDICARE REVENUES RECEIVED,

EXTENT ANY SHORTFALL

FROM LINE 7 TREATED AS

COMMUNITY BENEFIT

AND COSTING METHOD

USED

SCHEDULE H, PART IIt, ONCE THE COLLECTICN PROCESS HAS BEGUN, THE ORGANIZATION CONTINUES TO MONITOR WHETHER
LINE 9B - DID THE PATIENT QUALIFIES FOR CHARITY CARE UNDER THE FINANGIAL ASSISTANCE POLICY. IF THE
COLLECTICN POLICY ORGANIZATION DETERMINES THAT A PATIENT QUALIFIES FOR FINANCIAL ASSISTANGE, INCLUDING ONCE
CONTAIN PROVISIONS ON (THE COLLECTION PROCESS HAS BEGUN, THE QRGANIZATION WILL APPROVE THE PATIENT FOR CHARITY
COLLECTION PRACTICES |CARE, ONCE CHARITY CARE HAS BEEN APPROVED, THERE IS NO FURTHER ATTEMPT MADE BY THE

FOR PATIENTS WHO ARE
KNOWN TO QUALIFY FOR
ASSISTANCE

ORGNANIZATION TO COLLECT, COLLECTION EFFORTS WILL BE STOPPED AT ANY TIME DURING THE
COLLECTION PROCESS IF THE PATIENT QUALIFIES FOR CHARITY CARE UNDER THE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE
POLICY, FURTHERMORE, IF A PATIENT'S FINANCIAL SITUATION CHANGES AT ANY POINT DURING THE
COLLECTION PROCESS, THE PATIENT MAY QUALIFY FOR FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE AT SUCH POINT.
PATIENTS DETERMINED TO BE ELIGIBLE FCR FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE SUBSEQUENT TC THE DATE OF
SERVICE MAY BE £LIGIBLE FOR A REFUND OF PAYMENTS MADE IF IT 1S DETERMINED THAT THE PATIENT
WAS ELIGIBLE FOR A REFUND OF PAYMENTS MADE IF IT IS DETERMINED THAT THE PATIENT WAS ELIGIBLE
FOR FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE AT THE TIME OF SERVICE,

SCHEDULE H, PART V,
SECTION A -

MERCY MEDICAL CENTER (MMC) iS A LICENCED HOSPITAL, MMC PROVIDES INPATIENT, QUTPATIENT AND
EMERGENGY CARE SERVICES PRIMARILY FOR THE CITIZENS OF THE BALTIMORE METROPOLITAN AREA.

SCHEDULE H, PART V,
SECTION B, LINE 21 -

THE HOSPITAL FACILITY PROVIDES A DISCOUNT OF AT LEAST 10% OFF OF GROSS CHARGES FOR THE
PROVISION OF EMERGENCY AND OTHER MEDICALLY NECESSARY CARE TO ANY INDIVIDUAL THAT IS
ELIGIBLE FOR FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE UNDER THE HOSPITAL FAGILITY'S FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE POLICY.
FURSUANT TO THE HEALTH SERVICES COST REVIEW COMMISSION (HSCRC) ALL-PAYOR SYSTEM FOR
HOSPITALS IN THE STATE OF MARYLAND, THE GREATEST DISCOUNT OFF OF GROSS CHARGES FOR THE
PROVISION OF EMERGENCY AND OTHER MEDICALLY NECESSARY CARE PERMITTED TO ANY COMMERCIAL
INSURER OR MEDICARE IS ONLY 6%. AS A RESULT, THE HOSPITAL FACILITY WAS ABLE TO DETERMINE THAT
THE MAXIMUM AMOUNT CHARGED TO INDIVIDUALS THAT WERE ELIGIBLE FOR FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE
UNDER THE HOSPITAL FACILITY'S FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE POLICY WAS NOT GREATER THAN THE AMOUNT
GENERALLY BILLED TO INDIVIDUALS WHO HAVE INSURANCE COVERING SUCH CARE.
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SCHEDULE H, PART VI,
LINE 2 - NEEDS
ASSESSMENT

MERCY MEDICAL CENTER GENERALLY EMPLOYS A MULTI-PRONGED APPROACH IN IDENTIFYING
COMMUNITY HEALTH NEEDS. THESE APPROACHES ARE AS FOLLOWS:

1. AS PART OF THE QUANTITATIVE DATA GATHERING PROCESS FOR THE 2024 CHNA, MERCY'S COMMUNITY
BENEFIT COMMITTEE MEMBERS WORKED COLLABORATIVELY WITH THE BALTIMORE NEIGHBORHOOD
INDICATORS ALLIANCE-JACOB FRANCE INSTITUTE AT THE UNIVERSITY OF BALTIMORE (BNIA-JFI), BNIA-IFI IS
A NONPROFIT ORGANIZATION WHOSE CORE MISSION IS TO PROVIDE OPEN ACCESS TO MEANINGFUL,
RELIABLE, AND ACTIONABLE DATA ABOUT, AND FOR, THE CITY OF BALTIMORE AND ITS COMMUNITIES, BNIA-
JFI BUILDS ON AND COORDINATES THE RELATED WORK OF CITYWIDE NONPROFIT ORGANIZATIONS, CITY
AND STATE GOVERNMENT AGENCIES, NEIGHBORHOODS, FOUNDATIONS, BUSINESSES, AND UNIVERSITIES
TO SUPPCRT AND STRENGTHEN THE PRINCIPLE AND PRACTICE OF WELL INFORMED DECISION MAKING
FOR CHANGE TOWARD STRONG NEIGHBORHOQDS, IMPROVED QUALITY OF LIFE, AND A THRIVING CITY.
BNIA-JF] 18 ALSO A PARTNER MEMBER OF THE NATIONAL NEIGHBCRHOOD INDICATORS PARTNERSHIP OF
THE URBAN INSTITUTE (NNIP), NNIP 1S A COLLABORATIVE EFFORT BY THE URBAN INSTITUTE AND NEARLY
40 LOCAL PARTNERS TO FURTHER THE DEVELOPMENT AND USE OF NEIGHBORHOOD-LEVEL INFORMATION
SYSTEMS IN LOCAL POLICYMAKING AND COMMUNITY BUILDING, BNIA-JFI PROVIDED TO MERCY'
COMMUNITY BENEFIT COMMITTEE A BROAD ARRAY OF NEIGHBORHOOD DATA INBICATORS THAT PROVIDE
ALL OF THE FACTS AND CIRCUMSTANCES PRESENT IN MERCY'S COMMUNITY BENEFIT SERVICE AREA
INCLUDING BARRIERS TO ACCESSING CARE, TO PREVENT ILLNESS, TO ENSURE ADEQUATE NUTRITION, OR
TO AI\DABTIIIETS\? SOCIAL, BEHAVIORAL AND ENVIRONMENTAL FACTORS THAT INFLUENCE HEALTH IN THE

COM .

INCORPORATED INTO BNIA-JFI'S NEIGHBORHOOD-LEVEL SOCIQOECONOMIC DATASETS ARE INDIVIDUAL
NEIGHBORHOOD HEALTH PROFILES COMPLETED BY THE BALTIMORE CITY HEALTH DEPARTMENT AND
UPBATED IN MARCH 2012, THE NEIGHBORHCOOD HEALTH PROFILES EXAMINE AT THE UNDERLYING
FACTORS THAT AFFECT HEALTH IN EACH NEIGHBORHOOD-THE SQCIAL DETERMINANTS OF HEALTH, THE
SOCIAL DETERMINANTS OF HEALTH ARE THE CONDITIONS IN WHICH RESIDENTS LIVE, LEARN, WORK, AND
PLAY, AND INCLUDE FACTORS LIKE ACCESS TO HEALTHY FOOD, HEALTHY HOUSING, QUALITY SCHOOLS,
AND SAFE PLACES TO BE ACTIVE, THE NEIGHBORHOOD HEALTH PROFILES PRESENT HEALTH QUTCOME
INFORMATION AT THE COMMUNITY STATISTICAL AREA {CSA) LEVEL IN BALTIMORE CITY IN ORDER TO
SUPPORT COMMUNITY-LEVEL HEALTH IMPROVEMENT EFFORTS TO ACHIEVE THE HEALTHY BALTIMORE
2015 PLAN, THE GITY'S COMPREHENSIVE PUBLIC HEALTH AGENDA TO IMPROVE HEALTH QUTCOMES [N
BALTIMORE. THE BALTIMORE CITY'S OFFICE OF EPIDEMIOLOGY UTILIZED RIGOROUS RESEARCH METHODS
AND SURVEY ANALYSIS TECHNIQUES TO AGGREGATE ALL THE DATA TO THE GOMMUNITY STATISTICAL
AREA (CSA} LEVEL. THE USE OF THE MOST RECENTLY AVAILABLE NEIGHBORHOGOD HEALTH PROFILE
INFORMATION FROM THE BALTIMORE CITY HEALTH DEPARTMENT ENSURES THAT THE COMMUNITY HEALTH
PRIORITIES OF MERCY MEDICAL CENTER REMAIN ALIGNED WITH THE CURRENT HEALTH PRIORITIES QOF
THE CITY. DATA SOURCES INCLUDE A VARIETY OF PUBLIC AND PRIVATE SOURCES SUCH AS: THE U.S.
CGENSUS, THE AMERICAN COMMUNITY SURVEY, THE VITAL STATISTICS ADMINISTRATION AT THE MARYLAND
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND MENTAL HYGIENE, THE NATIONAL CENTER FOR HEALTH STATISTICS, THE
BALTIMORE CITY PUBLIC SCHOOLS SYSTEM, THE MAYOR'S OFFICE OF INFORMATION TECHNGLOGY, THE
BALTIMORE CITY HOUSING DEPARTMENT, THE BALTIMORE CITY COMPTROLLER'S QOFFICE, THE BALTIMORE
CITY PLANNING DEPARTMENT, THE BALTIMORE CITY REAL PROPERTY MANAGEMENT DATABASE, THE
BALTIMORE CITY LIQUOR BOARD, THE BALTIVMORE CITY HEALTH DEPARTMENT, CENTER FOR A LIVABLE
FUTURE, AND THE MARYLAND DEPARTMENT OF THE ENVIRCNMENT.

IN ABDITION, THE ORGANIZATION ACCESSES AND REVIEWS OTHER STATE OF MARYLAND HEALTH CARE
DA"II_‘AS %ASES RELATED TO HEALTH CARE NEEDS OF COMMUNITIES THAT MERCY MEDICAL GENTER SERVES
INT SA,

FURTHERMORE, MERCY MEDICAL CENTER REVIEWS PUBLICATIONS AND DATA AVAILABLE FROM
ORGANIZATIONS IN WHICH MERCY MEDICAL CENTER PHYSICIAN AND ADMINISTRATIVE LEADERSHIP ARE
ACTIVE PARTICIPANTS AND MEMBERS SUCH AS B'MORE FOR HEALTHY BABIES, JOURNEY HOME, FAMILY
CRISIS CENTER OF BALTIMORE, AND BALTIMORE HOMELESS SERVICES, AMOUNG OTHERS.

2. PARTNERSHIPS, WORKGROUPS, AND MEMBERSHIP IN ORGANIZATIONS THROUGH THE WORKGROUPS
AND PARTNERSHIPS THAT HAVE BEEN ESTABLISHED WITH KEY ORGANIZATIONS SUCH AS HEALTH CARE
FOR THE HOMELESS, BALTIMORE HOMELESS SERVICES, THE WEINBERG HOUSING AND RESCURCE
CENTER, MAYOR'S OFFICE ON EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT, SEX AND FAMILY CRIMES DIVISION OF THE
BALTIMORE CITY POLICE DEPARTMENT, TURN ARQUND HOUSE OF RUTH, FAMILY CRISIS CENTER OF
BALTIMORE, DOMESTIC VIOLENCE COORDINATING COUNCIL, B'MORE FOR HEALTHY BABIES AND FAMILY
HEALTH GENTERS COF BALTIMORE, THE HOSPITAL RECEIVED SIGNIFICANT INPUT AND FEEDBACK ON THE
HEALTH CARE NEEDS OF ITS IMMEDIATE SURRCUNDING NEIGHEORHOODS AND COMMUNITIES. THIS WAS
ACHIEVED THROUGH REGULAR MEETINGS AND DISCUSSIONS THRCUGHOUT FY24.

THROUGH PARTICIPATION OF THE HOSPITAL'S EXECUTIVE LEADERSHIP TEAM IN BUSINESS FORUMS SUCH
AS THE DOWNTOWN PARTNERSHIP AND MEMBERSHIP IN GTHER ORGANIZATIONS, SIGNIFICANT FEEDBACK
AND INFORMATION ON HEALTH CARE NEEDS AND GAPS WAS ALSO GATHERED,

3. MERCY HEALTH SERVICES MISSION AND CORPORATE ETHICS COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES
MEETS REGULARLY TO REVIEW AND GOQRDINATE ISSUES RELATED TO MISSION INTEGRATION AND
COORDINATION. THIS BOARD COMMITTEE IS INFORMED AND CLEARLY UNDERSTANDS THE SCOPE AND
DEPTH CF THE HOSPITAL'S COMMUNITY BENEFIT AND INITIATIVES.

IN SUMMARY, THROUGH A QUANTITATIVE ASSESSMENT OF NEEDS BASED ON REVIEW OF CURRENT DATA
SOURCES AND ACTIVE PARTICIPANTS IN SEVERAL COMMUNITY BASED ORGANIZATIONS, MERCY MEDICAL
CENTER HAS BEEN ABLE TO DETERMINE AND PRIORITIZE ITS COMMUNITY HEALTH NEEDS FOCUS.

IN ADDITION TO THE FOREGCING APPROACHES REGULARLY FOLLOWED BY MERGCY MEDICAL GENTER,
MERCY MEDICAL CENTER CONDUCTED ITS THIRD COMMUNITY HEALTH NEEDS ASSESSMENT, IN
COMPLIANCE WITH THE REQUIREMENTS SET FORTH UNDER INTERNAL REVENUE CODE SECTION 501 (R){3)
AND THE GUIDANCE PROVIDED BY iRS NOTICE 2011-52, DURING ITS 2021 TAX YEAR. MERCY MEDICAL
CENTER WILL DIRECT ITS COMMUNITY HEALTH NEEDS PLANNING TOWARDS ADDRESSING THOSE
COMMUNITY HEALTH NEEDS IDENTIFIED IN THE COMMUNITY HEALTH NEEDS ASSESSMENT IN
ACCORDANCE WITH ITS IMPLEMENTATICN STRATEGY.

MERCY HAS COMPLETED AN UPDATED COMMUNITY HEALTH NEEDS ASSESSMENT AND IMPLEMENTATION
STRATEGY IN JUNE 2024, THIS UPDATED VERSION 1S AVAILABLE ON THE MERCY HEALTH SERVICES
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WEBSITE,

SCHEDULE H, PART V1,
LINE 3 - PATIENT
EDUCATION

MERCY ATTEMPTS TO BE YERY PROACTIVE IN COMMUNICATING ITS FINANCIAL ASSISTANGE POLICY AND
FINANGCIAL ASSISTANCE CONTACT INFORMATION TO PATIENTS, THE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE POLICY AND
FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE CONTACT INFORMATION IS POSTED IN ALL ADMISSIONS AREAS, INCLUDING THE
EMERGENCY ROOM. SUCH NOTICE IS POSTED [N ENGLISH, SPANISH AND/OR OTHER LANGUAGE THAT WILL
BE UNDERSTANDABLE TO TARGET POPULATIONS OF PATIENTS UTLIZING HOSPITAL SERVICES,

A COPY OF THE POLICY AND FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE CONTACT INFORMATION 1S PROVIDED TO PATIENTS
OR THEIR FAMILIES DURING THE PRE-ADMISSION, PRE-SURGERY AND ADMISSIONS PROCESS.
ADDITIONALLY, A COPY OF THE POLICY AND FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE CONTACT INFORMATION IS PROVIDED
TO PATIENTS OR THEIR FAMILIES UPON IHSCHARGE.

MERCY UTILIZES A THIRD PARTY, AS WELL AS IN-HOUSE FINANCIAL COUNSELING STAFF, TO CONTACT AND
SUPPORT PATIENTS IN UNDERSTANDING AND COMPLETING THE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE REQUIREMENTS,
THEY ALSO DISCUSS WITH PATIENTS OR THEIR FAMILIES THE AVAILABILITY OF VARIOUS GOVERNMENT
BENEFITS AND ASSIST PATIENTS WITH UNDERSTANDING THE QUALIFICATIONS FOR SUGH PROGRAMS.

EVEN AFTER A PATIENT IS DISCHARGED, EACH BILLING STATEMENT CONTAINS AN OVERVIEW OF MERCY'S
FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE POLICY, A PATIENT'S RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS, AND CONTACT NUMBERS FOR
FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE, FINANCIAL COUNSELING, AND MARYLAND MEDICAID, FOLLOW-UP PHONE CALLS
BY HOSPITAL BILLING/COLLECTION STAFF MADE TO PATIENTS WITH UNPAID BALANGCES ALSO STRESS THE
AVAILABILITY OF FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE AND CHARITY CARE AVAILABILITY.

MERGY MEDICAL CGENTER WEL MAKE AN EFFORT TO PROVIDE THE FINANGIAL ASSISTANCE APPLICATION,
POLICIES, PROCEDURES AND INFORMATION IN ENGLISH, SPANISH, AND/OR ANY OTHER LANGUAGE THAT
WILL BE UNDERSTANDABLE TO TARGET POPULATIONS OF PATIENTS UTILIZING HOSPITAL SERVICES.

MERCY MEDICAL CENTER PROVIDES AND PROMOTES HEALTH SERVICES FOR THE PEOPLE OF BALTIMORE
OF EVERY CREED, RACE, ECONOMIC, AND SOGIAL CONDITION. IN THE SPIRIT OF THE SISTERS OF MERCY
WHO ARE ITE‘I::{EPONSORS, MERCY CONTINUES TG HAVE A SPECIAL COMMITMENT TQ THE UNDERSERVED
AND UNINSURED.
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SCHEDULE H, PART Vi,
LINE 4 - COMMUNITY
INFORMATION

LOGATED IN THE HEART OF DOWNTOWN BALTIMORE, MERCY MEDICAL CENTER DRAWS PATIENTS FROM
THE GREATER BALTIMORE METROPOLITAN AREA FOR ITS LONGSTANDING TRADITION OF COMPASSIONATE
gﬁi(gicﬁg'l\\jdshﬂ ITMENT TO QUALIFY AND PATIENT SAFETY, AS WELL AS ITS PRIMARY CARE AND SPECIALIST

MERCY MEDICAL CENTER'S PRIMARY SERVICE AREA ("PSA" WHICH COMPRISES 16 ZiP CODES IN
BALTIMORE CITY, ACCOUNTS FOR 50.6% OF ITS TOTAL ADMISSIONS. KEY DEMOGRAPHIC
CHARACTERISTICS OF THE PSA ARE AS FOLLOWS:

1. THE CHNA SERVICE AREA (CBSA) POPULATION IS 176,389, REPRESENTING APPROXIMATELY 30% OF
BALTIMORE CITY'S TOTAL POPULATION,

2. THE PERCENTAGE OF HOUSEHOLDS LIVING BEELQW THE FEDERAL POVERTY LINE 1S DRAMATICALLY
HIGHER THAN THE CITYWIDE PERCENTAGE (20,1% VS 14,5%), ADDITIONALLY, THERE ARE FAR MORE
CHILDREN LIVING BELOW THE FEDERAL POVERTY LINE WITHIN MERCY'S CHNA SERVICE AREA THAN
CITYWIDE {32.7% VS 25.8%).

3, UNEMPLOYMENT WITHIN BALTIMORE CITY IS SLIGHTLY HIGHER THAN STATEWIDE {3.8% VS 2,6%).
PERHAPS MORE THAN ANY OTHER DATASET INCLUDED IN THIS REPORT, THIS DEMONSTRATES MERCY'S
LONG-STANDING SPECIAL COMMITMENT TO SERVE THE POOR AND UNDERSERVED.

ETHNICITY AND AGE
1. 56.0% BLACK; 31.8% CAUCASIAN IN CBSA.

2. APPROXIMATELY 63.7% OF PATIENTS SERVED BY MERCY MEDICAL CENTER ARE MEMBERS OF A RAGIAL
OR ETHRIC MINIORITIES; 66.1% ARE WOMEN
3. 28.7% OF THE POPULATION IS 65 YEARS IN AGE OR OLDER

INCOME
1. 22.7% OF CBSA HOUSEHQLDS REPORTED LIVING BELOW THE FEDERAL POVERTY LINE.

2. THE PERCENTAGE OF FAMILIES LIVING IN MERCY'S CBSA THAT HAD INCOME THAT WAS BELOW THE
POVERTY LEVEL WAS GREATER COMPARED TO ALL FAMILIES IN BALTIMORE CITY (22.7% VS 16.3%).

MORTALITY

QOF NOTE, THE MAJOR COMMUNITY BENEFIT PROGRAMS THAT ARE IDENTIFIED IN PART VI, QUESTION §
"PROMOTION OF COMMUNITY HEALTH" DIRECTLY ADDRESS KEY HEALTH CARE NEEDS OF THE POPULATION
IN MERCY MEDICAL CENTER'S PSA.

1. % OF POTENTIALLY AVERTABLE DEATHS: 46.6 VS BALTIMORE RATE OF 36.2
2. TEEN BIRTH RATE PER 1,000: 26.8 VS BALTIMORE RATE OF 21.5
3. LOW BIRTH WEIGHT: 11.5% VS BALTIMORE RATE OF 11.7%

A3 SHOWN BY THESE SELECT INDICATORS, THERE 1S A SIGNIFICANT HEALTH STATUS DISPARITY BETWEEN
MERCY'S COMMUNITY BENEFIT SERVIGE AREA (CBSA) AND BALTIMORE CITY'S RESIDENTS,

DUE TO ITS LOCATION IN CENTER CITY, MERCY MEDICAL CENTER CARES FOR MANY OF THE AT-RISK, LOW
INCOME POPULATION IN THE COMMUNITIES THAT IMMEDIATELY SURROUND THE HOSPITAL. THIS IS BEST
EVIDENCED 8Y THE LARGE PERCENTAGE OF EMERGENCY ROCM VISITS BY THE MEDICAID, UNINSURED
AND MEDICARE PATIENTS.

MEDICAID COVERED AND UNINSURED PATIENTS ACCOUNTED FOR MORE THAN 55.7% OF THE FY24
EMERGENCY ROOM VISITS, THERE ARE A COUPLE NOTABLE REASONS FOR SUCH A HIGH MEDICALD AND
UNINSURED PATIENT POPULATION VISITING THE EMERGENCY ROOM:

}H%Ahg!gﬂl%_?I\ELCiTY'S LARGEST HOMELESS SHELTER AT GUILFORD AVENUE IS WITHIN THREE BLOCKS OF
2. MERCY MEDICAL CENTER PROVIDES ALL OF THE MEDICAL STAFF (PHYSICIANS AND NURSING
PERSONNEL) FOR HEALTHCARE FOR THE HOMELESS (HCH), A FEDERALLY QUALIFIED HEALTH CENTER,
WHICH DELIVERS OUTPATIENT CARE TO A LARGE NUMBER OF HOMELESS PERSCNS IN BALTIMORE CITY.
THE HCH CLINIC IS LOCATED THREE BLOCKS FROM THE HOSPITAL.

Mercy Medical Center
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SCHEDULE H, PART VI,
LINE 5 - PROMOTION OF
COMMUNITY HEALTH

MERCY FAMILY VIOLENCE RESPONSE PROGRAM

THE MERCY FAMILY VIOLENGCE RESPONSE PROGRAM WAS DEVELQOPED BY A MULTIDISCIPLINARY STAFF

TASK FORGE AT MERCY MEDICAL CENTER TO PROVIDE CRISIS INTERVENTION AND SAFETY PLANNING FOR

VICTIMS OF FAMILY VIOLENCE (DOMESTIC VIOLENCE, CHILD ABUSE, ELDER AND VULNERABLE ADULT

?BESE) AND SEXUAL ASSAULT WHO COME TO MERGY MEDICAL CENTER AND ITS PHYSICIANS FOR
REATMENT.

THIS PROGRAM IMPROVES BALTIMORE'S COORDINATED COMMUNITY RESPONSE TQ VICTIMS OF VIOLENGE,
AND CREATES AN ALERT WORKFORCE AT MERCY MEDICAL CENTER, SKILLED AT IDENTIFYING AND
RESPONDING TO VICTIMS OF FAMILY VIOLENCE.

DUE TOITS LOCATION WITHIN THREE BLOCKS OF THE CITY'S LARGEST HOMELSS SHELTER AT GUILFORD
AVENUE AND CLOSE PROXIMITY TQ HCH, MERCY MEDICAL CENTER'S ER RECEIVES MANY VISITS FROM
HOMELESS PERSONS, WITH DECADES OF EXPERIENCE IN PROVIDING EMERGENCY AND URGENT CARE TO
POOR AND HOMELESS POPULATIONS, THE HOSPITAL HAS ESTABLISHED KEY SERVICES FOR THE
MEDICALLY UNDERSERVED INCLUDING THE FOLLOWING: A FULL TIME SOCIAL WORKER 1S A PART OF THE
ER TEAM TO COORDINATE CARE AND OTHER SERVICES FOR HOMELESS PATIENTS WHO ARRIVE AT THE
ER.

EERP\}-IIEE[CIANS AND NURSES MAKE VISITS TO BALTIMORE CITY SHELTERS TO PROVIDE THE FOLLOWING
S

1. ADMINISTRATION OF FLU VACCINATIONS TO RESIDENTS
2, PRESENTATIONS ON PARASITES AND INFECTIOUS DISEASE
3. INFECTIOUS DISEASE PREVENTION

THE FORENSIC NURSE EXAMINER PROGRAM (FNE) IS HOUSED AT THE HOSPITAL'S ER AND PROVIDES 24/7
CARE TO PATIENTS WHO ARE VICTIMS QF SEXUAL, DOMESTIC, CHILD, ELDER AND INSTITUTIONAL
VICLENGE. FORENSIC NURSES PROVIDE COMPREHENSIVE FORENSIC MEDICAL INTERVIEWS, MEDICAL
ASSESSMENTS, EVIDENCE COLLECTION, AND ASSURE CRISIS INTERVENTICN TO AN EVER INCREASING
VOLUME OF UNDERSERVED PATIENTS.

DURING FY 2024, THE FNE PROGRAM CONDUCTED 494 EXAMINATIONS AND IS THE DESIGNATED SITE FOR
PATIENTS IN BALTIMORE CITY.

LOW BIRTH WEIGHT PROGRAM - BEPARTMENT OF OBSTETRICS

MERCY MEDICAL CENTER DELIVERED 2,648 BABIES IN BALTIMORE CITY IN FY 2024. LOW BIRTH WEIGHT AND
PREMATURITY ARE INTERTWINED AND CORRELATED. AS CITED IN QUESTION #2, LOW BIRTH WEIGHT IS A
KEY HEALTH STATUS INDICATOR THAT IS MEASURED AND TRACKED BY BALTIMORE CITY DEPARTMENT OF
HEALTH THAT MUST BE DECREASED IN INCIDENCE.

THE HOSPITAL HAS TAKEN A LEADERSHIP ROLE THROUGH ITS ACTIVE PARTICIPATION IN "B'MORE FOR
HEALTHLY BABIES", A LONG TERM INITIATIVE LED BY THE MAYOR'S OFFICE AND MANAGED BY BALTIMORE
CITY HEALTH DEPARTMENT TO REDUCE THE INCIDENTS OF LOW BIRTH WEIGHT, DR ROBERT ATLAS,
CHAIRMAN OF MERCY MEDICAL CENTER'S DEPARTMENT OF OBSTETRICS AND GYNECOLOGY, HAS A
LEADERSHIP ROLE WITHIN THIS WORKGROUP, THE GOALS OF "B'MORE FOR HEALTHY BABIES" ARE
REDUCTION IN THE FOLLOWING:

1. RATE OF PRE-TERM BIRTHS BY AT LEAST 10%
2. RATE OF LOW BIRTH WEIGHT INFANTS BY AT LEAST 10%
3. THE NUMBER QF DEATHS FROM UNSAFE SLEEP BY AT LEAST 10%

OF NOTE 73.8% OF THE BABIES CARED FOR IN MERCY MEDICAL CENTER'S NEONATAL INTENSIVE CARE
UNIT WERE EITHER MEDICAID BENEFICIARIES OR UNINSURED/SELF PAY. THIS POPULATION IS ESPECIALLY
LINKED WITH LOW BIRTH RATE AND PREMATURITY DUE TO POVERTY THAT CLOSELY RELATES TO
UNHEALTHY LIFESTYLES, PARTICULARLY POOR NUTRITION AND INADEQUATE PRENATAL CARE.

IN ORDER TQ ENSURE 24/7 COVERAGE FOR ITS OBSTETRICAL PATIENTS, REGARDLESS OF THEIR ABILITY
TO PAY, MERCY MEDICAL CENTER PROVIDED $1,702,322 IN PHYSICIAN SUBSIDY FOR THIS SPECIALTY.

DETERMINING THE NEEDS IN THE COMMUNITY TO BE ADDRESSED

SINCE THE INCEPTION OF THE COMMUNITY BENEFIT REPORTING TO HSCRC, MERCY MEDICAL CENTER HAS
CONSISTENTLY RANKED AMOUNG THE TOP QUARTILE OF HOSPITALS IN THE STATE OF MARYLAND IN
TERMS OF THE PERCENTAGE OF OPERATING EXPENSE DEVOTED TO COMMUNITY NEEDS PROGRAMS.

ACCESS TO CARE FOR AT-RISK, UNDERSERVED POPULATIONS HAS LONG BEEN A CORNERSTONE MISSION
FOR MERCY MEDICAL CGENTER, MAJOR PROGRAMS TO SERVE THIS NEED INCLUDE CUR FUNDING OF
DIRECT PHYSICIAN CHARITY CARE ACROSS ALL SPECIALTIES AND THE PHARMACY CHARITY FUND TO
PATIENTS WHO ARE UNINSURED AND UNABLE TO PAY. IN ADDITION, MERCY PROVIDES SUBSIDIZED
SUPPORT TO ADULT AND PEDIATRIC PHYSICIAN OFFICES LOCATED ON THE MERCY CAMPUS THAT
PROVIDES COST EFFICIENT AND ACCESSIBLE HELATH CARE REGARDLESS OF INSURANCE STATUS AND
ARRANGES FOR SLIDING SCALE FEES TO ASSIST THE UNINSURED WITH PHYSICIAN AND OTHER EXPENSES.

BASED UPON PRIOR NEEDS ASSESSMENTS, MERCY MEDICAL CENTER IDENTIFIED THREE KEY AREAS OF
FGCUS FOR "MISSION DRIVEN HEALLTH SERVICES" IN FY 2024; THEY ARE AS FOLLOWS:

HOMELESSNESS: THE NEED TO RESPOND TO AND ACTIVELY SUPPORT THE MEDICAL PROFESSIONAL
NEEDS OF CRGANEZATIONS THAT SERVE THE HOMELESS POPULATION OF BALTIMORE.
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EMERGENCY SERVICES: AS PROVIDED THROUGH THE EMERGENCY DEPARTMENT, GIVEN THE LARGE
PERCENTAGE OF POOR AND UNINSURED PATIENTS WHO ACCESS THIS SERVICE,

LOW BIRTH WEIGHT: MERCY MEDICAL CENTER DELIVERS MORE BABIES TG WOMEN AT OR BELOW THE
POVERTY LINE THAN ANY OTHER HOSPITAL [N BALTIMORE. A SIGNIFICANT PERCENTAGE (> 10%) OF THESE
BIRTHS ARE PREMATURE AND OF LOW BIRTH WEIGHT.

ALL OF THESE PROGRAMS ARE INTERTWINED AS THEY SHARE A COMMON THREAD IN THAT ALL
UNDERSERVED AND FOOR POPULATIONS OF BALTIMORE ARE THE PRIMARY RECIPIENTS OF MEDICAL
SERVIGES PROVIDED BY MERCY MEDICAL CENTER ON AND GFF ITS CAMPUS.

HOMELESSNESS

THE NUMBER QF PEQPLE EXPERIENCING HOMELESSNESS HAS GROWN STEADILY OVER THE PAST 20
YEARS IN BALTIMORE AND THROUGHOUT THE ENTIRE NATION, THIS NUMBER IS EXPECTED TO CONTINUE
TO RISE GIVEN THE DETERIORATING ECONOMIC CONDITIONS LOCALLY AND NATIONALLY THAT CAUSE
HIGH UNEMPLOYMENT, LOSS OF HOMES, REDUCED FEDERAL ASSISTANCE TO MEDICAID AND OTHER
SAFETY NET PROGRAMS. BALTIMORE'S HOMELESS POPULATION EXTENDS GREATLY BEYOND THOSE WHO
CAN FIND BEDS IN CITY AND OTHER NONPROFIT RUN SHELTERS. MERGY MEDICAL CENTER IS DIRECTLY
,'al\\lfgé‘)ql-stD IN THE PROVISION OF MEDICAL SERVICES TO THE HOMELESS POPULATION THROUGH THREE

HEALTH CARE FOR THE HOMELESS

HEALTH CARE FOR THE HOMELESS (HCH) WAS ESTABLISHED IN 1885 AND PROVIDES ADULT, PEDIATRIC,
AND GERIATRIC MEDICAL CARE, DENTAL CARE, MENTAL HEALTH, HIV SERVICES, SOCIAL WORK AND CASE
MANAGEMENT, ADDICTION TREATMENT, OUTREACH, PRISON RE-ENTRY, SUPPORTIVE HOUSING, AND
ACCESS TO EDUCATION AND EMPLOYMENT.

SINCE ITS INCEPTION IN 1985, MERCY MEDICAL CENTER HAS DIRECTLY EMPLOYED AND PROVIDED ALL OF
THE PHYSICIAN AND NURSING STAFF TO HCH FOR MEDICAL SERVICES. WHILE THE HOSPITAL 1S
REIMBURSED FOR THE DNRECT COSTS OF ITS EMPLOYED CLINICIANS BY HCH, INDIRECT AND OTHER
COSTS CONTRIBUTED TO HCH WERE $4,989 IN FY 2024

MERCY MEDICAL CENTER, THROUGH ITS SOLE MEMBER, MHS, IS GOVERNED BY A COMMUNITY BOARD
COMPRISED OF CIVIC LEADERS WHO ARE COMMITTED TO AND REPRESENT THE HEALTHCARE NEEDS OF
THE COMMURNITY. MERCY MEDICAL CENTER EXTENDS MEDICAL STAFF PRIVILEGES TO ALL QUALIFIED
PHYSICIANS FOR ALL OF TS DEPARTMENTS, ALL FINANCIAL SURPLUSES MERCY MEDICAL CENTER
GENERATES ARE USED EXCLUSIVELY TO FURTHER THE MISSION OF THE ORGANIZATION. COMMUNITY
BOARD COMPRISED OF CGIVIC LEADERS WHO ARE COMMITTED TO AND REPRESENT THE HEALTHCARE
NEEDS OF THE COMMUNITY.
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SCHEDULE H, PART VI,
LINE 6 - DESCRIPTION OF
AFFILIATED GROUP

MERCY MEDICAL CENTER IS A PART OF AN AFFILIATED HEALTH CARE SYSTEM, WHICH INCLUDES A
NUMBER OF ORGANIZATIONS THAT ARE UNDER THE COMMON GOVERNANCE OF MERCY HEALTH
SERVICES. THESE AFFILIATED ORGANIZATIONS WORK TOGETHER TQ PROVIDE A RANGE OF HEALTHCARE
SERVICES TO THEIR COMMUNITIES, AMOUNG MERCY MEDICAL CENTER'S AFFILIATES ARE SAINT PAUL
PLACE SPECIALISTS, INC, (SPPS), MARYLAND FAMILY CARE, INC. {MFC), AND STELLA MARIS {SM). SPPS
PROVIDES SPECIALITY PHYSICIAN SERVICES TO PATIENTS OF MERCY MEDICAL CENTER'S INPATIENT
SERVICES AND OUTPATIENT CLINICS AND TO OTHER MEMBERS OF THE COMMUNITY THROUGHOUT
CENTRAL MARYLAND AND BEYOND. DURING THE 2024 TAX YEAR, SPPS PROVIDED $2,011,345 OF CHARITY
CARE TO PATIENTS SEEN BY SPPS PHYSICIANS,

STELLA MARIS OWNS AND OPERATES A NURSING HOME, A RESIDENTIAL AND HOME HOSPICE SERVICE AND
A HOME EEALTH ACENCY, DURING THE FY23 TAX YEAR, SM PROVIDED $251,777 OF CHARITY CARE TO ITS
PATIENTS,

MFC PROVIDES PRIMARY CARE SERVICES ON THE CAMPUS OF MERCY MEDICAL CENTER, THROUGHOUT
BALTIMORE CITY, AND IN ANNE ARUNDEL AND BALTIMORE COUNTIES, ADDITIONALLY, MFC EMPLOYS AN
NUMBER OF PHYSICIANS TO SERVE AS HOSPITALISTS, WHO CARE FOR PATIENTS ADIMTTED TO MERCY
MEDICAL CENTER. ALSO, MFC EMPLOYS NURSE PRACTITIONERS THAT PROVIDE SERVICES TO UNINSURED
PATIENTS IN MERCY'S NURSERY AND CHILDREN'S HEALTH OUTREACH PROGRAM. MFC INCURS
SUBSTANTIAL COSTS PROVIDING THE COMMUNITY WITH THE HOSPITALIST AND NURSE PRACTITIONER
PROGRAMS. DURING THE 2024 TAX YEAR, MFC INCURRED A NET OPERATING LOSS FROM PROVIDING THE
NURSE PRACTITIONER PROGRAM OF $2 446,412,

IN ADDITION TO THE FOREGOING, THE AFFILIATED HEALTH CARE SYSTEM PARTICIPATES IN A NUMBER OF
PARTNERSHIP/WORK GRQUPS, INCLUDING THE FOLLOWING:

GROUP NAME: HEALTH CARE FOR THE HOMELESS

PURPOSE AND MMC PARTICIPATION: HCH PROVIDES HEALTH-RELATED SERVICES TO REDUCE THE
INCIDENGE AND BURDENS OF HOMELESSNESS. ITS HEADQUARTERS/CLINIC 1S LOCATED THREE BLOCKS
FROM MERCY, CHRISTOPHER THOMASKUTTY, MERCY MEDICAL CENTER VICE PRESIDENT, SERVES ON THE
HCH BOARD OF DIRECTORS,

GROUP NAME: BALTIMORE HOMELESS SERVICES

PURPOSE AND MMC PARTICIPATION: A PROGRAM WITHIN THE MAYOR'S OFFICE OF HUMAN SERVICES
RESPONSIBLE FOR MANAGING THE CONTINUUM OF CARE PROVIDED TO THE CITY'S HOMELESS
POPULATION. MERCY SUPPORTIVE HOUSING PROGRAM PROVIDES HOUSING COUNSELING AND CASE
MANAGEMENT FOR HOMELESS FAMILIES UNDER GRANTS FROM THIS AGENCY,

GROUP NAME: THE WEINBERG HOUSING AND RESOURGE CENTER

PURPOSE AND MMC PARTICIPATION: BALTIMORE CITY'S FACILITY PROVIDING 24/7 EMERGENCY SHELTER
BEDS AND 25 BEDS FOR THE MEDICALLY FRAGILE AS WELL AS PROGRAMS AND SERVICES FOR THE
HOMELESS. MERCY EMPLOYEES ASSIST WITH THE PROGRAM.

GROUP NAME: MAYQR'S OFFICE ON EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT

PURPOSE AND MMC PARTICIPATION: MERCY SERVES ON THE EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS TASK FORCE
FOR BALTIMORE CITY.

GRGUP NAME: 8EX AND FAMILY CRIMES DIVISION OF BALTIMORE CITY POLICE

DEPARTMENT PURPOSE AND MMC PARTIGIPATION: MERCY'S FORENSIC NURSE EXAMINER PROGRAM
WORKS COLLLABORATIVELY WITH THE BALTIMCRE CITY POLICE DEPARTMENT. MERCY PROVIDES THE
FORENSIC NURSE EXAMINER PROGRAM IN THE METROPOLITAN AREA.

GROUP NAME: TURN AROCUND, HOUSE OF RUTH

PURPOSE AND MMC PARTICIPATION: MERCY'S FAMILY VIOLENCE RESPONSE PROGRAM WORKS WITH TURN
AROUND, HOUSE OF RUTH AND OTHER ORGANIZATIONS. MERCY ALSO IS TAKING A LEADERSHIP ROLE IN
ESTABLISHING HOSPITAL-BASED FAMILY VIOLENCE RESPONSE PROGRAMS AT OTHER MARYLAND
HOSPITALS.

GROUP NAME: FAMILY CRISIS CENTER OF BALTIMORE (FCCB)

PURPOSE AND MMC PARTICIPATION: FCCB IS A MAJOR REFFERAL PARTNER TO MERCY FORENSIC NURSE
EXAMINER AND SUPPORTIVE HOUSING PROGRAMS.

GROUP NAME: DOMESTIC VIOLENCE COORDINATING GOUNGIL

PURPOSE AND MMC PARTICPATION: COLLEEN MOORE, COORDINATOR OF MERCY'S FAMILY VIGLENGE
REPONSE PROGRAM, SERVES ON THE ORGANIZATION'S STEERING COMMITTEE,

GROUP NAME: B'MORE FOR HEALTHY BABIES

PURFOSE AND MMC PARTICIPATION; BHE 1S A COALITION OF PHYSICIANS AMOUNG BALTIMORE CITY'S
MAJOR HOSPITALS THAT ADDRESSES WAYS TO REDUCE INFANT MORTALITY, PREMATURITY AND LOW
BIRTH WEIGHT, ROBERT ATLAS, M.D. CHAIRMAN OF THE DEPARTMENT OF OBSTETRICS AND GYNECOLOGY
AT MERCY AND A RECOGNIZED EXPERT IN AT-RISK PREGNANCY IS A LEADER WITH BHB.

GROUP NAME: FAMILY HEALTH CENTERS OF BALTIMORE (FCHB}

PURPOSE AND MMC PARTICIPATICON: CHRISTOPHER THOMASKUTTY AND LISA CONIC, MERCY MEDICAL
CENTER VICE PRESIDENTS, SERVE ON THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF FCHB, A FEDERALLY QUALIFIED
HEALTH CENTER THAT SERVES CENTRAL AND SOUTH BALTIMORE CITY.

GROUP NAME: TOTAL HEALTHCARE

Mercy Medical Center
52-0591658

58 4/8/2025 11:35:20 AM




Return Referancs - Identifier

Explanation

PURPGSE AND MMC PARTICIPATION; DONNELL HENRY, MERCY MEDICAL GENTER DIRECTOR OF FINANGIAL
PLANNING AND BUDGET, SERVES ON THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF TOTAL HEALTHCARE, A FEDERALLY
QUALIFIED HEALTH CENTER THAT SERVES CENTRAL BALTIMORE CITY.

SCHEDULE H, PART Vi,
LINE 7 - STATE FILING OF
COMMUNITY BENEFIT
REPORT

MD

SCHEDULE H, PART V,
SECTION B, LINE 23 -

THE HOSPITAL DOES NOT CHARGE ANY INDIVIDUALS THAT ARE ELIGIBLE FOR FINANCIAL ASSISTANGE AN
AMOUNT EQUAL TO THE GROSS CHARGES FOR ANY SERVIGE. THE HOSPITAL USED THE CHARGEMASTER
RATES FOR A SERVICE AS A STARTING POINT AGAINST WHICH REDUCTIONS ARE APPLIED TO DETERMINE
THE AMOUNT ACTUALLY BILLED TO PATIENTS ELIGIBLE UNDER THE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE POLICY,

Mercy Medical Center
52-0591658
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Supplemental Information. Provide the information raquired In Part |, fine 2, Part IlI, column {(b), and
any other additlonal information.

Return Referance - Identifier

Explanation

SCHEDULE |, PART |, LINE
2 - PROCEDURES FOR
MONITORING USE OF
GRANT FUNDS.

N/A

(1) SCHEDULE I, PART Ii,
COLUMN A - NAME AND
ADDRESS OF
ORGANIZATION OR
GOVERNMENT

BALTIMORE CIVIC FUND FORMERLY BALTIMORE CITY FOUNDATION, INC.
101 W, 24TH STREET, BALTIMORE, MD 21218

g) SCHEDULE |, PART il
OLUMN A - NAME AND
ADDRESS OF
ORGANIZATION OR
GOVERNMENT

BALTIMORE LEADERSHIP SCHOOL FOR YOUNG WOMEN
128 W. FRANKLIN STREET, BALTIMORE, MD 21201

(3) SCHEDULE I, PART Ii,
COLUMN A - NAME AND
ADDRESS OF
ORGANIZATION OR
GOVERNMENT

BALTIMORE METROPOLITAN COUNCIL
1500 WHETSTONE WAY SUITE 300, BALTIMORE, MD 21230

gl) SCHEDULE |, PART I,
CLUMN A - NAME AND
ADDRESS OF
ORGANIZATION OR
GOVERNMENT

BALTIMORE OFFICE OF PROMOTION & THE ARTS
10 EAST BALTIMORE ST 10TH FLOOR, BALTIMORE, MD 21202

(5} SCHEDULE |, PART II,
COLUMN A - NAME AND
ADDRESS OF
CRGANIZATION OR
GOVERNMENT

CRISTO REY CORPORATE
420 S0UTH CHESTER STREET BUSINESS O, BALTIMORE, MD 21231

(6) SCHEDULE [, PART 1,
GOLUMN A - NAME AND
ADDRESS OF
ORGANIZATION OR
GOVERNMENT

DOWNTOWN PARTNERSHIP OF BALTIMORE, INC
20 SOUTH CHARLES ST.6TH FLOOR, BALTIMORE, MD 21201

{10) SCHEDULE |, PART It,
COLUMN A - NAME AND
ADDRESS OF
ORGANIZATION OR
GOVERNMENT

FARTNERS FOR CANCER CARE AND PREVENTION
10 EAST LEE STREET APT 1901, BALTIMCRE, MD 21202

{11) SCHEDULE I, PART I,
COLUMN A - NAME AND
ADDRESS OF
ORGANIZATION OR
GOVERNMENT

UNIVERSITY OF MARYLAND SCHOOL OF MEDICINE
31 SOUTH GREENE ST DEVELOPMENT OFF|, BALTIMORE, MD 21201

SCHEDULE I, PARTII,
COLUMN H - PURPOSE OF
GRANT OR ASSISTANCE

BALTIMORE CIVIC FUND FORMERLY BALTIMORE CITY FOUNDATION, INC.:
2024 YOUTHWORKS SUMMER JOBS PROGRAM 7/10/23-8/11/23 (5 STUDENTS-HOSPITAL INTERNS)

SCHEDULE I, PART I,
COLUMN H - PURPOSE OF
GRANT OR ASSISTANCE

BALTIMORE LEADERSHIP SCHQOL FOR YOUNG WOMEN:
SPONSORHIP - 2023 (EM) POWER BREAKFAST

SCHEDULE I, PART I,
COLUMN H - PURPOSE OF
GRANT OR ASSISTANCE

BALTIMORE METROPOLITAN COUNCIL:
CHESAPEAKE CONNECT 2023 BINNER SPONSOR

SCHEDULE |, PART I,
COLUMN H - PURPOSE OF
GRANT OR ASSISTANCE

BALTIMORE OFFICE OF PROMOTION & THE ARTS:
2024 FARMERS' MARKET SPONSORSHIP-BAGS & SECURITY

SCHEDULE |, PART I,
COLUMN H - PURPOSE OF
GRANT OR ASSISTANCE

CRISTO REY CORPORATE:
$49,500 + $49,500 =99,000 CORPORATE INTERSHIP PROGRAM { CIP)SPONSORSHIF ANNUAL FEE,

SCHEDULE |, PART Il ,
COLUMN H - PURPOSE OF
GRANT OR ASSISTANCE

DOWNTOWN PARTNERSHIP OF BALTIMORE, INC:
$40,000 VOLUNTARY CONTRIBUTION FY2024; 55,000-40 FOR 40 SPONSORSHIP

SCHEDULE |, PART I,
CGLUMN H - PURPOSE OF
GRANT OR ASSISTANCE

LOYOLA UNIVERSITY MARYLAND:
%%ERIQI'BUS’NESS LEADER OF THE YEAR 2023 PARTNER SPONSORSHIP TABLE. $1,750 15TH ANNUAL GOLF

SCHEDULE 1, PART Il ,
COLUMN H - PURPOSE OF
GRANT OR ASSISTANGCE

MERCY HIGH SCHOOL:

SPIRIT OF MERCY SPONSORHIP $10,000, 2024 GARNET GALA $2,500, AN INVITATION TO HONOR SIS PATRICIA
SMITH §500, BE A GEM DAY OF GIVING $2,000 & SPONSORHIP-THE CLASSIC $500

SCHEDULE I, PART I,
COLUMN H - PURPOSE OF
GRANT COR ASSISTANCE

MOUNT VERNON PLLACE CONSERVANCY:

$10,000 SPONSORSHIP FOR THE MONUMENT LIGHTING; $5,000 FOR 2024 FLOWER MART EVENT & $4.500
MOUNT VERNON FLACE CONSERVANCY SPONSORSHIF

Mercy Medical Center
52-0591658

62 4{8/2025 11:35:20 AM




Return Referance - ldantifier Explanaticn

SCHEDULE ), PART I, PARTNERS FOR CANCER CARE AND PREVENTION:
COLUMN H - PURPOSE OF
DR SARDI'S CHIPPING FOR CANCER CARE GOLF OUTING SEPTEMBER 22, 2023,

GRANT OR ASSISTANCE
SCHEDULE [, PART It , UNIVERSITY OF MARYLAND SCHOOL OF MEDICINE:

COLUMN H - PURPOSE OF
GRANT OR ASSISTANCE  ($10,000 PRESENTING SPONSORSHIP FOR THE 2024 UNIVERSITY OF MARYLAND SCHOOL OF MEDICINE
CELEBRATING DIVERSITY EVENT

Mercy Medical Center 63 4/8/2025 11:35:20 AM
52-0531658



M M OMB No, -
SCHEDULE J Compensation Information |ove to. 16450047
(Form 990) For certain Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest 2 @23
Compensated Employees
Complete if the organization answered “Yes" on Form 890, Part IV, line 23, . :
Department of the Treasury b o Attach to Form 990, ’ Open to Public
Internal Revenus Servics Go to www.irs.gov/Form890 for instructions and the latest information. -.. Inspection
Name of the organization “Employer identiication humber
MERCY MEDICAL GENTER 52-0591658

IZIIN Questions Regarding Compensation

Yes | No

1a Check the appropriate box(es) If the organization provided any of the following to or for a person listed on Form
990, Part VI, Secticn A, line 1a, Complete Part Il to provide any relevant information regarding these items,

[J First-class or charter travel [_] Housing allowance or residence for personal use
L1 Travel for companions {1 Payments for business use of personal residence
[ Tax indemnification and gross-up payments [] Health or sogial club dues or initiation fees

[ Discretionary spending account [ Personal services (such as maid, chauffeur, chef)

b If any of the boxes on line 1a are checked, did the organization follow a written policy regarding payment
or reimbursement or provision of all of the expenses described above? I “No,” complete Part Il to
explain .

2 Did the organization require substantiation prior to reimbursing or allowing expenses incurred by all
directars, trustees, and officers, including the CEQ/Executive Director, regarding the ltems checked on line
1a? .

3 Indicate which, if any, of the following the organization used to establish the compensation of the
organization's CEO/Executive Director. Check all that apply. Do not check any boxes for methods used by a
related organization to establish compensation of the CEO/Executive Director, but explain in Part Ill.

[l Gompensation committes [ written employment contract
(] Independent compensation consultant ] Compensation survey or study
("] Form 980 of other organizations [ Approval by the board or compensation committee

4  During the year, did any person listed on Form 990, Fart VI, Section A, line 1a, with respect to the filing
organization or a related organization:
a Raceive a severance payment or change-of-control payment? .
Participate in or receive payment from a supplemental nonqualified retlrement plan'? .
¢ Participate in or recelve payment from an equity-based compensation arrangement? . .
If “Yes” to any of lines 4a—c, list the persons and provide the applicable amounts for each item in Part IIE.

[=p

Only section 501{c)(3), 501{c){4), and 501(c)(29) organizations must complete lines 5-9,
5 For persons listed on Form 990, Part VII, Section A, line 1a, did the organization pay or accrue any
compensation contingent on the revenues of:
a The organization?
b Any related organization? .
If “Yes” on line 5a or 5b, describe in Part III

6 For persons listed on Form 990, Part VI, Section A, line 1a, did the organization pay or accrue any
compensation contingent on the net earnings of:
a The crganization? .
b Any related organization? .
If “Yes" on line B8a or Bb, describe in Part III

7  For persons listed on Form 890, Part Vil, Section A, line ta, did the organization provide any nonfixed
payments not described on lines 5 and 67 If “Yes,” describe in Part il , . . . . o . 7|V

8  Woere any amounts reported on Form 990, Part VI, paid or accrued pursuant to a contract that was sub}ect
to the initial contract exception described in Regulations section 53.4958-4(a)(3)? If “Yes,” desciibe
in Part |I! .-

9 If “Yes” on line 8, did the organization also follow the rebuttable presumption procedure described in

Regulations section 53.4958-6(c)? . . . . . . . . . . . . L. L. Lo 9
For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 9940, Gat, No, 50053T Schedule J (Form 990) 2023
Mercy Medical Cenfer 64 418/2025 11:35:20 AM

52-0591658



859165028
121U30) [eApAN AdJol

WV 02:5€11) SZ0Z/8i €9
£207 (066 wod) r smpatos -
w gk
0]
) Gl
0]
] 965'22 8e7'6Z 0 ] 0 26E'ey (] QIDIH40 X3 "HIVHO HaWsod ¥
0 0 0 0 0 v 0 0] NITINW "M SYNOHL
0 0 0 o 0 0 0 E yorogyig &
0 PSET8E Orr8e ¥56'c L18'1L £ZT6'FE 09E'ELL (U] INYTININ 3 TZYHDIW
0 0 0 0 0 o 0 {m HaungyIuL ot
0 608°'G0¢E 962'6L ot 0 G99'7E GEEVPT n T13004.13d HONIE
0 0 0 0 0 0 a 1) yorozdig M
0 9Z8'FLE B26°ZE 2926 0 ¥rE'ZE +62'002 Q) TINHE (VITYa3s) AJOVIS
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1] SWIVTD 40 dA 2 00D OF
0 061'6L¥ 28'CE 1686 0 SRY'Er 054'628 0] WHAHLYIN NIE
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 ) HoLoaxg ©
o 956 L7 SSL'LE 006'8 0 er'se oA 121 n NOYET T Hd vy
9 0 0 0 0 0 a () HH dA HoINas ®
i} ¥50°L9% S6L've 0%8'¥vL eng'ee 1E6'0L §18°72¢ ) SONYE T AWNY L
0 0 0 0 0 o 0 ) |oninny1d TYLIdYD ® SioatveLs das &
0 Z£8'695 ZV6'ZE 0¥E'LZ 05888 95068 r 00F 1] GNYIIEM HUIanEe
0 0 O G g 8 O m_u SNOLYNIH0 31YHOSIO0 B ADTLVHLS dAS 9
0 856'C65 Z50'0€ 006'6 104'0¥ 5L0'60L 08Z'e0y () NOS 1v¥Ig TIHd
0 0 0 g a 0 2 ) | Javis 30 35HO - o0Md Mo dAs
0 2¥6'¥PE9 §5/°Z¢ 008's 0LF'EY LLFOLL SOF'ZEY I | Al MISYIWOHL ¥THA01SHNHD
0 0 0 G 0 0 0 m} Hologuig ¥
0 62802 860°LZ £21'gl Zr9'6Y 8¥6°ZEL 210'66% n NOSAVINIS ‘0 NYSNS
0 925’626 LOB'EE 05871 BLV'EG 975 0FL Z69° 199 {u} e
v 0 0 0 0 Q 0 o O IMOY TS YT
I 1686'E50°L 188'EE 006'6 SEZ'66 zel'vle £61'069 () HIVHD 30IA ©
0 0 0 0 0 0 o a 129134 "D KLLSAr
) 80T'96.°L 018'LE 008’6 005451 6L2'ZEw BLLFLL L ) CIDIH40 X3 “HivHo }
0 0 v 0 0 0 G L] Q7N INIYINLN AIAYG
066 ULo uonesuadiod
oot G e @-0@ —— oy s Trom | o | e SiuLpu sweN (v)
uonesusdion (4) suumlon Jo eel (=) ajqexeucN (a} pLe juslaay (o)

uonesUSAWes DIN-BE0 L J0/PUE OSIN-6G0 [ 10/PUR Z-M JC Umopee:g {g)

“[ERPIAPUL 1L 0} SJUNOLWE (J) PUE () Uin[oa ejgeoddde e suj| “y UOIIAS A HEd ‘066 WO 10 JUNOLUE 210} &) [enba 1SNl [BNPIAIPUI Pe1s!| UoBa 10} {1—(1}{g) suwnjoo jo wns s 810N
A Hed ‘0686 Wiod UG paisl| 1 usde 18yl S[ENPIAIpUL AUE 181 10U O] *(lI} Mo uo ‘suclonisu
sU} UL paguosap ‘suoleziuelio pejeled Woly pue () mos uo ucgeziuebilo sy woy uopesusdwod podas I 9npeyoss uo papodsl 8g 1SN Lojesusdwos ssoym [enpIApUl YoBe 104

‘papesu s| 8oeds [ruolippe JI seldoo s1eol|dnp osn ‘seeAopdwg pajesuadwos 1sayBiH pue ‘seafojdug Aoy ‘ses1snd 1 ‘S40108.1J ‘Si80L10

g obed

£20¢ (066 wiod)  ainpayog



CPartlll -

Supplemental Information. Provide the information, explanation, or desctiptions required for Part |,
lines 1a, 1b, 3, 4a, 4b, 4c, &a, bb, 6a, Bb, 7, and 8, and for Part II. Also complete this part for any
additional information.

Return Refarence - Identifier

Explanation

SCHEDULE J, PART I, LINE
3 - ARRANGEMENT USER
TO ESTABLISH THE TOP
MANAGEMENT OFFICIAL'S
COMPENSATION

THE QRGANIZATION RELIED CN A RELATED ORGANIZATION AND THAT RELATED ORGANIZATION USED THE
FOLLOWING METHODS TO ESTABLISH THE TOP MANAGEMENT QFFICIAL'S COMPENSATION:

1. COMPENSATION COMMITTEE

2. INDEPENDENT COMPENSATION CONSULTANT

3, COMPENSATION SURVEY OR STUDY; AND

4. APPROVAL BY THE BOARD OR COMPENSATICN COMMITTEE

SCHEDULE J, PART |, LINE
7 - NON-FIXED PAYMENTS

THE COMPENSATION COMMITTEE APPROVES NON-FIXED PAYMENTS FOR MANAGMENT BASED ON THE
DEGREE OF MEETING CORPORATE PRIORITIES ESTABLISHED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES. THE
CORPORATE OBJECTIVES ARE DESIGNED TC ADVANCE THE ORGANIZATICN IN THE AREAS OF QUALITY
CARE, PATIENT SAFETY, PATIENT SATISFACTION, BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT AND FINANCIAL STRENGTH.

Mercy Medical Center
52-0591658
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o PartVl

Supplemental Informatlon. Supplemental Information Complete this part to provide additional
information for responses to questions on Schedule K (see instructions).

Return Reference - |dentifier

Explanation

SCHEDULE K, PART |,
COLUMN (F) -
DESCRIPTION OF
PURPOSE

ISSUER NAME:
MARYLAND HEALTH &
HIGHER EDUCATIONAL
FAC AUTHORITY

2010 PARTIAL CONVERSION 2007 BONDS

SCHEDULE K, PART |,
COLUMN {F) -
DESCRIPTION OF
PURPOSE

ISSUER NAME:
MARYLAND HEALTH &
HIGHER EDUCATIONAL
FAC AUTHORITY

2012 BONDS REFUNDING 2C01 BCNDS

SCHEDULE K, PART I,
COLUMN {F} -
DESCRIPTION OF
PURPOSE

ISSUER NAME:
MARYLAND HEALTH &
HIGHER EDUCATICHINAL
FAC AUTHORITY

2016 A BONDS REFUNDING 2007 A

SCHEDULE K, PART I,
COLUMN (F) -
DESCRIPTION OF
PURPOSE

ISSUER NAME:
MARYLAND HEALTH &
HIGHER EDUCATIONAL
FAC AUTHCORITY

2016 C BONDS REFUNDING 2013 BONDS

SCHEDULE K, PART |,
COLUMN (F) -
DESCRIPTION OF
PURPGSE

ISSUER NAME:
MARYLAND HEALTH &
HMIGHER EDUCATIONAL
FAC AUTHORITY

2021 BONDS REFUNDING 2011 BONDS

SCHEDULE K, PART I,
COLUMN (F) -
DESCRIPTION OF
PURPOSE

ISSUER NAME:
MARYLAND HEALTH &
HIGHER EDUCATIONAL
FAC AUTHORITY

REVENUE BOND MERCY MEDICAL CENTER ISSUE 2022A

SCHEDULE K, PART |,
COLUMN (F) -
DESCRIPTION OF
PURPOSE

ISSUER NAME:
MARYLAND HEALTH &
HIGHER EDUCATIONAL
FAC AUTHORITY

REVENUE BOND MERCY HEALTH ISSUE 2022B AND REISSUE OF 2016C

SCHEDULE K, PART IV,
LINE 2C - COLUMN B

ISSUER NAME: MARYLAND HEALTH & HIGHER EDUCATIONAL FAC AUTHORITY
THE CALCULATION FOR COMPUTING NO REBATE DUE WAS PERFORMED ON 07/01/2012

SCHEDULE K, PART IV,
LINE 2C - CCLUMN C

ISSUER NAME: MARYLAND HEALTH & HIGHER EDUCATIONAL FAC AUTHORITY
THE CALCULATION FOR COMPUTING NO REBATE DUE WAS PERFORMED ON 07/01/2016

SCHEDULE K, PART IV,
LINE 2C - CCLUMN D

ISSUER NAME: MARYLAND HEALTH & HIGHER EDUCATIONAL FAGC AUTHORITY
THE CALCULATION FOR COMPUTING NO REBATE DUE WAS PERFORMED ON 07/01/2020

-PART il, BOND C THE TOTAL PROCEEDS OF THE ISSUE ARE LESS THAN THE GROSS PROCEEDS IN RESERVE FUNDS AND
OTHER SPENT PROCEEDS FOR THE BOND ISSUANCE BECAUSE FUNDS PLEDGED TO THE SERIES 2001
BONDS, WHICH WERE REFUNDED BY THIS BOND ISSUANCE, WERE TRANSFERRED (AS PART OF THE BOND
ISSUANCE) INTO THE DEBT SERVICE RESERVE FUND HELF FOR THIS BOND ISSUANCE,

- TAX EXEMPT BONDS 2,  [THE AMOUNT IN PART II, LINE 3 "TOTAL PROCEEDS" |S NOT EQUAL TO THE AMOUNT [N PART |, COLUMN E

BOND B PART II, LINE 3

"ISSUE PRICE". THE "TOTAL PROCEEDS" FOR THE BOND ISSUANCE INCLUDES INVESTMENT EARNINGS ON
THE PROCEEDS.

- TAX EXEMPT BONDS 2,
BOND C PART II, LINE 3

THE AMOUNT IN PART |), LINE 3 "TOTAL PROCEEDS" IS NOT EQUAL TQ THE AMOUNT IN PART |, COLUMN E
:II'IaELI}:’ERB%[EESSTHE "TOTAL PROCEEDS" FOR THE BOND ISSUANCE INCLUDES INVESTMENT EARNINGS CON

- TAX EXEMPT BONDS |
BOND C & D, AND BONDS
IIBOND B, PART Il LINE 7

THE ISSUANCE COSTS FOR THESE BOND ISSUANCES WERE NOT PAID OUT OF THE PROCEEDS FROM THE
'BI'}{-I)ND é{SGSAJhﬁEJE_F%NRATHER, THE ISSUANCE COSTS WERE PAID QUT OF REGULAR DOPERATING FUNDS OF
EO .

Mercy Medlcal Center
52-0591658
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Return Reference - Identifier

Explanation

- TAX EXEMPT BONDS |,
BOND A PART II, LINE 3

THE AMGUNT IN PART |I, LINE 3 "TOTAL PROCEEDS" 1S NOT EQUAL TO THE AMOUNT IN PART |, COLUMN E
"|SELI|3E QgCEl;.STHE "TOTAL PROCEEDS" FOR THE BOND ISSUANCE INCLUDES INVESTMENT EARNINGS ON
THE PROCEEDS.

- TAX EXEMPT BONDS |,
BOND C PART II, LINE 3

THE AMOUNT IN PART Jl, LINE 3 "TOTAL PROCEEDS" IS NGT EQUAL TO THE AMOUNT IN PART |, COLUMN E
;!S‘ELIJ:EQ(P)%I!{E:E"'STHE "TOTAL PROCEEDS" FOR THE BOND ISSUANCE INCLUDES INVESTMENT EARNINGS ON
EDS.

Mercy Medical Center
52-0591658
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SCHEDULE ©
(Form 990)

Department of Treasury Internal
Revenue Service

Supplemental Information to Form 990 or 990-EZ OMB No. 1545-0047

Complele to provide Information for responses to specific questions on
Form 890 or 980-EZ or lo provide any addltonal Infermation.

b Altach to Form 99¢ or $90-EZ.
b Go to www.irs.goviForm990 for the latesl informeation.

2023

~"Open to Public Inspection

Name of the Organization

MERCY MEDICAL CENTER

Employar ldentification Numbar

52-0591658

Return Reference - Identifier

Explanation

FORM 980, PART I, LINE 1 -
BRIEF MISSION

COMMUNITY OF COMPASSIONATE CARE. AS AN INDEPENDENT CATHOL.IC HOSPITAL, WE PLERGE
TO ENHANCE THE HEALTH OF OUR REGION AND SERVE ALL PEQPLE OF EVERY CREED, COLOR,
ECONQOMIC, AND SQCIAL CONDITION.

FORM 990, PART {lI, LINE 4A -
PROGRAM SERVICE
DESCRIPTION

MMC'S THIRD LARGEST MAJOR SERVICE CATEGORY |S OBSTETRICS/NEONATAL INTENSIVE
CARE/PEDIATRICS, REPRESENTING 13.6% OF TOTAL HOSPITAL REVENUE. IN FISCAL YEAR 2024,
MMC PROVIDED CARE FOR 2,355 NURSERY BIRTHS AND 281 NICU BIRTHS DURING THE PERIOD,
MMC IS THE LARGEST BIRTHING HOSPITAL IN BALTIMORE CITY. APPROXIMATELY 57.8% OF
MOTHERS DELIVERING AT MERCY ARE MEDICAID INSURED,

FORM 990, PART VI, LINE 1B -

MERCY HEALTH SERVICES, INC. (*MHS™, A 501(C}(3) CORPORATICN, IS THE SOLE MEMBER OF
MERCY MEDICAL CENTER, INC. {"MMC"). MHS IS GOVERNED BY A 28-PERSON BOARD OF TRUSTEES,
OF WHOM 21 ARE INDEPENDENT BOARD MEMBERS. THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF MMC IS
CURRENTLY MADE OF 9 DIRECTORS. THE PRESIDENT OF MHS SERVES AS AN EX OFFICIO MEMBER
OF MMC'S BOARD AND THE BALANCE OF THE MMC BOARD MEMBERS ARE ELECTED BY, AND
SUBJECT TO REMOVAL BY, THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES QF MHS. ALL OF THE BOARD MEMBERS ARE
COMPELTLSé\TEDﬁéTEHMPLOYEES EITHER OF MMC OR A RELATED ORGANIZATION LISTED IN

BCHED R, P . .

FORM 880, PART Vi, LINE & -
CLASSES OF MEMBERS OR
STOCKHOLDERS

MERCY HEALTH SERVICES, INC. ("MHS"), A 50t(C){3) CORPORATION, IS THE SOLE MEMBER OF
MERCY MEDICAL CENTER, ING. ("MMC"},

FORM 990, PART VI, LINE 7A -
MEMBERS OR STOCKHOLDERS
ELECTING MEMBERS OF
GOVERNING BODY

THE PRESIDENT OF MHS SERVES AS AN EX OFFICIC VOTING MEMBER OF THE BOARD OF

DIRECTORS OF MMC. AS THE MEMBER OF MMC, THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF MHS ELECTS ALL OF

THE OTHER MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF MMC. ALL OF THE MEMBERS OF THE MMC BOARD SERVE

ﬁ/l-ll——lgHB%iLEDASURE OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF MHS AND ARE SUBJECT TO REMOVAL BY THE
RD.

FORM 990, PART VI, LINE 7B -
DECISIONS REQUIRING
APPROVAL BY MEMBERS OR
STOCKHOLDERS

THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF MHS EXERCISES AUTHORITY OVER MMC THROUGH ITS RIGHT TO
APPOINT AND REMOVE MMG BOARD MEMBERS, IN ADDITION, MHS, AS THE MEMBER, IS
RESPONSIBLE FOR THE FOLLOWING ACTIONS: A} TO APPOINT MEMBERS TO MMC'S BOARD OF
DIRECTORS; B) TO REVIEW AND APPROVE OR DISAPPROVE THE STRATEGIC PLAN, ANNUAL
BUDGET AND THE ANNUAL QPERATING GOALS AND OBJECTIVES OF MMC AS RECOMMENDED TO
MHS BY MMC'S BOARD OF DIRECTORS; C) TO EVALUATE THE PERFORMANCE OF MMGC'S BOARD OF
DIRECTORS, OFFICERS, AND OPERATING MANAGEMENT; D) TO REMOVE BOARD MEMBERS OF MMC
INITS DISCRETION AT ANY TIME; E} TO APPROVE THE MISSION AND VISION THAT GOVERN MMC'S
OPERATIONS; F} TQ HAVE ULTIMATE RESPONSIBILITY FOR MMC'S QUALITY ASSURANCE,
PERFORMANCE IMPROVEMENT, UTILIZATION REVIEW AND RISK MANAGEMENT; AND G) TO
APPOINT, REAPPOINT AND TAKE ANY CORRECTIVE ACTION RELATED TQ THE MEDICAL STAFF OF
MMC (THE "MEDICAL STAFF") IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE MEDICAL STAFF BYLAWS OF MMC. THE
FOLLOWING ACTIONS REQUIRE THE APPROVAL OF AND AFFIRMATIVE CORPORATE ACTION BY
MHS: A) ANY DISPOSITION CF ALL OR SUBSTANTIALLY ALL OF MMC'S ASSETS, DISSOLUTION,
LIQUIDATION, WINDING UP OR ABANDONMENT OF MMC; B} ANY AMENDMENT OF THE ARTICLES OF
INCORPORATION OR BYLAWS QF MMC OR OF THE MEDICAL STAFF BYLAWS OF MMC; C) ANY
BORROWING OR LENDING BY MMC OR THE ISSUANCE OF ANY GUARANTEE BY MMC IN AN AMOUNT
IN EXCESS OF AN AMOUNT SPECIFIED BY MHS FROM TIME TO TIME; D) ANY MERGER,
CONSOLIDATION OR INSTITUTIONAL AFFILIATION WITH ANY OTHER AMOUNT IN EXCESS OF AN
AMGCUNT SPEGIFIED FROM TIME TO TIME BY MHS CORPORATION OR OTHER ENTITY; AND E) THE
PURCHASE OR SALE OF ASSETS FOR AN AMOUNT IN EXCESS OF AN AMOUNT SPECIFIED FROM
TIME TC TIME BY MHS. ULTIMATELY, THE CORFORATION IS CONTROLLED BY MHS'S 29-PERSON
COMMUNITY BOARD, WHICH INCLUDES 21 INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS AS NOTED ABOVE.

FORM 290, PART Vi, LINE 11B -
REVIEW OF FORM 990 BY
GOVERNING BODY

MERCY HEALTH SERVICES, INC, "MHS"&, THE SOLE PARENT OF THE CORFORATION, HAS A POLICY
WHICH REGQUIRES THE CORPORATION'S 990 TO BE MADE AVAILABLE FOR REVIEW BY THE MHS
BOARD AND/OR THE MHS BOARD EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE PRIOR TO ITS FILING. AT ITS BOARD
MEETING, MHS BOARD EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEMBERS RECENED A COPY OF THE
CORPORATION'S DRAFT FORM 980. THE MHS CFO PROVIDED A POWER POINT PRESENTATION
REGARDING THE DRAFT AND THERE WAS AN OPPORTUNITY FOR QUESTIONS AND DISCUSSION,
FOLLOWING FURTHER REVYISION OF THE DRAFT 990 AND PRIOR TO IT8 FILING, IT WAS MADE
AVAILABLE IN FINAL FORM TO ALL MEMBERS OF THE MHS BOARD AND THE CORPORATION'S
BOARD FOR THEIR REVIEW. ANY ADDITIONAL COMMENTS/QUESTIONS FROM BOARD MEMBERS ARE
RESPONBED TO PRIOR TQ FILING THE FORM 990,

Mercy Medical Center
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Return Reference - |dentifier

Explanation

FORM 990, PART Vi, LINE 12C -
CONFLICT OF INTEREST
POLICY

MHS HAS A WRITTEN CONFLICT OF INTEREST POLICY THAT COVERS MHS AND ALL OF ITS DIRECT
AND INDIRECT SUBSIDIARIES. THE INDIVIDUALS COVERED UNDER THE POLICY INCLUDE ALL
TRUSTEES, DIRECTORS, OFFICERS (INCLUDING ALL SENIOR AND EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENTS
AND MEMBERS OF ANY COMMITTEE WITH BOARD-DELEGATED POWERS. UNDER THE POLICY, EACH
SUCH PERSON 1S REQUIRED TC COMPLETE AN ANNUAL DISCLOSURE FORM REGARDING BUSINESS
RELATIONSHIPS THAT HE OR SHE, OR ANY FAMILY MEMBER, HAS WITH ANY OTHER ORGANIZATION
THAT DOES BUSINESS WITH MHS OR ITS SUBSIDIARIES AND RELATIONSHIPS BETWEEN AND
AMONG OFFICERS, TRUSTEES AND DIRECTORS. THE COMPLETED DISCLOSURE FORMS ARE
REVIEWED BY THE MHS BOARD CHAIR ANDY BY THE MHS CEO OR A DESIGNEE, IN ADDITION TO THE
ANNUAL DISCLOSURE, ANY PERSON WHO IS COVERED BY THE CONFLICT OF INTEREST POLICY
HAS AN ONGOING OBLIGATION TO DISCLOSE THE EXISTENCE OF ANY ACTUAL OR POTENTIAL
CONFLICT TO THE BOAURD OR THE BOARD COMMITTEE IN WHICH THE MATTER ARISES.
FOLLOWING THE DISCLOSURE, THE PERSON MAY MAKE A PRESENTATION, BUT MUST THEN LEAVE
THE MEETING AND THE OTHER MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OR COMMITTEE SHALL DETERMINE
WHETHER A CONFLICT EXISTS, UNDER THE POLICY, A CONFLICT OF INTEREST EXISTS WHEN AN
INDIVIDUAL'S OWN PERSONAL INTERST WOULD, OR MAY, INTERFERE WITH HIS OR HER
IMBARTIALITY REGARDING THE MATTER. IF A CONFLICT EXISTS, THE PERSON MAY NOT BY
PRESENT DURING DELIBERATIONS ON THE MATTER OR VOTE ON IT. THE BOARD OR COMMITTEE,
AFTER CONDUCTING SUCH ADDITIONAL DUE DILIGENCE AS IT DETERMINES IS APPROPRIATE,
SHALL MAKE A DECISION ON THE MATTER BASED UPON WHETHER THE PARTICULAR PROPOSAL IS
FAIR, REASONABLE AND IN THE BEST INTEREST OF THE ORGANIZATION.

FORM 990, PART VI, LINE 15 -

THE ORGANIZATION'S BCARD HAS ADOPTED A COMPENSATION POLICY (THE "POLICY") FOR
COVERED INDIVIDUALS. PURSUANT TO THE POLICY, A COMPENSATION COMMITTEE OF
INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS OF THE BOARD OF THE CRGANIZATION'S PARENT CORPORATION WAS
ESTABLISHED TO REVIEW THE COMPENSATION OF ALL EMPLOYEES SPEGIFIED AS HAVING A
SUBSTANTIAL INFLUENCE OVER THE ORGANIZATION AND WHO RECEIVE REMUNERATION FROM
THE ORGANIZATION, THE COMPENSATION COMMITTEE IS ADVISED BY AN INDEPENDENT
COMPENSATION CONSULTANT, WHICH OPINES TO THE COMPENSATION COMMITTEE THAT THE
LEVEL OF COMPENSATION PAID AND THE PROGESS BY WHICH COMPENSATION |S ESTABLISHED
MEET APPLICABLE IRS REASONABLENESS AND "SAFE HARBOR" STANDARDS. THE QUTSIDE
COMPENSATION CONSULTANT PROVIDES DATA OF COMPENSATION PROVIDED AT SIMILAR
ORGANIZATIONS TO ENSURE THAT THE ORGANIZATION DOES NOT COMPENSATE iN EXCESS OF
MARKET NORMS. MERCY HEALTH SERVICES, INC, (THE CORPORATION'S SOLE MEMBER) HAS A
WRITTEN POLICY REGARDING THE REVIEW OF PHYSICIAN COMPENSATION TITLED "AMENDED AND
RESTATED PHYSICIAN COMPENSATION REVIEW." THE POLICY APPLIES TO ALL MHS SUBSIDIARIES,
INCLUDING THE CORPORATION, AND IT SETS OUT THE PROCESS AND PROCEDURES FOR
ENSURING THAT PHYSICIAN COMPENSATION IS APPROPRIATELY REVIEWED AND DETERMINED TO
BE CONSISTENT WITH FAIR MARKET VALUE, UNDER THE POLICY THE REVIEW AND DETERMINATION
MUST BE DOCUMENTED IN WRITING. THE POLICY ADDRESSES INTERNAL REVIEWS THROUGH
BENCHMARKING QF PHYSICIAN COMPENSATION AGAINST NATIONALLY RECOGNIZED
COMPENSATION SURVEY DATA, THE USE OF INDEFENDENT COMPENSATION CONSULTANTS AND
REVIEW BY THE MHS BOARD COMPENSATION COMMITTEE. THE POLICY FURTHER REQUIRES THAT
ALTI:E%%I'\SA'I?EP%SL?CT\PN REVIEWS BE PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE MHS CONFLICT OF

IN .

FORM 993, PART VI, LINE 19 -
REQUIRED DOCUMENTS
AVAILABLE TO THE PUBLIC

THE GOVERNING DOCUMENTS OF THE ORGANIZATION, ITS CONFLICTS OF INTEREST POLICY, AND
thI;'[:_NRF;I;\J\{CJIAL STATEMENTS ARE AVAILABLE FROM THE QRGANIZATION UPON REQUEST AND AT
LCOM.

FORM 980, PART X|, LINE 2 -
PART XI, QUESTIONS 2 AND 3 -
AUDITS

MERCY HEALTH SYSTEM, INC. AND ITS SUBSIDIARES INCLUDING THE CRGANIZATION FILING THIS
FORM 890, UNDERGO A CONSOLIDATED AUDIT COF THEIR FINANCIAL STATEMENT THAT COMPLIES
WITH SINGLE AUDIT ACT/OMB CIRCULAR A-133 REQUIREMENTS BUE TO THE EXPENDITURE OF
FEDERAL AWARDS. THE ACCOUNTING FIRM OF DIXON HUGHES GOQDMAN LLP HAS [SSUED AN
UNQUALIFIED OPINION REGARDING THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS IN
CONFORMANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED AUDIT STANDARDS AND THE SINGLE AUDIT ACT/OMB
CIRCULAR A-133 REQUIREMENTS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR THAT CORRESPONDS TO THE TAX
REPORTING YEAR GOVERNED BY THIS FORM 990.

FORM 990, PART X, LINE & -
OTHER CHANGES IN NET
ASSETS OR FUND BALANCES

: {a} Description (b} Amount
NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM RESTRICTION 4,431,723
CHANGE IN POST RETIREMENT OBLIGATION 35,104
UNREALIZED GAIN ON SWAP 2,242,683
NET ASSETS TRANSFER FROM AFFILIATES 2,609,007

FOGRM 990, PART XII, LINE 2C -
CHANGE OF OVERSIGHT
PROCESS OR SELECTION
PROCESS

THE PROCESS HAS NOT CHANGED FROM THE PRIOR YEAR.

SCHEDULE F, PART |, LINE 3 -

THE AMOUNT INDICATED AS FOREIGN INVESTMENTS IN PART | WAS MERCY MEDICAL CENTER'S
OWNERSHIP INTEREST IN GREENLEAF INSURANCE COMPANY, LTD ("GREENLEAF"), A CAYMAN
ISLAND CORPORATION, GREENLEAF 1S A WHOLLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARY OF MERCY MEDICAL
CENTER THAT PROVIDES DIRECT COVERAGE FOR PROFESSIONAL, MALPRAGTICE, AND
COMPREHENSIVE GENERAL LIABILITY FOR MERCY MEDICAL CENTER AND ITS ASSOCIATED HEALTH
CARE FACILITIES, AS OF THE END OF THE 2020 TAX YEAR, THE VALUE OF MERCY MEDICAL
CENTER'S OWNERSHIF IN GREENLEAF WAS $4,791,317 PER BOOK.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Board of Trustees
Mercy Health Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Baltimore, MD

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Mercy Health Services, Inc. and
Subsidiaries, which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of June 30, 2024 and 2023, and the
related consclidated statements of operations, changes in net assets, and cash flows for the years then
ended and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, based on our audits and the report of the other auditors, the consolidated financial
statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of
Mercy Heaith Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries, as of June 30, 2024 and 2023 and the consolidated results
of their operations and their cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in United States of America.

We did not audit the financial statements of Greenleaf Insurance Company, Ltd., a wholly-owned
subsidiary, which statements refiect total assets constituting 14% & 12% of Mercy Health Services, Inc.
and Subsidiaries’ consolidated total assets as of June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively. Those statements
were audited by other auditors, whose report has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it
relates to the amounts included for Greenleaf Insurance Company, Ltd, is based solely on the report of
the other auditors.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America (GAAS). Our responsibllities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
required to be independent of Mercy Health Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries and to meet our other ethical
responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion,

Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated finangial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America,
and for the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and
fair presentation of consolidated financial statemenis that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Mercy Health
Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries’ ability to continue as a going concern for one year after the date that the
consolidated financial statements are issued.

Forvis Mazars, LL.P is an independent member of Forvis Mazars Global Limited
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Board of Trustees
Mercy Health Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Auditor’s Responsiblilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not absolute
assurance, and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulfing
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal contral. Misstatements are considered material
if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment
made by a reasonable user based on the consolidated financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we:

Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

» ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks.
Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of Mercy Health Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries' internal control.
Accordingly, no such apinion is expressed.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

» Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about Mercy Health Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries' ability to continue
as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related
matters that we identified during the audit.

Report on Supplementary Financial Information

Our audits were conducted far the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements
as a whole. The consolidating information on pages 48 to 55 is presented for purposes of additional
analysis of the consolidated financial statements rather than to present the financial position and resuits
of operations of the individual companies and is not a required part of the consolidated financial
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management, and was derived from, and relates
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial
statements. The consolidating information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. In our opinion, which insofar as It relates to Greenleaf Insurance Company, Ltd. is based on the
report of other auditors, the consolidating information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to
the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

Forvis Mazare, LLP

Charleston, WV
September 11, 2024
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Mercy Health Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Balance Sheets

June 30, 2024 and 2023

{in thousands)

2024 2023
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 269,820 5 261,559
Short-term investments 1,815 1,778
Current portion of funds held by trustee -- Note 6 5,551 13,427
Resident prepayment deposits 1,085 797
Patient accounts receivable, net - Note 3 96,788 80,464
Other amounts receivable, net 820 4,734
Current pledges receivable, net -- Note 4 2,789 2,595
Supplies Inventory 13,498 14,867
Other current assets 2,590 3,635
Total current assets 394,756 383,756
Property and Equipment, Net -- Note 5 548,051 543,499
Investments and Other Assets
Funds held by trustee, less current portion — Note 6 1,914 1,601
Board designated and denor restricted cash and investments -- Note 7 351,290 318,933
Assets held for seli-Insurance ~ Note 7 173,912 145,191
Long-term pledges receivable, net -- Nofe 4 20,785 21,815
Investments in and advances to affiliates -- Nofe 8 5,651 4,564
Reinsurance receivable -- Nofe 10 6,951 6,335
Right of use assets — Nofe 24 43,713 40,302
Other assets -~ Nofe 3,574 3,626
Total assets $ 1,550,597 $ 1,469,622

See Nofes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Mercy Health Services, In¢. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Balance Sheets

June 30, 2024 and 2023

(in thousands)

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Current Liabilities

Current portion of long-term debt — Note 11
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Advances from third-party payers
Resident prepayment deposits
Provision for outstanding losses, current -- Nofe 10
Cperating lease liability, current -- Note 24

Total current liabilities

Long-term debt, less current portion -~ Note 11
Provision for outstanding losses, long-term - Note 10
Post-retirement obligation — Nofe 14

Interest rate swap liahilities ~ Noie 11

Operating lease liabilities -- Note 24

Other long-term liabilities -~ Nofe 23

Total liabilities
Net Assets
Without donor restrictions
With donor restrictions - Nofe 16

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Mercy Medical Center

2024 2023
$ 12,935 $ 12,508
143,314 149,268
21,7186 22,791
1,351 964
7,377 6,889
3,841 4,02
190,534 196,432
348,225 359,674
148,483 132,589
5,534 5,779
4,286 6,529
42,275 38,039
3,256 4,283
740,593 743,325
752,609 673,200
57,395 53,007
$10,004 726,207
$ 1,550,597 $ 1,460,622
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Mercy Health Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consoclidated Statements of Operations
Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023

(in thousands}

2024 2023
Revenue
Patient service revenue $ 926,205 $ 886,731
Other operating revenue 52,526 47,068
Met assets released from restriction used for operations 5,815 3,476
Total revenue 987,548 937,275
Expenses - Nofe 19
Salaries and benefits 536,072 500,795
Medical and surgical supplies 81,314 76,865
Pharmacy supplies 89,1486 80,469
Other expendable supplies 39,225 39,237
Professional fees 22,712 22,457
Insurance 31,263 22,004
Other purchased setvices 85,320 63,214
Interest expense 13,688 13,256
Repairs 23,318 19,890
Depreciation and amortization 43,833 43,235
Tolal expenses 945,691 890,511
Operating Income 41,855 46,764
Other Income (Losses)
Invastrment income -- Note 7 13,136 2,985
Net unrealized gains on investments -- Note 7 20,980 23,445
Unrealized gains con interest rate swaps -- Note 11 2,243 4,872
Equity earnings in joint ventures -- Note 8 775 1,000
Other 67 {384)
Net other income 37,201 31,918
Excess of Revenues Over Expenses 79,056 78,682
Changes to Pension and Post Retirement Plan
Obligations -- Notes 74 and 15 35 966
Federal Grant Funding for the Purchase of
Property and Equipment - 251
Net Assets Released from Restrictions for the Purchase
of Property and Equipment 228 128
Increase in net assets without donor restrictions 3 79.318 $ 80,027

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Mercy Health Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Net Assets

Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023
(in thousands)

Net assets, June 30, 2022

Excess of revenue over expenses

Net assets released from restrictions for the
purchase of property and equipment
Federal grant funding for the purchase of
property and equipment

Investment loss on net assets

with donor restrictions

Restricted gifts, bequests and contributions
Changes to psnsion and post retirement
plan obligations

Net assets released from restrictions used
for operations

Change in net assets
Net assets, June 30, 2023

Excess of revenue over expenses

Net assets released from restrictions for the
purchase of property and equipment
Investment income on net assets

with donor restrictions

Restricted gifts, bequests and contributions
Changes to pension and post retirement
plan obligations

Net assets released from restrictions used
for operations

Net assets, June 30, 2024

See Nofes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Mercy Medical Center

Without Donor With Donor
Restrictions Restrictions Total

$ 593,263 $ 47,752 $ 641,015
78,682 - 78,682

128 (128) -

251 (251) -

- 675 675

- 8,435 8,435

966 - 966

- (3,476) (3.478)

80,027 5,255 85,282
673,290 53,007 726,297
79,056 - 79,056

228 (228) -

- 1,694 1,694

- 8,737 8,737

35 - 35
- {5,815) (5,815)

79,319 4,388 83,707

$ 752,609 $ 57,395 $ 810,004
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Mercy Health Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023

(in thousands)

2024 2023

Operating Activities
Change in net assets $ 83,707 $ 85,282
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to nat
cash and cash equivalents provided by operating activities

Depreciaticn and amortization 43,633 43,235
Amortization of debt issuance cost, premiums and discounts {119) {108)
Gain on interest rate swaps (2,243) (4,872)
(zain on asset disposal - (38)
Realized and unrealized gain on investments (27,7089) (22,231)
Restricted gifts, bequests, and contributions {10,431) (8,435)

and restricted nef income
Federal grant funding for the purchase of property and

equipment - (251)
Increase {decrease) in
Patient accounts receivable, net {16,324) (3,325}
Other amounts receivable, net 3,298 3,490
Inventory 1,369 1,638
Other assets 1,086 442
Trading portfolic (24,193) 6,418
Increase (decrease) in
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (8,118) (20,469)
Medicare advance contraet liability - (15,209}
Provision for cutstanding losses 16,382 7,711
Operating leases 654 (2.650)
Post-retirement obligation {245) (1,132)
Other long-term liabilities (1,027) 531
Net cash and cash equivalents provided by
operating activities 59,732 70,029
Investing Activities
FPurchases of investments (60,283) {68,144)
Sales of investments 34,891 39,955
Purchases of property and equipment {48,185) {(41,338)
Net cash and cash equivalents used in investing activities {73,677) {69,527)

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Mercy Health Services, Inc. and Subslidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023

(in thousands)

2024 2023
Financing Activities
Proceeds from restricted gifts, bequests, contributions $ 11,267 $ 7,154
and restricted net income
Proceeds from federal grants - 251
Repayment of long term debt {12,903) (11,598)
Net cash and cash equivalents used in
financing activities (1,638) (4,191}
Net Decrease in Cash, Cash Equivalents and
Restricted Cash {15,481) (3,689)
Cash, Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash, Beginning of Year 314,957 318,646
Cash, Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash, End of Year _ $ 299,478 $ 314,957
Cash Paid for Interest $ 13,619 $ 13,306

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Mercy Health Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2024 and 2023

(in thousands)

Note 1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Organization, Basis of Presentation and Principles of Consolidation

Mercy Health Services, Inc. (MHS) was formed for the purpose of supporting, benefiting, or carrying out some or
all of the purposes of Mercy Medical Center, Inc. (Medical Center or MMC), Stella Maris, Inc. (SMI), the physician
practice groups comprising the Physician Enterprise (as further described below) and Mercy Health Foundation
(MHF). MHS is the sole member of the Medical Center, SMI, the Physician Enterprise and MHF. MHS prepares its
consolidated financial statements on the accrual basis of accounting. The accompanying consolidated financial
statements include MMC, SMI, the Physician Enterprise and MHF. All material intercompany balances and
transactions have heen eliminated.

Mercy Medical Center, Inc.

The Medical Center, a subsidiary of MHS, provides inpatient, outpatient and emergency care services primarily for
the citizens of the Baltimore metropolitan area. In addition, the following entities are wholly owned subsidiaries of
the Medical Center:

Name of Subsidiary Tax Status

Mercy Transitional Care Services, Inc. (MTG)
Provider of subacute services Tax Exempt

Greenleaf Insurance Company, Lid, (GIC)
Provider of self-insured general and malpractice
coverage to MHS Foreign Subsidiary

Stella Maris, Inc.

SMI, a subsidiary of MHS, is the sole member of the Stella Maris Operating Corporation, as well as the Cardinal
Shehan Center, Incorporated (CSC). SMI provides sub-acute, hospice, long-term care, skilled homecare, personal
care and adult day care to patients in the central Maryland service area within its 412-bed facility. CSC is engaged
in maintaining and providing care and housing of aged and infirmed persons. CSC owns St. Elizabeth Hall, a 200-
unit apartment complex for the elderly,

Physician Enterprise

The Physician Enterprise includes Maryland Family Care, Inc. (MFC), St. Paul Place Specialists, Inc. (SPPS) and
Maryland Specialty Services, LLC (MS8). MSS is the sole member of Lutherville Hematology and Oncology, LLLC
and North Calvert Anesthesiology Services, LLC, and is the sole stockholder of Vascular Specialty Services, Inc.
These entlities provide primary care and specialty services within the Baltimore area. MFC, SPPS and MSS are
wholly owned/controlled subsidiaries of MHS,

Mercy Health Foundation, Inc.
MHF, a subsidiary of MHS, was formed to coordinate and strengthen the fundraising function on behalf of MHS.
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Mercy Health Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2024 and 2023

(in thousands)

fncome Taxes

MHS, MMC, SMI, MFC, SPPS, MHF, MTC, CSC and MSS are not-for-profit organizations exempt from faderal
income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code, and are, therefore, not subject to federal
income tax under current income tax regulations. MHS subsidiaries otherwise exempt from federal and state
taxation are nonetheless subject fo taxation at corporate tax rates at both the federal and state level on their
unrelated business income,

Current accounting standards define the threshold for recognizing uncertain Income tax return positions in the
consolidated financial statements as “more likely than not’ that the position is sustainable, based on its technicat
merits, and also provide guidance on the measurement, classification and disclosure of tax return positions in the
consolidated financial statements. Management believes there is no impact on MHS' accompanying consolidated
financial statements related to uncertain income tax positions.

Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Revenues are reported as increases In
net assets without donor restrictions unless use of the related assets is limited by donor-imposed restrictions.
Expenses are reported as decreases in net assets without donor restrictions. Gains and losses are reported as
increases or decreases in net assets without donor restrictions unless their use is restricted by explicit donor
stipulation or by law. Contributions, including unconditional promises to give, with no donor-imposed restrictions are
recoghized in the period received as increases in net assets without donor restrictions. Contributions with donor-
imposed restrictions are reported as increases in net assets with donor restrictions. Expirations of restrictions on
net assets (i.e., the donor-stipulated purpose has been fulfilled and/or the stipulated time period has elapsed) are
reported as reclassifications between the applicable classes of net assets.

Income and realized net gains (losses) on investments are reported as follows:

 change in net assets with donor restrictions if the terms of the gift or the MHS' interpretation of relevant
state law require that they be added to the principal of a permanent net asset with donor restriction:

» change in net assets with donor restrictions if the terms of the gift impose restrictions on the use of the
income;

» change in net assets without donor in all other cases.

Accounting Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Accordingly,
actual results could differ from those estimates.

Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made to the presentation of assets whose use is limited related to board
designated and donor restricted cash and investments and assels held for self-insurance for 2023 to conform to the
2024 financial statement presentation. These reclassifications had no effect on the total assets, excess of revenues
over expenses, or change in net assets.

10
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Mercy Health Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2024 and 2023

{in thousands)

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include certain investments in highly-iquid instruments purchased with a maturity of
three months or less, excluding assets whose use is limited. The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents
approximates fair value,

MHS maintains cash and cash equivalent accounts that may, at times, exceed federally insured limits. MHS has
not experlenced any losses from maintaining these accounts in excess of federally insured limits, Management
believes it is not subject to significant risks associated with these accounts.

Board designated cash and investments have been set aside by the Board of Trustees (Board) for future capital
improvements or strategic initiatives over which the Board retains control and may, at its discretion, subsequently
use for other purposes. Cash held in donor restricted funds will be used to satisfy donor restricted purposes. Cash
held by trustee or authority will be primarily used to satisfy future debt service requirements. Cash held within assets
held for self-insurance will be used to satisfy current and estimated future liabilities within GIC.

Following is a reconciliation of cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash as presented in the accompanying
consolidated statements of cash flows as of June 30:

2024 2023
Cash and cash equivalents 3 269,820 $ 261,559
Assets limited as to use Board designated
and donor restricted cash 22,191 40,545
Funds held by trustee 7,465 15,030
Total cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash shown in the
accompanying consolidated statements of cash flows $ 299476 S 317,134

Supplies Inventory

Supplies inventory are stated at the lower of cost, determined by the first-in, first-out method, or net realizable value.

Net Assels

Net assets, revenues, gains, and losses are classified based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed
restrictions. Accordingly, net assets and changes therein are classified and reported as follows:

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions — net assets available for use in general operations and not subject to donor
restrictions. All revenue not restricted by donors and donor restricted contributions whose restrictions are met in the
same period in which they are received, or in the same period in which conditions are met, are accounted for in net
assets without donor restrictions.

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions — net assets subject to donor-imposed restrictions. Some donor-imposed
restrictions are temporary in nature, such as those that will be met by the passage of time or other events specified
by the donor. Other donor-imposed restrictions are perpetual in nature, where the donor stipulates that resources
be maintained in perpetuity. All revenues restricted by donors as to either timing or purpose of the related
expenditures of required to be maintained in perpetuity as a source of investment income are accounted for in net
assets with donor restrictions. When a donor restriction expires, that is when a stipulated time restriction ends, or
purpose restriction is accomplished, net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified to net assets without donor
restrictions.

77
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Mercy Health Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2024 and 2023

(in thousands)

Assets Whose Use Is Limited

Assets whose use is limited includes board designated and donor restricted cash and investments, funds held by
trustee and assets held for self-insurancs.

Board designated and donor restricted funds are set aside by the board for future capital improvements or strategic
Initiatives over which the board retains control and may, at its discretion, subsequently use for other purposes.

Agsets held for self-insurance represent funds that have been set aside to cover a portion of GIC’s estimated
outstanding claims and liabilities. At June 30, 2024 and 2023, assets held for self-insurance of $173,912 and
$145,192, respectively, were set aside to cover estimated outstanding claims and liabilities,

Investments and Investment Risk

Investments in equity securities with readily determinable fair values and all investments in debt securities are
measured at fair value. Investments in hedge funds, private equity funds and other limited partnerships are also
measured at fair value. [nvestment income or loss (including realized gains on investments, interest and dividends)
is included in excess of revenues over expenses unless the income or loss is restricted by donor or law. MHS'
investments are comprised of a variety of financial instruments and are managed by investment advisors. The fair
values reported in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets are subject to various risks including changes in
the equity markets, the interest rate environment, and general economic conditions. Due to the level of risk
associated with certain investment securities and the level of uncertainty related to changes in the fair value of
investment securities, particularly for alternative investmenis and investments measured at net asset value (NAV),
it is reasonably possible that the amounts reported in the accompanying consolidated financial statements could
change materially in the near term,

Advances from Third-Party Payers

The Medical Center receives advances from third-party payers to provide working capital for services rendered to
the beneficiaries of such services. These advances are subject to periodic adjustment and are principally
determined based on the timing difference between the provision of care and the anticipated payment date of the
claim for service.

Patient Accounts Receivable

Patient accounts receivables are primarily paid by federal and state governmental authorities (under the Medicare
and Medicaid programs), managed health plans, commercial insurance companies, workers’ compensation
programs, employers and patients. Patient accounts receivable are reported at net realizable value. For accounts
receivable associated with services provided to patients who have third-parly coverage, MHS estimates net
realizable value based on the estimated contractual reimbursement percentage, which in turn is based on current
contract provisions and historical paid claims by payor. For self-pay accounts, including uninsured and patient
responsibility accounts, the net realizable value is determined using historical collection experience, adjusted for
estimated conversions of patient responsibility portions, expected recoveries and changes in trends to estimate
implicit price concessions. MHS does not believe there are any significant concentrations of revenues from any
particular payor that would subject MHS to any significant cradit risks in the collection of patient accounts receivable.
Management continually reviews the estimated net realizable value of accounts receivable by monitoring cash
collections, economic conditions and trends, changes in payor mix, changes in federal or state healthcare coverage
and other matters. Changes in general economic conditions, patient accounting service center operations, payor
mix, payor claim processing could affect collections of accounts receivable, cash flows and results of operations,

iz
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Mercy Health Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2024 and 2023

{in thousands)

MHS performs periodic assessments to determine if an allowance for expected credit losses is necessary. MHS
considers its incurred loss expetience and adjusts for known and expected events and other circumstances. In
estimating its expected credit losses, MHS may consider changes in the length of time its receivables have been
outstanding, changes in credit ratings for payors, requests from payors to alter payment terms due to financial
difficulty, and notices of payor bankruptcies or payors entering receivership. Because MHS’ accounts receivable is
typically paid for by highly-solvent, creditworthy payors, such as Medicare, Medicaid, other governmental programs,
and highly-regulated commarcial insurers on behalf of the patient, MHS’ credit losses are immaterial to the
consolidated financial statements.

Patient Service Revenue

Patient service revenue is reported at the estimated net realizable amounts from patients, third-party payers and
others for services rendered. MMC charges are based on rates established by the State of Maryland Health
Services Cost Review Commission (the Commission); accordingly, revenue reflects charges to patients based on
rates in effect during the period in which the services are rendered (see Note 18). SMI and Physician Enterprise
are paid for services based on either negotiated contracts with commercial payers, fee schedules with Medicare
and Medicaid or standardized pricing for self-pay patients,

Explicit price concessions represent the difference between amounts billed as patient service revenue and amounts
allowed by third-party payers and are accrued in the period in which the related services are rendered,

Based on historical experience, a significant portion of MHS’ uninsured patients will be unable or unwilling to pay
for services provided. Thus, MHS estimates an implicit price concession related to uninsured patients in the period
the services are provided based upon management’s assessment of historical and expected net collections. This
estimate considers business and general economic conditions, trends in healthcare coverage and other collection
indicators. The System does not believe there are any significant concentrations of revenues from any particular
payor that would subject the System to any significant credit risks in the collection of patient accounts receivable.
Throughout the year, management assesses the adequacy of these implicit price concessions based upon its
review of patient accounts receivable and collections to date. Other factors, such as account aging and payment
cycles, are considered when estimating implicit price concessions. MHS follows established guidelines for placing
its self-pay patient accounts with an outside collection agency. After collection efforts are exhausted, the uncollected
balances are returned to the appropriate MHS entities for final write-off.

Effective October 1, 2019, MTC and SMI are reimbursed under a prospective payment system called the patient
driven payment model (PDPM), which bases payment on resident characteristics, rather than services provided.
PDPM payment depends on the summation of case-mix adjusted components (physical therapy, occupational
therapy, speech language pathology, nursing, and nontherapy ancillaries) each with its own case-mix groups and
application of a variable per day adjustment schedule. Part-B rehabilitative services are billed and paid based on
billable minutes using timed based (or constant attendance) codes.

Charity Care

The Medical Center provides medically necessary services without charge or at amounts less than its established
rates to patients who qualify for charity care under its financial assistance policy. Because the Medical Center doas
not pursue collection of those amounts determined to qualify as charity care, they are not reported as patient service
revenue and are not included in patient accounts receivable.

The critetia for qualifying for charity care applied by the Medical Center includes family income, net assets and the
size of the patient’s bill relative to the patient’s ability to pay. Discounts are provided to patients who are unable to
pay based on a sliding scale that is applied for family incomes up to approximately 400% above the U.S. Department
of Health and Human Services (HHS) Poverty Guidelines. Free care is provided to patients with family incomes up
to approximately 200% above the HHS Poverty Guidelines.

i3
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Mercy Health Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2024 and 2023

(in thousands)

Charity care is provided to patients who qualify under the Medical Center's financial assistance policy at any time.
Once the Medical Center determines that the patient qualifies for charity care, the Medical Center makes no further
attempt to collect on the amount qualifying for charity care.

Certain other controlled subsidiaries of MHS also provide services without charge or at amounts less than their
established rates to patients who qualify for charity care under their respective financial assistance policies.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

MHS accounts for impairment or disposal of long-lived assets in accordance with applicable guidance. Such
guidance requires that long-lived assets be reviewed far impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Recoverability of assets to be held and used
is measured by comparisan of the carrying amount of an asset to future net cash expected to be generated by the
asset, If the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its estimated future cash flows, an impairment charge is
recognized by the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds the fair value of the asset. Assets to
be disposed of are reported at the lower of the carrying amount or fair value less costs to sell. Management believes
that no asset impairment existed at June 30, 2024 and 2023,

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment acquisitions costing more than $3,000 or more and having a useful life longer than one
years are capltalized and recorded at cost. Donated property and equipment are recorded at fair value at the date
of the donation. Depreciation is provided on the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets,
buildings and the parking center at 40 years, building improvements are depreciated over 25 years, machinery and
equipment ranges from three to ten years.

The cost of new implemented software is capitalized and included within machinery and equipment and is being
depreciated over 10 years. Costs include payment to vendors for the purchase and assistance in its installation,
payroll costs of employees directly involved in the software installation and interest costs of the software project if
financed by debt. Preliminary costs to document system requirements, vendor selection and any costs before
software purchases are expensad. Capitalization of costs will generally end when the project is completed, and the
software is ready to be used. Where implementation of the praject is in phases, only those costs incurred that further
the development of the project will be capitalized. Costs incurred to maintain the applications are expensed.
Depreciation expense was $43,185 and $42,620 for the years ending June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

Resident Prepayment Deposits

SMI's private pay residents are required to make a non-interest-bearing prepayment of two meonths' room and board
at the time of admission. St. Elizabeth Hall obtains an interest-bearing security deposit, which is the lesser of one
month rent or the resident responsibility. At the time of discharge or acceptance by Medical Assistance or similar
government assistance programs, any prepayment remaining after application to the resident's outstanding bill will
be refunded. At June 30 2024 and 2023, resident prepayment deposits approximated $1,085 and $797,
respectively, and have been recorded as a current asset and a current liability within thé consolidated batance
sheets.

Derivative Instruments

Current accounting standards require that an entity recognize all derivative instruments as either assets or liabilities
in the statement of financial position and measure those instruments at fair value. MHS has entered into interest
rate swap agreements to manage its interest rate risk {(see Note 11). The interest rate swaps do not qualify for
hedge accounting under current accouniing standards; therefore, management accounts for the derivative
instruments as speculative derivative instruments with the change in the fair value reflected in the accompanying
consolidated statements of operations as a component of other non-operating income. Net settlement payments
are reported as a component of interest cost, with the exception of the payments associated with construction
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activities that are capitalized. Entering into interest rate swap agreements Involves varying degrees and elements
of credit, default, prepayment, market and documentation risk in excess of the amounts recognized on the
consolidated balance sheets. Such risks involve the possibility that there will be no liquid market for these
agreements, the counterparty to these agreaments may default on its obligation to perform and there may be
unfavorable changes in interest rates.

Debt Issuance Costs

Costs incurred in connection with the issuance of long-term debt have been deferred and are being amortized over
the term of the related debt using the straight-line method, which approximates the effective interest method. Such
costs are reflected as a reduction of long-term debt in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. Amortization
of debt issuance costs was $119 and $106 for the years ending June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

Leases

At lease inception, MHS determines whether an arrangement is or contains a lease. Operating leases are included
in operating lease right-of-use (ROU} assets, current operating lease liabilities and noncurrent lease liabilities in the
accompanying consolidated financial statements. ROU assets represent MHS' right to use leased assets over the
term of the lease. Lease liabilities represent MHS' contractual obligation to make lease payments over the lease
term,

For operating leases, ROU assets and lease liabilities are recognized at the commencement date. The lease liability
is measured as the present value of the lease payments over the lease term. MHS uses the rate implicit in the lease
if it is determinable. When the rate implicit in the lease is not determinable, MHS uses its incremental borrowing
rate at the commencement date of the lease to determine the present value of the lease payments. Gperating ROU
assets are calculated as the present value of the lease payments plus initial direct costs and any prepayments less
any lease incentives received. Lease terms may include renewal or extension options to the extent they are
reasonably certain to be exercised. The assessment of whether renewal or extension options are reasonably certain
fo be exercised is made at lease commencement. Factors considered in determining whether an option is
reasonably certain of exercise include, but are not limited to, the value of any leasehold improvemenits, the value
of renewal rates compared to market rates and the presence of factors that would cause a significant economic
penalty to MHS if the option were not exercised. Lease expense is recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease
term. MHS has elected not to recognize a ROU asset and obligation for leases with an initial term of twelve months
or less. The expense associated with short-term leases is included in other purchased services in the accompanying
consolidated statements of operations.

Estimated Malpractice Costs

The provision for estimated medical malpractice costs includes estimates of the ultimate gross costs for both
reported claims and claims incurred but not reported. Anticipated insurance recoveries, if any, associated with
reported claims are recorded separately in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets at net realizable value.

Excess of Revenue Over Expenses

The consolidated statements of operations include excess of revenue over expenses. Changes in net assets without
donor restrictions, which are excluded from excess of revenue over expenses, consistent with industry practice,
include permanent fransfers of assets to and from affiliates for other than goods and services and contributions of
long-lived assets (including assets acquired using contributions which by donor restriction were to be used for the
purposes of acquiring such assets) and includes changes in pension and post-retirement cost. Activities that result
in gains or losses unrelated to the primary operations of MHS are considered to be nonoperating.
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Measure of Operations

The accompanying consolidated statements of operations reflect operating income, which includes alf operating
revenues and expenses that are an integral part of the MHS’ healthcare services and supporting activities and net
assets released from donor restrictions to support operating expenditures. Activities included in excess of revenue
over expenses that are excluded from operating income, consistent with industry practice include, changes in net
unrealized gains and losses on derivative financial instruments, investment income {including realized and
unrealized gains and losses on investments, interest, dividends and investment expenses), except for interest
income earned on operating cash and cash equivalents and realized gains and losses and interest income
associated with the malpractice insurance program, which are included in other operating revenue, as such
proceeds are utilized in operations.

Conftributions

Unconditional promises to give cash and other assets to MHS are reported at fair value at the date the promise is
received. Conditional promises to give and indications of intentions to give are reported at fair value at the date the
gift s recelved.

Recent Accounting Pronouncement

Effective July 1, 2023, the MHS adopted ASU 2016-13 Financial Instruments - Credit Losses (Topic 326):
Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial Instrumenis, as amended, which replaces the incurred loss
methodology with an expected loss methodology that is referrad to as the current expected credit loss (CECL)
methodology. The measurement of expected credit losses under CECL methodology is applicable to financial
assels measured at amortized cost, certain qualifying insurance receivables, reinsurance recoveries and
receivables. This accounting pronouncement did not have a material impact on the financial statements.

Note 2. Patient Service Revenue

Estimated uncollectible amounts from patients are considered implicit price concessions {as defined in Topic 606)
and, therefore, included in patient service revenue. Allowances far price concessions continue to be presented as
a direct reduction of patient accounts receivabls.

Management has determined that MHS has an unconditional right to payment only subject to the passage of time
for services provided to date based on just the need to either finalize billing for such services (i.e., charge lag) or to
discharge the patient and bill for such services for patients who are still receiving inpatient care in MHS’ facilities at
the balance sheet date. Accordingly, MHS accrues revenues and the related accounts receivable for services
performed but not yet billed at the balance sheet date for in-house patients. Thus, management has determined
that MHS does not have any amounts that should be reflected separately as contract assets.

As permitted from Topic 606, MHS elected certain available practical expedients under the standard. First, MHS
elected the practical expedient that allows nonrecognition of the promised amount of consideration from patients
and third-party payers for the effecls of a significant financing component due to MHS' expectation that the period
between the time the service is provided to a patient and the time that the patient or a third-party payer pays for
that service will be one year or less. However, MHS does, in certain instances, enter into payment agreements with
patients that allow payments in excess of one year. For those cases, the financing component is not deemed to be
significant to the respective contracts. Additionally, MHS has applied the practical expedient whereby all incremental
customer contract acquisition costs are expensed as they are incurred, as the amortization period of the asset that
MHS otherwise would have recognized is one year ar less in duration.
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Patient service revenue is reported at the amount that reflects the consideration to which MHS expects to be entitled
in exchange for providing patient care. These amounts are due from patients, third-party payers (including health
insurers and government programs) and others. Generally, MHS bills patients and third-party payers several days
after services are performed or the patient is discharged from the facility. Revenue is recognized as performance
obligations are satisfied.

Performance obligations are determined based on the nature of the services provided by MHS. Revenue for
performance obligations satisfied over time is recognized based on actual charges incurred in relation to total
expected charges. MHS believes that this method provides a faithful depiction of the transfer of services over the
term of the performance obligation based on the inputs needed to satisfy the obligations. Generally, performance
obligations satisfied over time relate to patients in the Medical Center or SMI. MHS measures the performance
obligation from admission to the facility to the point when the facility is no longer required to provide services to that
patient, or resident which Is generally the time of discharge. Revenue for performance obligations satisfied at a
point in time generally relate to patients receiving outpatient services or patients and customers in a retail setting
and MHS does not believe it s required to provide additional goods or services.

Becauss all of its performance obligations relate to contracts with a duration of less than one year, MHS has elected
to apply the optional exemption provided in current applicable accounting standards and, therefore, is not required
to disclose the aggregate amount of the transaction price allocated to performance obligations that are unsatisfied
or partially unsatisfied at the end of the reporting period. Any unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied performance
obligations are primarily related to inpatient acute care services at the end of the reporting period. The performance
obligations for these contracts are generally completed when patients are discharged, which generally occurs within
days or weeks of the end of the reporting period.

As discussed in Note 18, MMC charges are based on rates established by the Commission, which is subsequently
reduced by contractual discounts provided to third-party payers and discounts provided to uninsured patients in
accordance with MHS policy. SMI and Physician Enferprise determine the transaction price based on standard
charges for goods and services provided, reduced by explicit price concession in the form of contractual
adjusiments provided to third-party payers, discounts provided to uninsured patients in accordance with internal
policy, and implicit price concessions provided to uninsured patients. MHS determines its estimate of implicit price
concessions based on historical collection experience with this class of patients using a portfolio approach as a
practical expedient to account for patient contracts as collective groups rather than individually. Management
believes that the financial effects of using this practical expedient are not materially different from an individual
contract approach,

Laws and regulations concerning government programs, including Medicare and Medicaid, are complex and subject
to varying interpretation. As a result, there is at least a reasonable possibility that recorded estimates will change
by a material amount in the near term. As a result of investigations by governmental agencies, various healthcare
organizations have received requests for information and notices regarding alleged noncompliance with those laws
and regulations, which in some instances have resulted in organizations entering into significant settlement
agreements. Compliance with such laws and regulations may also be subject to future government review and
interpretation, as well as significant regulatory action, including fines, penalties, and potential exclusion from the
related programs. There can be no assurance that regulatory authorities will not challenge compliance of MHS with
these laws and regulations, and it is not possible to determine the impact (if any) such claims or penalties would
have upon MHS. The results of such governmental review could include fines, penalties and exclusion from
participation in the Medicare and Medicaid programs. In addition, the contracts MHS has with commercial payers
also provide for retroactive audit and review of claims.

Generally, patients who are covered by third-party payers are responsible for related deductibles and coinsurance,
which vary in amount. MHS also provides setvices to uninsured patients, and offers those uninsured patients a
discount, either by policy or law, from standard charges. MHS estimates the transaction price for patients with
deductibles and coinsurance and from those who are uninsured based on historical experience and current market
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conditions. The initial estimate of the transaction price is determined by reducing the standard charge by any
discounts and price concessions. Subsequent changes to the eslimate of the transaction price are generally
recorded as adjustments to patient service revenue in the period of the change. Subsequent changes that are
determined to be the resulf of an adverse change in the patient's ability to pay are recorded as bad debt expense.

Consistent with mission of MHS, care is provided to patients regardless of their ability to pay. Therefore, MHS has
determined it has provided implicit price concessions to uninsured patienis and patients with other uninsured
balances (for example, copays and deductibles). The Implicit price concessions included in estimating the
transaction price represent the difference between amounts billed to patients and the amounts MHS expects to
collect based on its collection history with those patients.

Agreements with third-party payers typically provide for payments at amounts less than established charges, or
fixed fee schedule. A summary of the payment arrangements with major third-party payers follows:

Medicare: Services rendered to Medicare beneficiaries are paid at prospectively determined rates per case. These
rates vary according to a payment classification system that is based on clinical, diaghastic, inpatient status and
other factors. Costs related to Medicare beneficiaries are paid based upon cost reimbursement methods,
established fee screens, or a combination thereof. Physician services are paid based upon established fee
schedules. Qutpatient services, are paid using prospectively determined rates and are reimbursed for cost
reimbursement items at tentative rates with final settlement determined after submission of annual cost reports and
audits thereof by the Medicare fiscal intermediary.

Medicaid: Medicald services, excluding CAH, Rural Health Centers (RHC) and FHC, primarily are reimbursed
based upon prospectively determined rates for services rendered to Medicaid program beneficiaries.
Reimbursement for CAH, RHC and FHC is received at tentative rates, with final settlement determined after
submission of an annual cost report and approval by the Medicaid program.

Other: Payment agreements with managed care payors provide for payment using prospectively determined rates
per discharge, discounts from established charges and prospectively determined daily rates, shared savings, pay
for performance, care management or medical home management per patient fees.

There are various other proposals at the federal and state levels that could, among other things, reduce
reimbursement rates, or modify reimbursement methods, including Medicare and Medicaid. The ultimate outcome
of these proposals and other market changes cannot presently be determined.

Patient service revenue from third-party payers and others (including uninsured patients) for the years ended June
30, 2024 and 2023, are summarized in the following tables:

2024
Medicare Medicaid Commercial Other Total

Hospital | npatient $ 85433 3 57,382 % 62,099 § 2611 § 207,525
Hospital | Cutpatient 124,100 44,720 175,182 8,03¢ 352,041
Hospital | Emergency Room 4,869 10,217 3,823 2,405 21,314
Stella | Skilled Nursing 17,075 26,151 2,237 7,203 52,666
Stella | Home Health 13,720 81 2,687 2,087 18,575
Physician Enterprise | FFS 55,157 28,432 99,546 11,861 194,996
Physician Enterprise | Ancillary 38,193 4.630 38,960 305 82,088
$ 338647 § 171613 § 384,634 $ 34,511 3 929,205
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2023

Medicare Medicaid Commercial Other Total
Hospital | Inpatient 3 75843 3 53,502 % 60,740 § 1,331 § 191,416
Hospital | Qutpatient 127,252 46,007 172,045 6,702 352,006
+ Hospital | Emergency Room 4,267 8,478 3,774 1,371 17,890
Stella | Skilled Nursing 15,063 26,132 2,738 7,651 51,584
Stella | Home Health 8,479 157 1,680 1,591 12,217
Physician Enterprise | FFS 52,036 27,370 92,931 11,924 184,281
Physician Enterprise | Ancillary 35,825 3,665 37,577 290 77,357

$ 318,765 % 165311 § 71795 % 30,860 886

Revenue from deductibles and coinsurance are included in the categories presented above based on the primary
payer.

Note 3. Patient Accounts Receivable and Charity Care

Approximately 45% and 47% of gross patient accounts receivable were due from Medicare and Medicaid at
June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

The net cost of charity care provided by MHS totaled $22,695 and $19,829 for the years ended June 30, 2024 and
2023, respectively. The cost of charity care was calculated by applying the cost-to-charge ratio to the total amount
of charges foregone for each of the controlled subsidiaries of MHS that provide charity care. The cost of charity
care was determined net of any patient-related revenue due to sliding scale payments or other patient-specific
sources and includes both direct and indirect cost of rendering care. The net cost of charity care is excluded from
the uncompensated care fund net receipts (see Note 18). Additionally, MHS and certain of its controlled subsidiaries
provide structured repayment plans to patients without collateral.

Note 4. Pledges Receivable, Net

Pledges receivable resulting from unconditional promises to give are reported in the period when the pledge is
made. As of June 30, 2024, pledges receivable consisted of contributions to fund capital and operating campaigns
for the MHS,

MHS had unconditional promises to give representing the following at June 30, 2024:

2024 2023

Amounts to be received within one year $ 2,789 $ 2,595
Amounts to be received within two to five years 8,263 8,376
Amounts to be received after five years 17,695 18.881
Total Pledges 28,747 . 29,852
Less: unamortized discount (5,173) (5,442)
Less: current portion (2,789) (2,595)
Long-term portion $ 20,785 3 21,815
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MHS discounts long term pledge receivables at a rate range of 1.81 % to 4.63%, which includes a risk adjustment
factor. Approximately $22,000 and $23,000 of the total gross pledge receivable attributable to one major doner, as
of the year ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

Note 5. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment, at cost, consists of the following at June 30:

2024 2023
Buildings and improvements 3 719,856 $ 701,816
Machinery and equipment 317,287 293,076
Parking center 41,971 41,971
Construction-in-progress 41,404 36,011
Land 18.976 18,976

1,139,494 1,091,850
Accumulated depreciation (591.441) (548,351)

3 548,053 $ 543,499

Construction in progress consists primarily of major renovation and expansion projects.
MMC completed construction and IT projects to expand services and capacity that cost approximately $8,221 and

$15,446 during the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively. The spend associated with these projects
have been capitalized and are included in buildings and improvements.

Note 6. Funds Held by Trustee

Funds held by trustee, which consist primarily of cash and government obligations (at fair value), are limited as to
use as follows at June 3(:

2024 2023
Debt service fund $ 5,551 $ 13,427
Reserve for replacements and residual receipts 1.914 1,601
7,465 15,028
Less current portion (5,551) (13,427)
Long-term portion $ 1,914 § 1,601

Note 7. Board Designated, Donor Restricted, and Assets Held for Self-Insurance Cash
and Investments

Board designatad cash and investments are set aside by the board of trustees for costs relating to replacement or
improvement of existing assets, or to cover the cost of services rendered as charity care and other programs. All
board-designated investments are without donor restrictions, as the board at its discretion may undesignated the
use of such funds. Investments with donor restrictions have been limited by donors to a specific purpose.
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Board designated, donor restricted, and assets held for self-insurance cash and investments consist of the
fallowing at June 30:

2024 2023
Equity $ 274,720 $ 230,814
Fixed maturity 176,118 142,942
Cash and cash equivalents 22,191 40,546
Alternatives 34,128 35,555
Mutual bond funds 18,045 14,267
$ 525202 § 464,124

The investments above have been allocated, by source, as follows at June 30;

2024 2023
Board designated $ 317,259 3 280,337
With donor restrictions subject to passage of time or use 31,853 26,418
With perpetual donor restrictions 2,178 2,178
Assets held for self-insurance 173,912 145,191
$ 525200 § 464124

Investments with perpetual donor restrictions at June 30, 2024 and 2023 of $2,178 are reported as restricted cash
and investments.

Earnings on investments without donor restrictions are as follows for the years ended June 30:

2024 2023
Interest and dividends S 6,407 $ 4,199
Net realized {losses) gains 6,729 {1,.214)
13,136 2,985
Unrealized gains (losses) on investments 20,980 23,445
3 34.116 3 26,430

MHS has certain charitable gift annuities with certain individuals and other third party entities. As of June 30, 2024
and 2023, MHS maintained reserve assets in the amount of $94 and $93, in a segregated account, respectively.
As of June 30, 2024 and 2023, MHS maintained reserves on its outstanding annuity agreements in the amount of
$45 and $47, respectively. Management believes the reserve assets are sufficient to meet the reserve requirements.

Note 8.

Investments In and Advances to Affiliates

Investments in and advances to affiliates include joint venture relationships in which MHS or its subsidiaries have
an ownership interest of 50% or less. Investments over which MHS has significant influence are generally carried
on the equity method, while the others where MHS does not have significant influence are carried at cost.
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MHS has investments tofaling $5,651 and $4,564 at June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively, in the following joint

veniures:
Percentage of Ownership Investment
Joint Venture Busingss Purpose 2024 2023 7 2024 2023

Premier Purchasing
Partnars, Inc. Capitat balance In group

purchasing organization nia n/a $ 276 $ 276
Johns Hopkins Medicare
Advantage Medicare Advantage plan 1.11% 1.11% 5375 4,288

3 5,651 3 4,564

MHS recorded non-operating income of $775 and $1,000 related to the operations of these investments for the
years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively. MHS receives rebates from Premier Purchasing Partners, Inc.,
which are netted with associated supplies expense in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

In June 1997, MMC executed a joint venture agreement with the Archbishop of Baltimore to form Mercy Ridge, Inc.
(MR) for the purpose of developing a continuing care retirement community located in Timonium, MD. MMC has a
30% ownership in the joint venture. Since the original contribution into the joint venture, MMC has received
distributions greater than the original investment. As of June 30, 2024 and 2023, MR has operated at a net deficit.
MMC has recorded the equity method in the investment at zero as of June 30, 2024 and 2023, since MMC is not
obligated to make additional contributions into MR.

In September 2016, MHS invested in the Maryland Health Advantage Medicare Advantage Plan {the MA Plan) as
a minority owner acquiring a six percent ownership stake. The MA Plan is comprised of various Maryland healthcare
providers to deliver comprehensive provider, physician, prascription medicine, wellness and other coverage to
participating Medicare beneficiaries in Maryland through a health care network. MHS and the Physician Enterprise
are also contracted as participating providers in the MA Plan.

MHS recognizes its ownership in the MA Plan using the cost basis of accounting. MHS' current committed capital
is $5,375 and the mandatory capital was limited to $3,000. Any additional capital requirements are optional but
electing not to contribute will ditute MHS® ownership percentage accordingly. MHS contributed $233 and $183 during
the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively.. All net revenue from providing services to MA Plan
beneficiaries is recognized at expected reimbursable amounts in the accompanying consolidated statements of
operations. Members are allocated a portion of profits or losses in accordance with their participation in the MA
Plan based on the terms of the membership agreement. The amount of such allocated profits or losses cannot be
estimated at the present time. Accordingly, they will be recognized in the period the amount of such allocations
become known,

Note 9. Other Assets

Other long-term assets consist of the following at June 30:

2024 2023
Amortizable assets, net $ 869 $ 1,280
Health insurance prepayment 1,708 1,449
Other investments . 997 897

$ = 3574 § 3,626
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Gross amortizable assets of $11,696 and $11,699 for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively, are
amortized over the expected useful life of the asset on a siraight-line basis. MHS has recorded accumulated
amortization of $10,827 and $10,419 for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively. Amortization
expense is included with depreciation and amortization on the consolidated statements of operations.

Note 10. Reinsurance Receivable and Provision for Outstanding Losses

GIC management based the provision for losses relating to medical malpractice and general liability at
June 30, 2024 on a report dated July 2024 prepared by GIC's independent actuaries, As of June 30, 2024 and
2023, GIC's outstanding undiscounted losses were $155,860 and $139,478, respectively, and the reinsurance
receivable for such losses was $6,951 and $6,335, respectively, after factoring in actual losses paid to June 30.
The estimates provided by the actuaries are based on the historical data of the program blended together with
relevant insurance industry loss development statistics. See Note 17 for further information regarding policies and
coverage.

Movement in the provision for outstanding losses is summarized as follows:

2024 2023
Beginning balance $ 139,478 $ 131,767
Less: outstanding losses recoverable {6.335) (6,815)

$ 133,143 $ 124,952

Incurred, net of reinsurance

Current year $ 30,612 $ 30,448
Prior years {8,475) (16,712)

$ 22,137 $ 13,736

Paid, net of reinsurance, relatsd to
Current year $ 858 % (590)
Prior years (7,229) {4,955)
$ (6,371) & {5,545)
Net balance at year end $ 148,900 $ 133,143
Add: outstanding losses recoverable 6,951 6,335
Balance at end of year $ 155,860 $ 139,478
Less: current portion _ {7,377) (6,889)
Provision for outstanding losses, long term $ 148,483 $ 132,689
23
Mercy Medical Center 106 41812025 11:35:20 AM

520591658



Mercy Health Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2024 and 2023

{in thousands)

Conslistent with most companies with similar insurance operations, GIC's provision for outstanding losses is
ultimately based on management’s reasonable expectations of future events. In the opinion of GIC management,
the provision for outstanding losses relating to losses reported and losses incurred but not reported at the
consolidated balance sheet dates is adequate to cover the expected ultimate liability of GIC. It is reasonably
possible that the expectations associated with these amounts could change in the near term (i.e., within one year)
and that the effect of such changes could be material to the consolidated financlal statemens.

GIC's long-term estimated provision for outstanding losses exceeds GIC's retention limits by $6,951 and $6,335 for
the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively, and are recorded as reinsurance receivable in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets. GIC's current reinsurance receivable is $760 and $1,030 as of the
years ending June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively, and are recorded as other amounts receivable, net In the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

In the event that GIC's reinsurers are unable to meet their obligations under the reinsurance agreements, GIC would
still be liable to pay all losses under the insurance policies it issues but would only receive reimbursement to the
extent the reinsurers could meet their above-mentioned obligations. GIC believes that all amounts included in
reinsurance balances receivable and recoverable in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets will be
collected in full from the reinsurers,

Note 11. Long-Term Debt ’
Long-term debt consists of the following at June 30:
2024 2023
MHHEFA Revenue Bonds, Mercy Medical Center Issue, Series
2006; interest rate 5.69%; due July 1, 2036 3 22,855 $ 24,020
MHHEFA Revenue Bonds, Mercy Medical Center Issue, Series
2007 B and C (converted); interest rate 1.48%; due July 1, 2024 3,800 7,470

MHHEFA Revenue Bonds, Mercy Medical Center Issue, Series
2016A; interest rate ranging from 3.50% to 5.00%; due
July 1, 2042 135,250 135,250

MHHEFA Revenua Bonds, Mercy Medical Center Issue, Series
2016C; variable interest rate (4.99% at June 30, 2024); due

July 1, 2042, subject to mandatory redemption on July 1, 2032 53,645 55,795
MHHEFA Revenus Bonds, Stella Maris Issue, Series 2018; variable
interest rate (3.3% at June 30, 2024); due 2050 16,410 16,745
MHHEFA Revenue Bonds, Mercy Medical Center Issue, Series
2021; fixed interest rate 1.65%; due July 1, 2031 43,100 44,780
MHHEFA Revenue Bonds, Mercy Medical Center !ssue, Series
2022A, fixed interest rate 2.84%; due July 1, 2031 41,865 45,200

MHHEFA Revenue Bonds, Mercy Medical Center Issue, Series
2022B; variable interest rate (5.11% at June 30, 2024); due

July 1, 2031 . 35,335 35,335
HUD mortgage loan; interest rate 2.64%; due 2046 3,885 4,017
Other o - 38
Total long-term debt 356,145 368,650
24
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(continued) 2024 2023
Add: Net unamortized premium 5,518 5,845
Less: Net unamortized debt issuance costs (2,503) (2,313)
Current portion {12,935) {12,508)
Long -term portion § 346,225 $ 359,674

Principal payments on long-term debt are as follows for the years ending June 30:

2025 $ 12,935
2026 13,419
2027 13,823
2028 14,232
2029 . 14,580
Thereafier 287,156

$ 366,040

Fursuant to an amended and restated Master Loan Agreement, as supplemented (the Loan Agreement), the
Obligated Group members have issued debt through Maryland Health and Higher Educational Facilities Authority
{MHHEFA). Currently the Medical Center, MHS and MHF comprise the Obligated Group for Mercy Medical Center
issues. Each Obligated Group member is jointly and severally liable for the repayments under the obligations of the
Loan Agreement. As security for the performance of the obligations of the Obligated Group members under the
Loan Agreement, the Obligated Group members have granted to MHHEFA a security interest in their receipts,
subject to certain permitted encumbrances. In addition, the Medical Center has mortgaged to MHHEFA certain real
and personal property of the Medical Center. The Loan Agreement contains certain restrictive, financial and
nonfinancial covenants. Under the terms of the Loan Agreement and other loan agreements, certain funds are
required to be maintained on deposit with the trustee or MHHEFA to provide for repayment of the obligations of the
Obligated Group (see Note 8).

Under the provisions of the Series 2018 Bonds agreement, SMi is the obligated party and has granted to MHHEFA
a security interest in all of its real property and the assignment of its leases. In addition, payments on the Series
2018 Bonds are secured by an irrevocable letter of credit provided by a commerclal bank,

SMIis required to maintain certain deposits with a trustee and satisfy certain measures of financial performance as
long as the Series 2018 Bonds are cutstanding. As of June 30, 2024 and 2023, management believes SM| was in
compliance with the finanhcial covenant requirements of the bond indenture.

Mercy Medical Center Issue, Series 2006 Bonds

In August 2008, MHHEFA authorized the issuance, sale and delivery of the $35,000 Mercy Medical Center Series
2008 Revenue Bonds. The proceeds were loaned by MHHEFA to MMC to finance the construction of a new parking
garage as well as the financing of certain routine capital expenditures.

Principal repayment of these bonds began on July 1, 2009 and is paid annually through July 1, 2036. Interest Is
paid semiannually on January 1 and July 1. Interest accrues at a fixed rate of 5.69%. The bonds are currently
callable at par (100%).
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Mercy Medical Center Issue, Series 2007B and C (Converted)

In October 2007, MHHEFA authorized the issuance, sale and delivery of its $100,000 Revenue Bonds, Mercy
Medical Center Issue, Serigs 2007B and C, the procesds of which were loaned by MHHEFA to MMC to finance the
construction of a replacement hospital facility. On April 1, 2010, $18,080 of the $50,000 Series 20078 and $11,820
of the $50,000 Series 2007C Bonds were converted to Bank Qualified Revenue Bonds with a fixed interest rate,
terminating July 1, 2024. Principal repayment of the converted bonds began July 1, 2012 and subsequent to year
end were paid in full. Interest accrues at a fixed rate of 1.48%. The moenthly interest payments on the Series 20078
and € Bonds are made directly to the bank.

The portion of the Series 2007B and C bonds that were not converted to Bank Qualified Bonds were refinanced
with other MHHEFA Revenue bonds.

Mercy Medical Center Issue, Series 2016A

In March 2016, MHHEFA autharized the issuance, sale and delivery of its $135,250 Revenue Bonds, Mercy Medical
Center Issue, Series 2016A. The proceeds were loaned by MHHEFA to MMC to advance refund $145,880
aggregate principal amount and $11,452 aggregate interest due until July 1, 2017 of the MMC Issue, Serles 2007A
Bonds. As of June 30, 2016, the 2007A bonds were defeased and on July 1, 2017 the Series 2007A Bonds were
fully refunded.

Principal repayment of the Series 2016A begins on July 1, 2032 and is scheduled to be paid annually through
July 1, 2042. interest accrues at a fixed rate ranging from 3.5% to 5.0%. The Series 2016A bonds were issued net
of an original issue premium of $9,327, which is being amortized aver the life of the bonds using the straight-line
method, which approximates the effective interest method.

Mercy Medical Center Issue Series 2016C

In May 2016, MHHEFA authorized the issuance, sale and delivery of its $65,450 Revenue Bonds, Mercy Medical
Center, Series 2016C. The proceeds were loaned by MHHEFA to MMC to refund the $65,290 Series 2013 and
Series 2013B bonds then outstanding. The Series 2016C bonds were issued as a non-bank qualified revenue bonds
and directly purchased by a commercial bank. The direct bank purchase terminates on July 1, 2032, at which time
the Series 2016C bonds will be subject to a mandatory purchase at their par value by MMC unless the bank and
MMC agree to an extension. The Series 2016C bonds bear interest at a variable rate of 80% SOFR plus 0.73%.
Annual principal repayment of Series 2016C bonds began on July 1, 2016 with maturity on July 1, 2042, with interest
being paid monthly.

Stella Maris Issue, Series 2018 Bonds

In December 2018, MHHEFA authorized the issuance, sale and delivery of its $21,000 Revenue Bonds, Stella
Maris issue. The proceeds were loaned to SMI to refund Series 1997 Bonds and to partially finance the construction
of a Transitional Care Center in Stella Maris. Principal repayment of these bonds began on
July 1, 2019 and is scheduled to be paid annually through July 1, 2050, All Series 2018 Bonds are subject to
redemption prior to maturity. Interest accrues at a variable rate based on SIFMA. Interest on the bonds is payable
monthly. An annual letter of credit fee, equal to 0.73% of the letter of credit amount, is payable quarterly by SML.
The letter of credit expires December 19, 2028.

Mercy Medical Center Issue, Series 2021 Bonds

In April 2021, MHHEFA authorized the issuance, sale and delivery of its $46,680 Revenue Bonds, Mercy Medical
Issue, Series 2021 Bonds. The proceeds were loaned by MHHEFA to MMC to refund Series 2011 Bonds and to
finance new equipment purchases for Mercy Medical Center. Principal repayment of these bonds began on
July 1, 2021 and is scheduled to be paid annually through July 1, 2031, Interest accrues at a fixed rate based of
1.65%, payable monthly.
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Mercy Medical Center Issue, Series 20224

In June 2022, MHHEFA authorized the issuance, sale and delivery of its $45,200 Revenue Bonds, Mercy Medical
Issue, Series 2022A Bands. The proceeds were loaned by MHHEFA to MMC to refund Series 2012 Bonds for
Mercy Medical Center. Principal repayment of these bonds begins on July 1, 2023 and is scheduled to be paid
annually through July 1, 2031. Interest accrues at a fixed rate based of 2.84%, payable menthly.

Mercy Medical Center Issue, Series 2022B

In June 2022, MHHEFA authorized the issuance, sale and delivery of its $35,335 Revenue Bonds, Mercy Medical
Issue, Series 2022B Bonds. The proceeds were loaned by MHHEFA to MMC to refund Series 2016B Bonds for
Mercy Medical Center. Principal repayment of these bonds begins on July 1, 2032 and is scheduled to be paid
annually through July 1, 2037, The Series 2022B bonds interest accrues at a variable rate equal to 0.79% of the
one month secured overnight financing rate plus the applicable spread of 0.92%, payable monthly.

HUD Mortgage Loan

The mortgage loan from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) was used by CSC to
construct St. Elizabeth Hall. This criginal note was reflnanced during the year ended June 30, 2013. The current
note reflects an interest rate of 2.64% per annum with monthly installments of $20, including interest, with the final
payment due January 1, 2046 and requires mortgage insurance of 0.45% of the average annual outstanding
principal balance. The note also requires a debt service savings and property replacement reserve fund. The liability
of CSC under the mortgage note is limited to the underlying value of the real estate collateral plus other amounts
deposited with the lender.

Lines of Credit

The Medical Center has a $50,000 operating line of credit with a commercial bank. At June 30, 2024 and 2023, the
operating line of credit had $0 outstanding. As of June 30, 2024 and 2023, the interest rate on the outstanding line
of credit draw was 7.08% and 6.84%, respectively, and Is based on one-month SOFR plus 1.75%. This line of credit
agreement is scheduled to remain in effect until all obligations, including other debt held by the bank, are paid in
full or terminated by the bank,

Interest Rate Swaps

MHS’ primary objective for helding derivative financial instruments is to manage interest rate risk. MHS does not
utilize interest rate swap agreements or other financial instruments for trading or other speculative purposes. The
derivative financial instruments are recorded at fair value based upon information supplied by the counterparty as
described in Note 12. '

On December 1, 2004, the Medical Center entered into a fixed spread basis swap. The fixed spread basis swap
matures on December 1, 2024 and the exchanges of cash flows with the counter party began March 1, 2005. The
notional amount of the swap is $50,000. Pursuant to the swap agreement, the Medical Center pays the counter
party a variable rate equal to the USD-SIFMA Municipal Swap Index and receives interest at a variable rate equat
to the sum of SIFMA plus 0.85%.

Simultaneously, with the issuance of the Series 2006 bonds, MMC entered into an interest rate swap agresment,
which was amended in November 2014, with a counter party with a national amount of $35,000 to convert the fixed
rate structure to a variable rate. Under this amended agresment, MMC will receive a fixed interest rate of 5.69%
and pay to the counter party the USD-SIFMA Municipal Swap Index plus 0.80%. The interest rate swap agreement
matures on April 1, 2023, Additionally, under this amended agreement, MMC will continue to receive a fixed interest
rate of 5.69% and now pay to the counter party the USD-SIFMA Municipal Swap Index plus 0.836%. The interest
rate swap does not qualify for hedge accounting under generally accepted accounting principles,
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The fair value of this contract is based on two components: (i) the accrued but unpaid periodic cash flows and (i)
the termination value as defined in the agreement. By definition, the termination value is equal to the bond amount
multiplied by the difference between highest price in the marketplace and the bonds base price (100%) and the call
price would be the highest price in the marketplace on the valuation date, This is due to the fact that MHS would be
economically inclined to call the bonds at par versus paying any termination payment on the swap and the bonds
are carried on MHS' books at par, With MHS prepared to call the bonds at par, the market price should immediately
converge on the call price. Additionally, MHS has the right to optionally terminate the contract. The counter party
does not have the right to optionally terminate the agreement. The counter party can only terminate the agreement
prior to its stated maturity if an event of default or an additional termination event exists.

During October 2007, MMC entered into a fixed payer swap with a notional amount of $65,000, which was amended
in July 2014. Pursuant to the amended swap agreement, MMC pays the counter party a fixed rate of 3.459% and
receives a variable rate equal to 70% of SOFR plus 0.08%.

MHS recognizes gains and losses from changes in fair values of interest rate swap agreements as non-operating
revenue or expense within net other income in the accompanying consolidated statement of operations. The net
cash paid or received under the swap agreements Is recognized as an adjustment to interest expense. No
termination payments would be required if the swap agreements are held to maturity.

Entering into interest rate swap agreements involves, to varying degrees, slements of credit, default, prepayment,
market and documentation risk. Such risks involve the possibility that there will be no liquid market for these
agreements, the counterparty to these agreements may default on its obligation to petform and there may be
unfavorable changes in interest rates. The notional amounts of the swap agreements are used to measure the
interest to be paid or received and do not represent the amount of exposure to credit loss. Exposure to credit loss
is lirnited to the receivable amount, if any, which may be generated as a result of the swap agreements.
Management believes that losses related to credit risk are remote.

At June 30, 2024 and 2023, the fair value of the interest rate swap liability was $(4,286) and $(6,529), respectivaly.
An unrealized gain on interest rate swaps totaling $2,243 and $4,872 is reflected in the accompanying consclidated
statements of operations for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

Note 12. Fair Value of Financial Instruments
The following metheds and assumptions were used by MHS in estimating the fair value of its financial instruments:

Cash and cash equivalents, patient accounts receivable, other amounts receivable, accounts payable and
accrued expenses due to third-party payers and construction retainage: The carrying amounts reported in the
consolidated balance sheets approximate fair value.

Short-term investments, funds held by trustee and assets limited as to use and donor restricted investments:
FFair values, which are the amounts reported in the consolidated balance sheets, are based on quoted market
prices, if available, or estimated using quoted market prices for similar securities.

Pooled separate accounts: NAV units, as determined by the custodian, are used o estimate fair value since
guoted prices in active markets for identical assets are not available. These prices are determined using
observable market information such as quotes from less active markets and/or quoted prices of securities with
similar characteristics.
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Current accounting standards define fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer
a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date and establish a three-level
hierarchy for fair value measurements based upon the transparency of inputs to the valuation of an asset or liability
as of the measurement date. The three levels of inputs that may be used to measure fair value are:

Level 1 Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. Level 1 assets and liabilities include
debt and equity securities that are traded in an active exchange market, as well as U.S. Treasury
securities.

Level2 Observable input other than Level 1 prices such as guoted prices for similar assets or liabilities;
quoted prices in markets that are not active; or other inputs that are observable or can be
corroborated by observable market data for substantially the full term of the assets or liabilities. Level
2 assets and liabilities include debt securities with quoted market prices that are traded less
frequently than exchange-traded instruments, This category generally includes certain U.S.
government and agency mortgage-backed debt securities, corporate-debt securities, and alternative
investments.

Level 3 Unobservable inputs that are supported by litlle or no market activity and that are significant fo the
fair value of the assets or liabilities. Level 3 assets and liabilities include financial instruments whose
value is determined using pricing models, discounted cash flow methodologies, or similar techniques,
as well as instruments for which the determination of fair value requires significant management
judgment or estimation. This category generally mcludes certain private debt and equity instruments
and alternative investments.

The following discussion describes the valuation methodologies used for financial assets and liabilities measured
at fair value. The technigues utilized in estimating the fair values are affected by the assumptions used, including
discount rates and estimates of the amount and timing of future cash flows. Care should be exercised in deriving
conclusions about the business, value, or financial position of MHS based on the fair value information of financial
assets and liabilities presented below.

Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time, based on available market information and judgments
about the financial asset or liability, including estimates of the timing, amount of expected future cash flows and
the credit standing of the issuer. In some cases, the fair value estimates cannot be substantiated by comparison
to independent markets. In addition, the disclosed fair value may not be realized in the immediate settlement of
the financial asset or liability. Furthermore, the disclosed fair values do not reflect any premium or discount that
couid result from offering for sale at one time an entire holding of a particular financial asset or liability. Potential
taxes and other expenses that would be incurred in an actual sale or settlement are not reflected in the amounts
disclosed.

MHS uses techniques consistent with the market approach for measuring fair value of its Level 2 and Level 3
assets and liabilities. The market approach is a valuation technique that uses prices and other relevant
information generated by market transactions involving identical or comparabie assets or liabilities. Fair values
of equity securities and fixed maturity securities have been determined by MHS from absetvable market
quotations, when available. Private placement securities and other equity securities where a public quotation is
not available are valued by using broker quotes. Cash equivalents comprise short-term fixed maturity securities
and carrying amounts approximate fair values, which have been determined from public quotations, when
available. Money markets and certificates of deposit comprise short-term fixed maturity securities. The carrying
amounts approximate fair values, which have been deiermined from public quotations, when available.
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MHS holds alternative investments that are not traded on national exchanges or over-the-counter markets.
MHS Is provided information on net asset value per share as a practical expedient for these investments
calculated by the funds of funds’ managers (who are investment advisors registered with the Securities and
Exchange Commission) based on information provided by the managers of underlying funds.

Fair value of the interest rate swaps represents, or are derived from, mid-market values, Mid-market prices and
inputs may not be observable, and instead valuations may be derived from proprietary or other pricing models
based on certain assumptions regarding past, present and future market conditions. Some inputs may be
theoretical, not empirical, and require subjective assumptions and judgments. Valuations may be based on
assumptions as to the volatility of the underlying security, basket or index, interest rates, exchange rates,
dividend yields, correlations between these or other factors, the impact of these factors upon the value of the
security (including any embedded options), as well as issuer funding rates and credit spreads {actual or
approximated} or additional relevant factors.

The preceding methods described may produce a fair value calculation that may not be indicative of the net
realizable value or reflective of future fair values. Furthermore, although MHS believes its valuation methods are
appropriate and consistent with other market participants, the use of different methodologies or assumptions to
determine the fair value of certain financial instruments could results in a different fair value measurement at the
reporting date.
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The following table presents the fair value hierarchy for financial instruments reported by MHS measured at fair
value on a recurring basis as of June 30, 2024,

Total Fair
Assets Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Value
Board designated and donor restricted investments:
Cash equivalents $ 22,191 $ - % - 0% 22,181
Equity securities
Mutual funds )
Internaticnal emerging markets 45,194 - - 45,194
Domestic mutual fund-equity income 59,774 - - 59,774
Common stocks
Consumer discretionary 11,915 81 - 11,996
Consumer staples 9,267 566 - 9,833
Energy 7,343 272 - 7,615
Financizls 19,188 108 - 19,296
Real estate 2,245 - - 2,245
Health care 11,573 - - 11,573
Industrials 13,836 - - 13,836
Informaticn technology 31,872 - - 31,872
Materials 3,676 42 - 3,718
Miscellaneous 1,226 178 - 1,404
Foreign stocks/American deposit receipt 93 6,437 - 6,530
Fixed maturity
U.S. Government and agencies
U.S. Treasury bonds 18,569 - - 18,569
Government agency bonds - 10,646 - 10,646
Corporate bonds
Asset backed securities - 2,161 - 2,161
Financial - 2,748 - 2,748
Industrial - 6,055 - 6,055
Cther - 11,061 - 11,061
Mutual bond funds 18,045 - - 18,045
Municipal bonds - 806 - 800
Total assets in the fair value hierarchy 3 276,007 $ 41,155 3 - 317,162
Investments measured at NAY @ 34,128
Total Assets limited as to use 3 351,280
Assets held for self-insurance:
Exchange traded funds $ 35,540 $ - $ - $ 35,540
High Income Fund - 6,981 - 6,981
Equity mutual fund - 7,313 - 7,313
U.S. treasury securities 51,612 - - 51,612
Corporate bonds - 21,148 - 21,149
Mortgage-backed securities - 1,969 - 1,969
Asset backed securities - 49,348 - 49,348
Total assets held for self-insurance $ 87,152 $ 86,760 $ - $ 173,912
Short-term investments
Cash equivalents $ - $ 1,815 3 - $ 1,815
Total short-term investments 3 - 1,815 $ - $_ 1,815
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-{continued)}
Assets

Funds held by trustee {current)
Money market

Funds held by trustee (non-current)
Cash equivalents

Total assets in the fair value hierarchy
Investments measured at NAV (a)

Total investments at fair value

Liabilities

Interest rate swaps

Total liabilities at fair value

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Total Fair
Value

$ 5,551

1,914

$ 5,581

1,914

$ 370624

Level 1

128,730

5 -

Level 2

Level 3

500,354

34,128

$ 534,482
Total Fair

Value

$

4,286
4,286

$ -
$ -

$ 4,286
$ 4,288

® In accordance with current accounting standards, certain investments that were measured at NAV per share {or its
equivalent) have not been classified in the fair value hierarchy. The fair value amounts presented in this table are intended
to permit reconciliation of the fair value hierarchy to the line items presented in the consolidated balance sheets.
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The following table presents the fair value hierarchy for financial instruments reported by MHS measured at fair
value on a recurring basis as of June 30, 2023.

Total Fair
Assets Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Value

Board designated and donor restricted investments:
Cash equivalents $ 40,546 $ - $ - $ 40,546
Equity securities
Mutual funds

International emerging markets 55,607 - - 55,607
Domestic mutual fund-equity income 31,077 - - 31,077
Common stocks
Consumer discretionary 10,500 - - 10,500
Consumer staples 9,351 - - 9,351
Energy 4,719 - - 4,718
Financlals 14,531 - - 14,531
Real estate 3,737 - - 3,737
Health care 12,984 - - 12,984
Industrials 13,926 - - 13,928
Information technology 25,839 - - 25,839
Materials 4,048 - - 4,046
Miscellaneous 959 - - 959
Foreign stocks/Ametican deposit receipt - 6,385 - 6,385

Fixed maturity
U.8. Government and agencies

.8, Treasury bonds 10,886 - - 10,886

Government agency bonds - 8,728 - 8,728
Corporate bends

Asset backed securities - 082 - 082

Financial - 2,647 - 2,647

Industrial - 4,189 - 4,189

Other - 6,656 - 6,656

Mutual bond funds 14,267 - - 14,267

Municipal bonds . - 815 - 815

Total assets in the fair value hierarchy $ 252,975 $ 30,402 % - 283,377

Investments measured at NAV @ 35,556

Total Assets limited as to use $ 318,933

‘ Total Fair
Assets Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Value

Assets held for self-insurance:

Exchange traded funds $ 30,914 - 5 - % 30,914

Equity mutual fund - 6,238 - 6,238

U.S. treasury securities 46,317 - - 46,817

Corporate bonds - 16,290 - 16,990
Mortgage-backed securities - 1,338 - 1,338

Asset backed securities - 42,894 - 42 894

Total assets held for self-insurance $ 77,731 $ 67,460 $ - $ 145191
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{continued) Total Fair
Assels Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Value

Short-term investments

Cash equivalents $ - % 1,778 $ - 3 1.778
Total short-term investments 3 - $ 1,778 $ - 3 1,778
Funds held by trustee (current)

Money markat $ 13,427 $ - 8 - 8 13,427
Funds held by trustee (non-current)

Cash equivalents 1,601 - - 1,601
Total assets in the fair value hierarchy $_ 345734 $ 99,640 § - 445,374
Investments measured at NAV {a) 35,556
Total investments at fair value $ 480930

Total Fair
Liabilities Level 1 Leve] 2 Level 3 Value
Interest rate swaps $ - $ 6,529 $ - 3 6,529
Total liabilities at fair value $ - % 6,529 $ - % 6,529

@ In accordance with current accounting standards, certain investmenis that were measured at NAV per share (or fts
equivalent) have not been classified in the fair value hierarchy. The fair value amounts presented in this table are infended
to permit raconciiiation of the fair value hierarchy fo the line items presented in the consolidated balance sheets.

The following table summarizes investments for which fair value is measured using the NAV per share practical
expedient as of June 30, 2024 and 2023,

Fair Value at Fair Value at Other Redemption
- June 30, June 30, Unfunded Redemption Notice
2024 2023 Commitments Restrictions Period
Multi-Strategy Fund $ 9,126 § 8,395 Nonhe None 65 days
Stepstone Opportunities @ 9,392 13,498 3,823 None None
Other 15,610 13.663 5,145 - -
$ 34,128 $ 35,556

) The multi-strategy fund is event-driven with a focus on opportunitios to exploit situations in which announced or
anticipated events create opportunities to invest in securities and other financial instruments at a discount to their exit
values. The fund also invests in a longfshort equities portfolio of securities that can be readily valued and trade at a
discount or premium to the fair value of the underlying assets, The fund permits semiannual redemption subject to 65
days advance written notice.

@ The fund’s objective is to seek long-term capital appreciation by investing primarily by making, holding, and disposing
of privaiely negotiated equity and equity-related investments principally in a diversified group of operating companies,

34

Mercy Medical Center 117 4/8/2025 11:35:20 AM
52-0591658



Mercy Health Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2024 and 2023

(in thousands)

Note 13. Defined Contribution and Profit-Sharing Plans

MHS had a qualified 401(k} plan covering substantially all employees of the Medical Center and SMI who have
completed at least one year of service and are at least twenty-one years of age. MHS made an annual contribution
on behalf of all eligible employees based on either the employee's contributions to the 401(k) plan or their annual
compensation. MHS had matched, on a dollar-for-dollar basis (based on age and years of service thresholds) the
amount contributed by the employee, not to exceed 6% of the employee's salary. MHS' contributions to the 401(k}
plan for all participants emplayed prior to April 1, 1997 for Medical Center employees or July 1, 1997 for SM}
employees, vested at a rate of 25% annually and completely vested on April 1, 2001 for Medical Center employees
and July 1, 2001 for SMI employees. MHS' contributions for all participants employed on or after April 1, 1997 for
Medical Center employees or July 1, 1997 for SMI employees vested after four years of service, with no vesting
prior to four years of service. Effective January 1, 2018, Mercy made the following changes to the 401(k) plan: The
age and service requirement used to calculate Mercy’s match will be made at the beginning of each calendar quarter
(as opposed to January 1). Additionally, the vesting schedule was changed to a 3-year cliff as described below.
There is no age limit for participation in the plans which occurred retroactive to January 1, 2018.

Effective January 1, 2019, the plan was frozen and all contributions for MHS subsequent to this date are being
directed to the 403(b} Plan. MHS has a qualified 403(b) plan covering substantially all employees of Mercy Medical
Center and SMI. Eligibility for the employer match begins after the completion of one year of service. MHS makes
a quarterly contribution on behalf of all eligible employees based on the employee’s contributions into the 403(b).
MHS matches up to 50% of an employee’s contribution not to exceed 6% of the employee's salary. The MHS match
increases based on age and years of services threshold up to 100% of the amount contributed by the employee not
to exceed 6% of the employee’s salary. Maryland Family Care (MFC) employees are matched up to 50% of their
contribution not to exceed 6% of the employee's salary and their match does not increase with age and years of
service. MHS' contributions into the 403(b) for all participants are vested after three years of service, with no vesting
prior to three years of service. By December 31, 2021, generatly all participants who had existing 401(k) Plan
employer matching contribution accounts who were still employed by Mercy were fully vested.

Effective April 1, 2022, the 401(k) Plan was merged into the 403(b) Plan, with the 403(b} Plan being the surviving
plan. Additionally, effective January 1, 2023, eligibility for the match wilt begin after the completion of six (8) months
of service. Lastly, effective July 1, 2023, Mercy Health Services will transition from a revenue sharing administrative
fee structure to a transparent administrative fee structure for all qualified and non-qualified retirement plans.

Contributions under these plans totaled $7,742 and $6,848 for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023,
respectively.

Note 14. Post-Retirement Benefit Plan

MMC has an unfunded contributory heaith and medical post-relirement benefit plan available to all eligible
employees who meet cettain age and length of service requirements as defined by the plan. The plan provides for
health and medical benefits including primary care physician and specialist visits, hospitalization and emergency
care, prescription drugs, vision care and Medicare supplemental coverage,
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The following table sets forth the components of the MHS obligation at June 30:

2024 2023

Change in benefit obligation

Bensfit obligation at beginning of year $ 6,107 $ 7,239

Service cost 25 35

Interest cost 291 312

Actuarial gain and assumption changes {104) (993)

Employer portion of benefits paid {441) (486)
Benefit obligation af end of year 5,878 6,107
Change in plan assets

Employer contribution 441 486

Benefits paid {(441) (486)
Fair value of plan assets at end of year - -
Unfunded status {5.878) (6,107)
Accrued post-retirement benefit cost {6.878) (6,107)
Less current portion included in accounts payable
and acerued expenses 344 328
Total accrued post-retirement benefit cost, long-term portion $ (5534) §_ (5,779)

Net periodic post-retirement benefit cost included the following for the years ended June 30;
2024 2023

Sarvice cost - benefits attribuied to service during the period $ 25 $ 35
Interest cost on accumulated post-retirement benefit obligation 291 312
Net amortization (131) -
Net post-retirement benefit cost $ 185 § 347

Amounts not yet recognized as a component of net periodic pension cost include net actuarial gain of $1,418 and
$1,445 as of June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively. Estimated amortization of the net loss of $186 is expected to
be recognized in benefit expenses in the next fiscal year.

The weighted average discount rate used in determining the accumulated post-retirement benefit obligation {(APBQ)
for the plan was 5.30% and 4.90% for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively. For measurement
purposes, the health care cost trend rates used in determining the APBO for the plan were 7.5% in 2024 and 2023.
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The following benefit payments, which reflect expected future service, as appropriate, are expected to be paid:

Benefit

—Payments
2025 $ 344
2026 $ 365
2027 5 382
2028 $ 394
2029 $ 398
20230-2034 $ 2,033

Note 15. Retirement Annuity Plan

MMC had a pension plan that was terminated on April 1, 1997 and established a retirement annuity plan under
which certain participants of the terminated plan were entitled to annuity payments. Participants in the plan include
(a) the retirees and beneficiaries entitled to benefits from the terminated plan on April 1, 1997 and (b) other
participants with benefits worth more than $4 that elected an annuity. All benefits are vested and based on the
frozen accrued benefits at April 1, 1997,

The measurement dates for fiscal years 2024 and 2023 were June 30, 2024 and June 30, 2023, respectively. The
following table sets forth the funded status of the retirement annuity plan and amounts recognized in accompanying
consolidated financial statements as of and for the years ended June 30:

2024 2023

Change in bensfit obligation

Benefit obligation at beginning of year $ 2,494 $ 3,097

Interest cost 108 100

Actuarial gain (3) (225)

Benefits paid (435) (478)
Benefit obligation at end of year 2,164 2,494
Change in plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year 581 1,046

Actuarial return on plan assets 13 13

Employer contribution 1,000 -

Benefits paid {435) (478)
Fair value of plan assets at end of year 1.159 581
Unfunded status/accrued benefit cost (Note 23) $ (1.005) § (1.913)
Net periodic pension ¢ost

Interest cost $ 108 $ 100

Expected return on plan assets (38) (68)

Amortization net {gain) loss 113 114
Net periodic pension cost $ 183 § 143
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Amounts not yet recognized as a component of net periodic pension cost include net actuarial loss of $963 and
$1,054 as of June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively. There is no estimated amottization of the net loss expected to
be recognized in net periodic pension costs in the next fiscal year. There is no minimum projected required
contribution for the period ending June 30, 2025.

The discount rate to estimate the benefit obligation as of June 30, 2024 and 2023 was 5.25% and 4.75%,
respactively. The expected rate of return on plan assets to estimate the benefit obligation was 6.5% for 2024 and

2023,
The weighted-average asset allocations in the plan as of June 30, 2024 and 2023, by asset category were as
follows:
2024 2023
Asset Category
Cash and cash equivalents 100% 100%
Total 100% 100%
The fair values of plan assets on a recurring basis as of June 30, 2024 by asset category are as follows:
Total Fair
Assets Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Value
Cash equivalents $ 1,166 § - % - 3 1.159
Total assets fair value $ 1,159 § - % - 3 1,159

The fair values of plan assets on a recurring basis as of June 30, 2023 hy asset category are as follows:

Total Fair
Assets Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Value
Cash equivalents $ 581 § - § - 3 581
Total assets fair value 5 581 $ - 3 - 3 581
There were no significant transfers between levels for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023,
The following benefit payments are expected to be paid for the following years ending June 30:
Benefit
Payments

2025 $ 391

2026 $ 350

2027 $ 311

2028 ) 273

2029 $ 237

Next 5 years 3 756
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Note 16. Net Assets With Donor Restrictions

Net assets with donor restricticns are available for the following health care services and endowment funds at

June 30:
2024 2023

Mercy Forever campaign $ 29,307 $ 25,866
Departmental expenses 10,363 9,988
Other 3,792 4,064
Pastoral care 4,516 4,516
Capital improvements 2,669 2,657
Research programs 2,570 ' 2,193
Indigent care 1,257 806
SMI hospice endowment 1,065 1,065
Wefnberg endowment 1,000 1,000
Education programs 743 739
Dr. Goodman endowment 123 123

$ 57.395 $ 53.007

The Mercy Forever campaign net assets are restricted for the purpose of sustaining and advancing Mercy's
innovating programs and patient centered services in perpetuity. Including but not limited to, community health
programs, technology, education, barriers to health equity, and programs enhancing the care of our aging population.

Note 17. Commitments and Contingent Liabilities

Litigation

MHS has outstanding litigation involving claims brought against it in the normal course of business. Litigation in the
normal course of business, as well as responses to claims and investigations described below, can be expensive,
lengthy and disruptive to normal business operations. Moreover, the results of complex legal proceedings and
government investigations are difficult to predict and in certain cases the likelihood of ocutcome is unknown. Like
most healthcare organizations, MHS receives inquiries, request for information regarding clinical procedures,
licensing, taxes, billing or medical record documentation matters from various State and Federal agencies. MHS
responds to such requests and provides any detailed information requested. Attorneys for MHS are representing
MHS in all of the above matters. Management is currently unable to estimate, with reasonable certainty, the passible
loss, or range of loss, if any, for such lawsuits and investigations. MHS is also subject to asserted and unasserted
claims (In addition to litigation) encountered in the ordinary course of business. As a result of the cutrent level of
governmental and public concerns with health care fraud and abuse, management recognizes that additional
investigative activity could occur in the future, In the opinion of management and after consultation with legal
counsel, management believes it has established adequate accrued reserves related to all known matters, The
outcome of certain litigation, as well as any potential investigative, regulatory, or prosecutorial activity that may
occur in the future is unknown. Accordingly, any associated potential future losses resulting from such matters could
have a matertal adverse effect on the future financial position, results of operations and liquidity of MHS.
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Self-Insurance Programs

As discussed In Notes 1 and 10, GIC provides general and professional liability coverage to MHS and its
subsidiaries. GIC's policies provide primary and certain excess liability coverage. GIC retains the risk related to the
primary policy and relnsures the whole of the excess policies. While insurance policy limits vary by year,
management believes the amounts are appropriate.

GIC’s primary coverage limits for the years ended June 30 are:

2024 2023
Healthcare Professional Liability (HPL) and $9,000 per related loss event $9,000 per related loss event
Managed Care Organization Liability (MCO) $42,000 aggregate $42,000 aggregate
Commercial General Liability (CGL) $9,000 per occurrence $9,000 per occurrence
$4.2,000 aggregate $42,000 aggregate

GIC's primary coverage for HPL is $9,000 per loss event. GIC provides excess coverage for HPL and MCO in the
aggregate amount of $75,000 in excess of $9,000 for related loss events and in excess of $42,000 for fiscal years
2024 and 2023. GIC provides excess coverage for CGL in the aggregate amount of $75,000 in excess of $9,000
per ocourrence and in excess of $42,000 aggregate for fiscal years 2024 and 2023. All excess coverage is reinsured
by commerclal insurance companies.

In management’s opinion, the assets of GIC are sufficient to meet its obligations as of June 30, 2024. If the financial
condition of GIC were to materially deteriorate in the future, and GIC were unable to pay its claim obligations, the
responsibility to pay those claims would return to MHS.

MHS and certain of its subsidiaries are self-insured against employee medical claims. Plan expenses include
claims incurred and provisions for unreported claims. However, the program has an annual aggregate stop loss
provision per employee,

MHS and certain of its subsidiaries are self-insured in the State of Maryland for the use and benefit of all employees
of MHS for worker’s compensation. The State of Maryland requires any self-insured employer to provide a workers’
compensation surety bond issued by a corporate surety company that meets the State's financial rating under A.M. .
Best. MHS has had a surety bond in place since 1997 currently written by Fidelity and Deposit Company of Maryland
in the amount of $2,800. All past, present, existing and potential liability under this bond shall remain in effect and
to the benefit of the State of Maryland.

MHS and certain of its subsidiaries are self-insured against unemployment claims and have surety bonds of $1,725
for the Medical Center and $382 for SMI. The amounts change each October 1 as dictated by the Maryland
Department of Licensing and Regulation.

Note 18. Maryland Health Services Cost Review Commission

The Medical Center's charges are subject to review and approval by the State of Maryland Health Services Cost
Review Commission (HSCRC). Management has made the required filings with the Commission and believes the
Medical Center to be in compliance with the Commission's requirements. The Commission has jurisdiction over
hospital reimbursement in Maryland by agreement with the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services. This
agreement is based on a waiver from the Medicare Prospective Payment System reimbursement principles granted
under Section 1814(b) of the Social Security Act. On January 1, 2014, Maryland's All-Payer Hospital System
Modernization was approved by CMS. This was a new global budget arrangement which set a fixed revenue amount
for the upcoming year, without fluctuation due to utilization or case mix. This was a five-year demonstration where
Maryland successfully made significant progress toward reducing costs inside and outside of the hospital as well
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as improving patient care. Beginning January 2019, the new “Total Cost of Care Model” (the Model) was approved
and builds upon the successes of the All-Payer Model. The Model encourages continued clinical redesign and
provides tools to providers to treat complex and chronic conditions and is built on the same global budget
arrangement mechanics for revenua sefting as the predecessor model, This is approved for a 'IO-year term provided
Maryland meets the Model performance requirements.

The Commission established an uncompensated care fund whereby all hospitals are required to contribute 0.75%
of revenues to this fund to help provide for the cost associated with uncompensated care for certain Maryland
hospitals above the State average. In December 2008, the Commission modified this mechanism to finance
uncompensated care statewide. The policy implemented 100% pooling and all Maryland hospitals have the same
percentage of uncompensated care in rafes. High uncompensated care hospitals receive funds and low
uncompensated care hospitals pay inte the fund. The Medical Center had net payments of $748 for 2024 and
receipts of $1,835 for 2023, related to its participation in the uncompensated care fund mechanism.

The Commission's rate-setting methodology for service centers that provide both inpatient and outpatient services
or only outpatient services consist of establishing an acceptable unit rate for these centers within the applicable
facility. The actual average unit charge for each service conter is compared to the approved rate on a monthly basis.
The rate variances, plus penalties where applicable, are applied to decrease (in the case of overcharges) or
increase (in the case of undercharges) future approved rates on an annual basis, The timing of the Commission's
rate adjustments for the Medical Center could result in an increase or reduction due to the variances and penalties
described above in a year subsequent to the year in which such items occur. MHS' policy Is to accrue revenue
based on actual charges for services to patients in the year in which the services are performed and billed.

Under the global budget arrangement established by the HSCRC, the Medical Center is required to modify revenue
rates based on regulated patient volume, The Medical Center volumes and set HSCRC rates created a minor Global
Budget undercharge of $966 and $1,400, for fiscal years 2024 and 2023, respectively.

The U.S. Federal Housing Administration (FHA) has contracted with CSC under Section 8 of Title |l of the Housing
and Community Development Act of 1974 to make housing assistance payments to CSC on behalf of certified
tenants. For fiscal years 2024 and 2023, the maximum contract commitment was $1,608 and $1,440 per year,
respectively. During the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, CSC received housing assistance payments of
$1,097 and $1,130, respectively, which are included in patient service revenue in the accompanying consolidated
statements of operations. The contract automatically renews each year on April 1 with an expiration date of
March 31, 2033, subject to renewal at that time,

Note 19. Functional Expenses

MHS and its subsidiaries provide general health care services to patients within what they consider their geographic
service areas, Expenses related to providing these services, based on management's estimates of expense
allocations, are as follows for the years ended June 30:
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Salaries and benefits
Supplies

Other purchased services
Insurance

Professional fees
Depreciation and amortization
Interest

Repairs

Total

Salaries and benefits
Supplies

Cther purchased services
Insurance

Professional fees
Depreciation and amortization
Interest

Repairs

Total

2024

Healthcare General and

Services Administrative Fundraising Total

$ 492172 $ 41,829 $ 1,971 $ 536,072
203,506 6,041 138 209,685
44,514 20,355 451 65,320
27,749 3,514 - 31,263
21,890 702 120 22,712
32,026 11,807 - 43,633
8,797 4,891 - 13,688
17,058 6,065 195 23,318

$ BA7 712 i 95,104 3 2,875 $ 945,691

2023

Healthcare General and

Services Administrative Fundraising Total

$ 441,868 3 66,136 $ 1,791 $ 509,795
190,303 6,191 77 186,571
42,252 20,765 197 63,214
19,587 2,507 - 22,094
21,003 1,448 8 22 457
31,564 11,671 - 43,235
8,551 4,704 - 13,255
14,746 4,945 199 19,890

$._ 769874 $ 118,365 5 2272 $ 890,511

The accompanying consolidated financial statements report cerfain expense categories that are attributable to more
than one health care service or support function. These expenses require an allocation on a reasonable basis that
is consistently applied. Costs not directly attributable to a function, including depreciation and amortization, interest,
and other occupancy costs, are allocated to a function based on a square footage basis.

Note 20. Liquidity and Availability

As of June 30, 2024 and 2023 , MHS had working capital of approximately $204,222 and $187,324, respectively,
and average days (based on normal expenditures} cash on hand of 239 and 2486, respectively.

Mercy Medical Center
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Financial assets available for general expenditure within one year of the consolidated balance sheet date consist
of the following at June 30:

2024 2023
Cash and cash equivalents $ 269,820 $ 261,559
Patient accounts receivable, net 96,788 80,464
Other accounts receivables, net 820 4,734
Short-term investments 1,815 1,778
Current partion of funds held by frustee 5,551 13,427
Total , 3 374,794 8 361,962

In addition to the assets described above, MHS has other assets whose use is limited for specified purposes, and
because they are not available for general expenditure within one year such assets are not reflected in the amounts
above. MHS does, however, have certain long-term assets including general investments whose use is limited by
board designation that could be made available for general expenditure within one year, if necessary,

Note 21. Certain Risks and Uncertainties

Regulation And Reimbursement

MHS provides health care services primarily through an acute care hospital in Baltimore City and a long-term care
facility in Baltimore County, Maryland.

MHS and other healthcare providers in Maryland are subject to certain inherent risks, including the following:

¢ Dependence on revenues derived from reimbursement by the federal Medicare and State Medicaid
programs;
Regulation of hospital rates by the Commission;
Government regulation, government budgetary constraints and proposed legislative and regulatory
changes; and

¢ Lawsduits alleging malpractica and related claims.

Such inherent risks require the use of certain management estimates in the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements of MHS, and it is reasonably possible that a change in such estimates may occur.

The Medicare and state Medicaid reimbursement programs represent a substantial portion of MHS' revenues and
MHS' operations are subject to a variety of other federal, state and local regulatory requirements. Failure to maintain
required regulatory approvals and licenses and/or changes in such regulatory requirements could have a significant
adverse effect on MHS. Changes in federal and state reimbursement funding mechanisms and related government
budgetary constraints could have a significant adverse effect on MHS,

The federal government and many states have aggressively increased enforcement under Medicare and Medicaid
anti-fraud and abuse laws and physician self-referral laws. Recent federal initiafives have prompted a national
review of federally funded health care programs. In addition, the federal government and many states have
implemented programs to audit and recover potential overpayments fo providers from the Medicare and Medicaid
programs. MHS has implemented a compliance program to monitor conformance with applicable laws and
regulations, but the possibility of future governmental review and enforcement action exists. Laws and regulations
governing the Medicare and Medicaid programs are extremely complex and subject to interpretation. As a result,
there is at least a reasonable possibllity that recorded estimates will change by a material amount in the near term.
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As a result of federal health care reform legislation, substantial changes are underway in the U.S. health care
delivery system. Such legislation includes numerous provisions affecting the delivery of health care services, the
financing of health care costs, reimbursement of health care providers, and the legal obligations of health insurers,
praviders and employers. These provisions are currently slated to take effect at specified times over the next
decade. The known impact of all currently applicable federal health care reform legislation has been accounted for
in the consclidated financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2024,

Investments

MHS and certain of its subsidiaries have funds on deposit with financial institutions in excess of amounts insured
by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation.

Certain alternative investments held in the MHS portfolic are exposed to potential risks in excess of the risks
associated with the other investments in the MHS portfolio, These include, but are not limited to, the following
potential risks:

¢ limited or no liquidity {including “side pocket” arrangements),

« derivative financial instruments that expose the investment funds to market risk (if the market value of the
contract is higher or lower than the contract price at the maturity date} and credit risk (arising from the
potantial inabllity of counterparties to perform under the terms of the contracts),

» investment in non-marketable securities that are valued without the benefit of an active secondary market,

¢ substantially less regulation, and

* no current income production.

Note 22. Endowment

Current accounting standards provide guidance on the net asset classification of donor-restricted endowment funds
for a not-for-profit organization that is subject to an enacted version of the Uniform Prudent Management of
Institutional Act of 2006 (UPMIFA) and additional disclosures about an organization’s endowment funds. In 2008,
the State of Maryland adopted UPMIFA,

The MHS endowments consist of three individual funds established for a variety of purposes. The endowments
include both endowment funds with donor restrictions and funds designated by the board of trustess to function as
endowments. As required by generally accepted accaunting principles, net assets associated with endowment
funds, Including funds designated by the board of trustees to function as endowments, are classified and reported
based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions.

The board of trustees of MMS has interpreted the Maryland State Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act
(SPMIFA) as requiring the preservation of the fair value of the original gift as of the gift date of the donor-restricted
endowment funds absent explicit donor stipulations to the contrary. As a result of this interpretation, MHS classifies
as net assets with donor restrictions {a) the original value of gifts donated to the permanent endowment, (b) the
original value of subsequent gifts donated to the permanent endowment, and {c) accumulations to the permanent
endowment made In accordance with the direction of the applicable denor gift instrument at the time the
accumulation is added to the fund. The remaining portion of the endowmant fund with donor restrictions is classified
as net assets with donaor restrictions until those amounts are appropriated for expenditure by the organization in a
manner consistent with the standard of prudence prescribed by SPMIFA. In accordance with SPMIFA, MHS
considers the following factors in making a determination to appropriate or accumulate donor-resiricted endowment

funds:
1. The duration and preservation of the fund
2. The purposes of the organization and the donor-restricted endowment fund
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General economic conditions

The possible effect of inflation and deflation

The expected total return from income and the appreciation of invesiments
Cther resources of the organization

The investment policies of the crganization

NO oW

MHS has adopted an investment poiicy for endowment assets that attempts to provide a predictable stream of
funding to programs supported by its endowments while seeking to maintain the purchasing power of the
endowment assets. Endowment assets include those assets of funds with donor restrictions that must be held in
perpetuity.

To satisfy its long-term rate-of-return objectives, MHS relies on a total return strategy in which investment returns
are achieved through both capital appreciation (realized and unrealized) and current yield (interest and dividends).
MHS targets a diversified asset allocation that places a greater emphams on equity-based investments to achieve
its long-term return objectives within prudent risk constraints.

At June 30, 2024, the endowment net asset composition by type of fund consisted of the following:

Without
Donor With Donor
Resftriction Restriction Total
Donor-restricted funds $ 635 % 2178 $ 2,813
At June 30, 2023, the endowment net asset composition by type of fund consisted of the following:
Without
Donor With Donor
Restriction Restriction Total
Donor-restricted funds $ 449 5 2,178 $ 2,627
Changes in endowment net assets for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024, consisted of the following:
Without
Donor With Donor
Restriction Restriction Total
Endowment net assets, beginning of year 3 449 $ 2,178 $ 2,627
Investment return
Investment gain 186 - 186
Endowment net assets, end of year 3 635 $ 2,178 $ 2,813
45
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Changes in endowment net assets for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, consisted of the following:

Without
Donor With Donor
Restriction Restriction Total
Endowment net assets, beginning of year $ 268 5 2,178 $ 2,446
Investment return
Investment loss 181 - 181
Endowment net assets, end of year 3 449 & 2,178 2,62
Note 23. Other Long-Term Liabilities
Other long-term liabilities consist of the following at June 30:
2024 2023
Retirement annuity plan 3 1,005 $ 1,913
Other 2,251 2.370
$ 3,256 i 4,283

Note 24. Leases

MHS leases certain equipment and office buildings under the terms of non-cancellable operating leases. For leases
with terms greater than 12 months, the related right-of-use assets and right-of-use obligations are recorded at the
present value of lease payments over the term. Many of the leases include rental escalation clauses and renewal
options that are factored into the determination of lease payments when appropriate.

Rental expense associated with operating leases was $7,437 and $7,638 for the years ended June 30, 2024 and
2023, respectively, which is recorded in the consolidated financial statements as other purchased services, These
amounts approximated the cash paid associated with finance leases for the years then ended.

Current operating lease liabilities are included in operating lease liability, current in the accompanying consolidated
balance sheets. Noncurrent operating lease liabilities are included in the operating lease liabilities in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets.
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The following table presents lease-related assets and liabilities at June 30:

2024 2023
Operating leases
Right-of-use operating lease assets $ 43.713 $ 40,302
Current operating lease liabilities $ 3,841 $ 4,012
Noncurrent operating lease liabilities 42,275 38,039
Total operating lease liabilities $ 46.116 $ 42,051
Other information
Right of use assets obtained in exchange for new
operating lease liabilities $ 5,863 ) -
Weighted-average remaining lease term — equipment
operating leases 1.37 yoars 2.04 years
Weighted-average remaining lease term — property
operating leases 30.33 years 33.14 years
Weighted-average discount rate — operating leases 3.81% 3.81%
The following is a schedule of lease liability maturities related to operating leases with third parties for the years
ehding June 30:
Equipment Property Total
2025 $ 706§ 3,245 % 3,951
2026 208 3,299 3,507
2027 - 3,332 3,332
2028 - 3,388 3,388
2029 - 3,380 3,380
Thereafter - 66,578 86,578
Total 914 83,222 84,138
Less: interest (33) {37.987) (38,020)
Lease liability $ 881 $ 45236 $ 46,116

Note 25. Subsequent Events

Management evaluated all events and transactions for potential recognition and disclosure that occurred after
June 30, 2024 and through September 11, 2024, the date the consolidated financial statements were issued.
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